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" Postgra ;
SReRInescoN ;

RESEARCH CONGRESS ;

Breaking Boundaries:
Collaborative Science for Global Challenges

z N
&+ Earth & Environmental Sciences 1
| strongly recommend the

. ICT, Mathematics, & Statistics  SESASRIRGISA
\ ]

Lanka: Discourse is vital for

Q. Life Sciences \\ 9004 science and this

& 0 '\ (= i
¢ Physical Sciences ,ﬁﬂ:mzﬁ;ﬂ;

. : *
¥ Science Education Sir Paul M. Nurse

. . - . The Nobel Prize in Physiology or
&= Alin Biomedical Sciences Medicine 2001

o Call for Abstracts 30™ April 2024

¢ Abstract Submission Deadline 2024 D
¢ Notification of Acceptance 15™ August 2024

© Submission of Revised Abstracts 30" August 2024
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8. u8we® ¥ Y1 vuyven

8.1 uS»c svy»® BEae Bedno
8.1.1 2023 e 2024 D8ved §& @rcow®

2024 (si) 2023 (o)
235)0008m)5) &¢azd - -
eSO e 12 B0 63,363,575 58,973,310
@0 Bud® gwssImd gagw® 66,445,300 109,917,822
SIYoT) 129,808,875 | 168,891,132
8.1.2 2023 e 20240880E god?ds Bwed®
5oFQ> Be® Gaess Ygamd CBBOS Gagas® Bwe® dmnd
2024 | 2023 | 2024 (s) | 2023 (si) | 2024(s) | 2023 (o)
(c) | (o)
CIGHMATIGIG - 373,958 373,958
Se30BBN®IC 83D -1 2,304,060 2,304,060 624,250
OISO e 624,250
85WE CBmS T -1 1,056,926 1,056,926 1,679,120
1,679,120
geSDIE @By - 219,388 219,388 142,302
142,302
§OOD - - 5,490 5,490
SISYo1) - 3,954,332 | 2,451,162 | 3,954,332 | 2,451,162

Capital Expenditures - 2024

Postgraduate Institute of Science

Office Equipment
LKR 1,056,926
27%

ibrary Books
LKR 219,388
6%

@ Buildings

@ Lab & Teaching

OLibrary Books

O Office Equipment

Equipment
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8.1.3 y56:08m> Swed®

D ResvOD Bwe® (61.)

5¢oEm 88 o8 - edswem 22,823,911
8oBm 88 8 - gmABwED 33,886,485
©®z3 Bwe® 162,017
@1ey® 5,159,113
50 Swed 5,838,046
B5g®om e 10,682,188
005 g2GOEBD Bwed 23,267,255
8RB0 =0 36,039,585
Howed® 49,024,997

9o Omd 186,883,597

Recurrent Expenditure - 2024

Postgraduate Institute of Science

@ Personal emoluments-
Academics

B Personal emoluments-Non
Academics
BTravelling

Bsupplies & consumables

B Maintenance

Travelling  EContractual services

162,017
0.00

DOther expenses
Supplies &

consumables
5“?3&“’ D Exchange loss

B Depreciation

Contractual services

10,682,188
5%

nce
5,838,046
%

59




814 gesyoBs (5sed)

Baw 2024
55D EDB 92%
Ehofars) 77%

8.1.5 9w mBwendn ddeCsens

Bsw

2 BegDz escwn D1 O Bwwe® .

92 Beygdm) eewo D1 DB Y¥5IG0E®D Bwe® (RE)

QD BENST YHHGDED D Bwe® On BcHHOD
OBDIB WE GRB

8.1.6 208 00T BI®, cvewddmw Y DELW e

(B3Bw»)

yBes 0st BB ClAe ¥ cuewldne »e 8ec (BEum)

B FDD Yy

235Y00DE®5Y Yeasd

26.418 25.998

8.1.7 cia e s¥edsen yex (286 ac@ed, 2018-2024)

DEsw sledsen &) eeasd D350m® (St.)

2018 4 14,001,100.00
2019 6 10,288,860.00
2020 4 995,000.00
2021 2 341,898.00
2022 - -
2023 02 9,259,199.51
2024 - -
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8.1.8 s¥eduen Bcc Bwe® BEDE em0nd ( Bedn §08¢c) 2024 D&wsw

e B wed 5HO DsoaBed »H© gc yom 2024 28wl 2024 o8sed
SHE Co® Bwed
(5e) (Se)
@8 8. wmsIdE Biogeography and | 61.2,793,776.96 | - 319,781.55
cdBe Bdwo adwwomneanw | Phylogenetics of Genus | €192,310
Bdwo Bl Piper
®@0D8e 3.98.0980.e8 | Novel Nano-structures | SEK 105,000
DYoLt} for performance | 6:.3,155,080.80 | 434,281.29 1,214,784.29
ewedm Bdwo gRwwmwe®w, enhancement of low-cost
Bwo Bida solar cells
©0D8® 8. BBIOE Conservation of Bogner’s | &.e&1. 20,000 - -
cdBe Bwo adBBBIREB water- 6.6,538,400.00 1,738,510.69
B Bdws trumpet(Cryptocoryn
e bogneri) in sri lanka
OO 434,281.29 3,273,076.53
8.1.9 s¥edven B2 Bwe® BEDE emnd (edBw ad8ed) 2024 d&ww
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POSTGRADUATE INSTITUTE OF SCIENCE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31°" DECEMBER 2024

Note As at 31/12/2024  As at 31/12/2023
Current assets
Cash & cash equivalents 1 17,129,780 17,694,223
Investments 2 705,761,026 681,161,373
Receivables & deposit 3 35,730,531 78,841,617
Loans & advances to staff 4 1,258,606 1,195,193
Inventories 5 3,685,431 5,012,586
Total current assets 763,565,374 783,904,992
Non current assets
Loans & advances to staff 4 2,960,378 3,089,714
Financial misappropriation - (2008-2016) 50,119,123 50,119,123
Intangible assets 6 1,137,746 755,232
Property, plant & equipment 7 313,048,687 358,119,353
Total non current assets 367,265,934 412,083,422
Total assets 1,130,831,308 1,195,988,414
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accrued expenses 8 22,341,630 24,639,509
Other payables 9 7,235,350 7,715,257
Refundable deposits 10 6,796,509 6,484,512
Deferred income 11,639,151 9,980,892
Provisions 11 1,455,250 625,250
Total current liabilities 49,467,889 49,445,420
Non current liabilities
Provision for gratuity 12 10,616,224 7,791,951
Funds 13 11,185,518 9,669,126
Refundable deposits 10 1,970,500 2,353,500
Total non current liabilities 23,772,242 19,814,577
TOTAL LIABILITIES 73,240,131 69,259,997
NET ASSETS 1,057,591,177 1,126,728,417
EQUITY
General reserves 921,549,015 967,212,281
Restricted funds 14 5,514,571 9,658,424
Revaluation reserve 130,527,591 149,857,712
TOTAL EQUITY 1,057,591,177 1,126,728,417

These financial statements are in compliance with the requirements of the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978
and other statutory provisions.
% Senior Assistant Registrar
""""" Postgraduate Institute of Science
Mrs.A.A.S.PuijwataishahPeradeniya
i Senior AssisPateRepi¥frarti Lanka.
eracentya—5riLar

verauenlyd, = of e . " "
The Board of Management is responsible for the ‘preparation and presentation of these financial statements
signed for and pn behalf of the Board of Management

......... S Deputy Bursar

MrB.G< kody Postgraduate Institute of Science
I linivars: ~F e 3

Deputy Bursar/ J..,,._r_.._:y ar s

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 6t0 13 form an integral part'of these Financial Statements.
25 February 2025



POSTGRADUATE INSTITUTE OF SCIENCE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°* DECEMBER 2024

Note 2024 2023

Revenue Rs. Rs.
Current
Revenue from non Exchange Transaction-Current
Government grant (Recurrent ) .
Research grant income 3,625,077 4,712,140
Total Revenue from non Exchange Transaction-Current 3,625,077 4.712,140
Revene from Exchange Transaction-Current
Interest income 15 58,247,533 99,402,843
Internal Generated Income 16 63,363,575 58,973,310
Other Income 16.1 4,572,690 5,802,839
Exchange gain
Total Revene from Exchange Transaction-Current 126,183,798 164,178,992
Total Revene -Current 129,808,875 168,891,132
Capital
Revenue from non Exchange Transaction-Capital . -
Total Revenue 129,808,875 168,891,132
Expenses
Current
Personal emoluments 17 60,990,505 54,115,023
Travelling 18 162,017 128,280
Supplies & consumables 19 5,159,113 4,440,122
Maintenance 20 5,838,046 4,313,088
Contractual services 21 10,682,188 12,568,583
Other expenses 22 26,622,255 18,552,163
Exchange loss 36,039,585 41,494,616
Total Expense(Non Capital ) 145,493,709 135,611,875
Capital
Depreciation 23 49,024,997 48,404,715
Amortization of intangible assets 283,556 342,504
Total Expense-Non Capital 49,308,553 48,747,220
Current surplus / deficit for the year (15,684,834) 33,279,257
Capital surplus / deficit for the year (49,308,553) (48,747,220)

(64,993,387) (15,467,962)




POSTGRADUATE INSTITUTE OF SCIENCE

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" DECEMBER 2024

2024 2023
Cash flows from operating activities
Surplus from ordinary activities (64,993,387) (15,467,962)
Non - cash movements
Depreciation & amortization 49,308,553 48,747,220
Interest income (58,247,533) (99,402,843)
Increase / decrease in provision for audit fees 700,000 80,750
Increase / decrease in provision for gratuity 2,824,273 587,883
Increase / decrease in provision for security charges 130,000 -
Increase / decrease in provision for visiting lecture fees - (11,467,691)
LosseswWrite -offs 3,875,000 -
Operating surplus before the working capital changes (66,403,094) (76,922,643)
Increase / decrease receivables (127,549) 4,025,358
Increase / decrease loans & advances 65,923 (63,772)
Increase / decrease inventories 1,327,156 (475,120)
Increase / decrease accrued expenses (2,297,879) 7,918,657
Increase / decrease payables 172,075 (3,434,619)
Increase / decrease refundable deposits (71,003) (206,421)
Increase / decrease deferred income 1,658,259 4,108,946
Net cash flow from operating activities (65,676,112) (65,049,614)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant & equipment (3,954,331) (2,451,162)
Purchase of intangible assets (666,070) -
Investment in fixed deposits (877,135,491) (476,182,524)
Withdrawal of fixed deposits 852,535,837 468,920,696
Interest income 97,613,058 74,296,993
Net cash flow from investing activities 68,393,003 64,584,003
Cash flows from financing activities
Scholarship fund 95,462 (183,718)
Receipts for research grants 434,281 9,898,763
Payments for research grants (3,811,076) (8,903,225)
Net cash flows from financing activities (3,281,333) 811,819
Increase / decrease in cash & cash equivalents (564,443) 346,208
Cash & cash equivalent at the beginning of the year 17,694,223 17,348,015
Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the year 17,129,780 17,694,223




POSTGRADUATE INSTITUTE OF SCIENCE

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON BUDGET & ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" DECEMBER 2024

2024 Actual 2024 Budget
Note Rs. Rs.

Revenue
Government grant (recurrent ) - -
Programme fees 54,314,979 59,000,000
Registration fees 2,564,900 3,000,000
Examination fees 1,748,546 2,300,000
Miscellaneous income 16.1 4,572,690 2,172,000
Research congress income 776,500 600,000
Medical fees 129,250 63,000
Vehicle hiring charges 1,146,400 900,000
Library tickets 475,500 596,000
Supervision fees 1,330,000 1,000,000
Interest income 15 58,247,533 56,175,000
Bench fees 877,500 1,000,000
Research grant income 3,625,077 -

129,808,875 126,806,000
Expenses
Personal emoluments 17 60,990,505 72,440,000
Travelling 18 162,017 1,100,000
Supplies & consumables used 19 5,159,113 8,780,000
Maintenance 20 5,838,046 6,310,000
Contractual services 21 10,682,188 13,023,000
Other expenses 22 26,622,255 25,153,000
Depreciation & Amortization of Intangible Ass 23 & 6 49,308,553 -
Exchange Loss 36,039,585 =

194,802,262 126,806,000
Net surplus/deficit for the year (64,993,387) -




POSTGRADUATE INSTITUTE OF SCIENCE

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSET/EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" DECEMBER 2024

Capital grant | Revaluation | Retained earnings Total
reserve
Balance as at 01.01.2024 - 149,857,712 967,212,281 1,117,069,993
surplus/ deficit for the period - - (64,993,387) (64,993,387)
Transfer to general reserve - (19,330,120) 19,330,120 -
remaining balance of revaluation
reserve as at 01.01.2024)
Balance as at 31 December 2024 - 130,527,591 921,549,015 1,052,076,606




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General information

1.1 Reporting entity

The Postgraduate Institute of Science (PGIS) was established in 1996 by an ordinance made by the

University Grants Commission under section 18 with section 24 of the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978.

1.2 Principal activities and nature of operations

The purpose of the PGIS is providing, promoting and developing higher education in science. The

principle objective of the Institute is to provide postgraduate instructions and training and facilitate

research in different disciplines of science.

1.3 Going concern

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Board of Management of the

Institute has assessed the ability to continue as a going concern and has a reasonable expectation that the

Institute has adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future. The Board of

Management does not foresee a need for liquidation or cessation of operations, taking into account all

available information about the future. Therefore, the Institute continues to adopt the going concern basis

in preparing the financial statements.

1.4 Reporting period

The financial period of the Institute represents a twelve-month period from 1% January 2024 to 31% December 2024.

1.5 Basis of preparation of financial statements

1.5.1

1.5.2

1.5.3

Statement of compliance

The Financial Statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Financial
Performance, Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statement, Notes to the financial

statements and Statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.

The Financial Statements of the PGIS are prepared in conformity with Sri Lanka Public Sector
Accounting Standards (SLPSAS). All accounting policies adopted by the PGIS are applied
consistently with those of the previous year. Change in accounting policies have been disclosed

separately.

Basis of measurement

The Financial Statements of PGIS have been prepared on accrual basis and under the historical cost

convention except where appropriate disclosures are made under relevant notes.

Comparative information

Comparative information including quantitative, narrative and descriptive information is disclosed
in respect of the previous period for all amounts reported in the financial statements, in order to

enhance the understanding of the financial statements of the current period and to improve
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comparability. Where necessary, comparative figures have been re-arranged to conform to the

current year’s presentation.

1.5.4 Approval of financial statements
The Financial Statements of the PGIS were authorized for issue by the Board of Management of the
Institute at its 184™ meeting held on 14" February 2025.

1.5.5 Materiality and aggregation
Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the financial statements. Items of a
dissimilar nature or function are presented separately, unless they are immaterial.

1.5.6 Functional and presentation currency

The Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees, which is the Institute’s functional and
presentation currency. All financial information presented in Sri Lankan Rupees have been rounded

to the nearest thousand, unless stated otherwise.

1.5.7 Offsetting

Assets & liabilities and income and expense accounts have not been offset unless required by or
permitted by SLPSAS.

1.6 Significant accounting estimates and judgements

2.

The preparation and presentation of financial statements, in conformity with SLPSAS, requires
Management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Information about
significant areas of estimates, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have

the most significant effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is as follows.

Any changes in accounting estimates and critical judgements are disclosed in the relevant notes to the

financial statements.

Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1 Assets and the basis of their valuation

2.1.1 Property, plant & equipment (PPE)

Lands, Buildings, Laboratory and Teaching Equipment, Furniture & Fittings, Library Books and
Periodicals, Motor Vehicles, and Other Assets acquired out of government grants, internally

generated funds, research grants and donations are shown under PPE.



a) Basis of recognition and measurement
PPE are recognized, if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the entity and the cost of the items can be measured reliably. PPE are recorded at cost/revaluation
less accumulated depreciation. The cost of PPE is the cost of purchase or construction together with

any incidental capital expenses there on.

An item of PPE that qualifies for recognition as an asset is initially measured at its cost. Cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and subsequent costs.
The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials, direct labour, any other costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use, the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located. Purchased
software which is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as part of that
equipment. The cost of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises its purchase or construction cost

and any directly attributable cost of bringing the assets working condition for its intended use.

The Institute adopts the revaluation model for the entire class of PPE after initial recognition at cost.
If the carrying amount of a class of assets is increased as a result of a revaluation, the increase has

been directly credited to revaluation surplus.

All buildings and motor vehicles belonging to the Institute were revalued as at 01* January 2022 by
the Department of Valuation and other categories of assets except Laboratory and Teaching
Equipment and Office Equipment were re-valued by internally appointed committees and respective
adjustments resulting from the above revaluations have been made in the financial statements of the
Institute in accordance with the SLPSAS 07. The categories of Laboratory & Teaching Equipment
and Office Equipment were revalued by internally appointed committees as at 01.01.2023 and the

revaluation gain has been recognized through the statement of changes in equity.

b) Subsequent expenditure on PPE
Expenditure incurred on tangible fixed assets are charged to the Statement of Financial Performance
in the period it is incurred, unless it meets one or the following criteria, in which case it is

capitalized and depreciated on the relevant basis.

» Fair value of fixed assets has subsequently increased.

= Capacity of the asset increases.

=  Sustainable improvement in the quality of output or reduction in operating cost.

=  Significant extension of the asset useful lifetime beyond that confirmed by repair and

maintenance.



¢) Depreciation

Depreciation is recognized in the Statement of Financial Performance on a Straight-Line method
over the estimated useful life time of PPE from the date that they were made available for use.

Lands are not depreciated.

The estimated useful life periods of each class of assets are as follows:

Description Estimated Useful Life Time
Laboratory and Teaching equipment 5 Years
Motor Vehicles 5 Years
Library Books and Periodicals 5 Years
Telephone 10 Years
Other Equipment 5 Years
Buildings 20 Years
Sport Goods ; 5 Years

d) Land

2.1.2

2.1.3

The value of the lands on which the buildings of the PGIS constructed has not been included in the
financial statements of the Institute as the ownership has not been transferred to the PGIS. Hence
the value of the land has not been taken in to account. However, it is to be noted that PGIS is
attached to the University of Peradeniya (PGIS Ordinance No 01 of 1996 dated 12 February 1996).

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recognized only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that
the expected future economic benefits are attributable to it will flow to the Institute. The cost of the
Blue Lotus 360 Accounting software has been amortized over 5 years period commencing from
year 2019. Amortization of payroll system and the pixdamapper Educational classroom software
has been commenced from 2021 for five years keeping in line with the SLPSAS 19 (Intangible
Assets).

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost is determined on a first
in first out basis and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to

their existing condition and location.

2.1.4 Receivables

Receivables are stated at the amounts estimated to be realized.

2.1.5 Cash & cash equivalents

Cash & cash equivalents comprise cash & savings deposits at bank. The receipts & payments of the
foreign currency of the RFC 2233593 US § account, maintaining at the Bank of Ceylon, Peradeniya
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is converted in to local currency at the exchange rate existing on the dates of receipts and payments.
Exchange gain/loss has been calculated by using the Central Bank year end exchange rate and

recognized through the statement of financial performance.

2.1.6 Financial misappropriation amount of Rs 50,338,160.18

As per the special investigation audit report issued by Auditor General’s Department on
26/07/2018, the Auditor General’s Department has identified a capital loss incurred due to
obtaining money anomalously by cancelling fixed deposits by the former Senior Assistant Bursar,
Mr. WMM.SM Iddawala as Rs 50,338,160.18 (Excluding re-deposited amount of Rs
5,000,000.00). Further, it was identified in their report that interest income of Rs 24,346,723 has
also been lost due to fraudulently withdrawn fixed deposit by Mr. W.M.M.S.M Iddawala from
14/03/2008 to 30/11/2017. Action has already been taken to recover an amount of Rs. 219,037.00
from the gratuity amount payable amount to Mr. W.M.M.S.M Iddawala and action is being taken to
recover the balance amount lying to the credit of University Provident Fund of Mr. W.M.M.S.M

Iddawala.

Criminal case is going on at Kandy Magistrate Court under the Case No: MC/B/43167/17. Further,
Attorney General’s Department has lodged a civil case (No DC/1196/20) against Mr. W.M.M.S.M
Iddawala to recover the losses. Lawyers are of the view that there is a high possibility of recovering
the financial losses. Therefore financial misappropriation amount of Rs. 50,338,160.00 has been

categorized under non-current assets.

2.1.7 Liabilities & provisions

All known liabilities as at the balance sheet date are included in the financial statements and
adequate provisions have been made for liabilities which time and the amounts are uncertain.
Liabilities payable after one year from the balance sheet date are treated as non-current liabilities in

the statement of financial position.

2.1.8 Provision for gratuity

The provision for gratuity as at 31% December 2024 has been calculated by using Actuarial
Valuation method prescribed under SLPSAS 19 (Employee Benefits). Followings disclosures are

made in the accounts keeping in line with the requirements of the standard.

Actuarial Valuation of Gratuity Liabilities as at 31 December 2024

Rs.
Change in the Present Value of The Defined Benefit Obligation (PV-DBO)
Provision for PV-DBO as at 01 January 2024 = 7,791,951
Interest Cost for the period = 1,012,954
Current Service Cost for the period = 685,535
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on PV-DBO = 1,125,784
Provision for PV-DBO as at 31 December 2024 = 10,616,224
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AMOUNTS RECOGNIZED IN THE BALANCE SHEET AND INCOME STATEMENT

Liability recognized in the balance sheet

Provision for Gratuity as at 31 December 2024 = 10,616,224
Unrecognized actuarial Gains/(Losses) as at 31 December 2024 = -
Liability recognized in the balance sheet as at 31 December 2024 = 10,616,224

Expenses recognized in the income statement

Interest Cost = 1,012,954
Current Service Cost = 685,535
Expenses recognized in the Income Statement = 1,698,489

Expenses recognized in other comprehensive income statement

Net Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized immediately = 1,125,784
Expenses recognized in other comprehensive income statement = 1,125,784

Movements in_the Nei Liability Recognized in the balance sheet

Opening Net Liability as at 01 January 2024 = 7,791,951
Expenses recognized in the Income Statement = 1,698,489
Expenses recognized in other comprehensive income statement = 1,125,784
Gratuity paid/payable for those who left during the period = -

Closing Net Liability as at 31 December 2024 = 10,616,224

2.1.9 University Provident Fund (UPF) & University Pension Fund

The PGIS and employees contribute 15% and 10% respectively, on the salary of each employee to
the University provident fund in line with the respective statutes and legislations in Sri Lanka and
University Act. The University also contributes 8% to the University Pension Fund in respect of

pensionable employees in which case the contribution to the UPF from the PGIS is 7%.

2.1.10 Employees’ Trust Fund (ETF)

The PGIS contributes 3% on the salary of each employee to the Employees Trust Fund.

2.1.11 Accounting for grants

Grants that compensate the PGIS for expenses incurred are recognized as revenue in the income
statement in the same period in which the expenses are recognized. Grant that compensate the cost
of assets are recognized in the income statement on a systematic basis over the useful life of the
related asset as per the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard 20. (LKAS 20). The PGIS adopts income
approach of the standard when identifying capital grants.

Where grants /donations are received for use in an identified project or activity, such funds are held
in a restricted fund account and transferred to the statement of financial performance to match with
expenses incurred in respect of that identified project. Unutilized funds are held in their respective
grant accounts and included under restricted funds in the statement of financial position until such

time they are utilized for the intended purposes.

2.1.12 Research and scholarships fund & workshop & event fund

Research and development fund has been established by transferring dormant research grant

balances and workshop & event fund has been established by transferring dormant workshops and
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short courses balances with the approval of the Finance Committee and the Board of Management

of the Institute to be used for the defined purposes approved by the Board of Management.

3. Statement of financial performance
3.1 Recognition of revenue in the statement of financial performance

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by the
PGIS during the year and represents an increase in net assets/equity. The PGIS recognizes revenue
following the established criteria of SLPSAS 10 (Revenue from Exchange Transactions) and SPSAS 11
(Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions).

A) Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Non-exchange transactions are those where the PGIS receives value from another entity (e.g. cash or
other assets) without giving approximately equal value in exchange. Inflows of resources from non-
exchange transactions, other than services in-kind, that meet the definition of an asset are recognized

as an asset only when;

- It is probable that the PGIS will receive an inflow of economic benefits or service potential

- The fair value can be measured reliably

Inflows of resources from non-exchange transactions that are recognized as assets are recognized as

non- exchange revenue, to the extent that a liability is not recognized in respect to the same inflow.

The following are the specific recognition criteria related to the non-exchange transactions of the

PGIS.

a) Government grant

No recurrent or capital grant has been received by the PGIS during the year under review from the
General Treasury.

b) Gifts, donations and goods received in-kind

Gifts, donations are voluntary transfers of assets including cash or other monetary assets and
goods in-kind that the Institute receives which are free from stipulations. Gifts and donations and
goods in-kind received are recognized as non-exchange revenue when it is probable that the future
economic benefits or service potential will flow to the Institute and the fair value of the assets can
be measured reliably.
B) Revenue from Exchange Transactions
The following are the specific recognition criteria related to the exchange transactions of the PGIS.

a) Interest income

Interest income is recognized on accrual basis.

=172 -



b) Programme fees income

Programme fees income is identified under accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, programme
fees which are applicable to the current period are only identified as programme fees income for
the reporting period. Adjustments are made in the accounts for unpaid programme fees
(Receivables) and the excess programme fees paid are recognized as deferred income for the year
ended 31" December 2024.

¢) Recurrent grants
Revenue from recurrent grants is recognized in the period in which grant is received.
d) Research grants income & expenditure

When funds are received to be used in an identified project or activity, such funds are held in a
restricted fund account and transferred to the Statement of Financial Performance to match with
the expenses incurred in respect to that identified project or activity. Unutilized funds are held in
their respective fund accounts and are included in the Statement of Financial Position until such

time they are used for the intended projects or activities.
e) Other income
Other income are recognized on accrual basis.
f) Income from workshops, short courses, seminars ete
The administrative charge from Workshops, Short courses and Seminars are classified under the
miscellaneous income.

3.2 Recognition of expenditure in the statement of financial performance

Expenditure are recognized on accrual basis and are charged to the relevant expenditure heads in

ascertaining the income over expenditure for the year.

4. Cash flow statement

The cash flow statement has been prepared using the “Indirect Method” in accordance with the SLPSAS 2
where the gross cash receipts and gross cash payments of operating activities, financing activities and
investing activities have been recognized. Cash & cash equivalents are comprised of cash & bank

balances and short-term deposits.
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2024 2023
Cash & cash equivalents Note Rs. Rs.
1
Cash at bank (A/C 0001273990) 530,754 2,875,967
Cash at bank (A/C 0001274002) 1,187,590 518,491
Cash at bank (A/C 057100191338034) 731,553 171,443
Cash at bank (A/C 81041788) 13,128,371 1,307,153
Savings A/CUS $ 2233593 530,026 7,868,108
Saving A/C- BOC-84023069 267,434 4,218,228
Saving A/C- 057-2-001-5-0031385 754,051 734,833
17,129,780 17,694,223
Investments 2
Fixed deposits at BOC 311,427,761 111,651,287
Fixed deposits at NSB 13,200,310 184,363,430
Fixed deposits in US $ at BOC 338,600,727 358,769,520
Fixed deposits at People's Bank 28,608,269 26,377,137
Fixed deposits at SMIB 13,923,958 -
705,761,026 681,161,373
Receivables & deposits 3
Receivable-programme fees 26,267,550 30,240,000
Accrued interest 8,209,067 47,572,702
Vehicle hiring charges 268,167 71,808
Prepayments 754,534 705,895
Receivable - deposits - -
Sundry debtors 66,213 66,213
Deposits for services 150,000 150,000
Miscellaneous Advance 15,000 35,000
35,730,531 78,841,617
2024 2023
Note Rs. Rs.
Loans & advances to staff 4
Current Non current Total Total
Distress loan 953,836 2,584,444 3,538,280 3,646,702
Computer loan 63,000 115,000 178,000 203,000
Vehicle loan 229,530 231,354 460,884 403,375
Staff loan 12,240 29,580 41,820 31,830
1,258,606 2,960,378 4,218,984 4,284,907
Inventories 5
Stationery 2,700,240 4,019,380
Chemicals 985,191 993,206
3,685,431 5,012,586
Intangible assets 6
Computer Software
Cost:
Opening balance 1,712.522 1,712,522
Additions 666,070 -
Balance as at end of 2,378,592 1,712,522
Accumulated amortization
Opening balance 957,290 614,786
Amortization charge 283,556 342,504
Balance as at end of 1,240,846 957,290
Net book value 1,137,746 755,232
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Property,plant & equipment

(Note 7)

Rs.
Buildings Telephone Laboratory & Library Motor Office Sport Total
teaching equip. books vehicle equipment goods
Cost
Opening balance as at 1% January 2024 240,350,000 158,490 148,452,450 5,171,072 17,000,000 11,802,770 34,800 422,969,582
Adjustments/disposals/donation -
During the year additions 373,958 - 2,304,060 219,388 1,056,926 - 3,954,331
Closing Balance as at 31" Dec. 2024 240,723,958 158,490 150,756,510 5,390,460 17,000,000 12,859,696 34,800 426,923,913
Less: Depreciation
Opening balance as at 1% January 2024 24,035,000 30,839 29,683,537 2,011,742 6,800,000 2,271,711 17,400 64,850,229
Adjustments/disposals/donation =
During the year additions 12,017,500 15,849 30,016,327 1,073,884 3,400,000 2,492,736 8,700 49,024,997
Accumulated depreciation 36,052,500 46,688 59,699,864 3,085,626 10,200,000 4,764,447 26,100 113,875,226
as at 31" December 2024
Net book value as at 204,671,458 111,802 91,056,646 2,304,833 6,800,000 8,095,249 8,700 313,048,687

317 December 2024
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Notes 2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
Accrued expenses 8
Accrued expenses - recurrent 22,285,830 24,497,207
Accrued expenses - capital 55,800 142,302
22,341,630 24,639,509
Payables 9
Stamp duty payables 13,050 11,025
Paye tax payables 1,150,418 356,955
Withholding tax 10,750 -
Other payables-boards of study 9.1 2,745,705 1,824,438
Other payables-short courses & workshops 9.2 1,889,502 4,158,711
Security bonds 80,495 18,698
Retention Money 1,345,430 1,345,430
7,235,350 7,715,257
Other payable-boards of study 9.1
Board of study in chemical sciences 74,700 74,700
Board of study in earth sciences 2,288,840 1,484,933
Board of study in enviromental sciences 1,625 1,625
Board of study in physics 11,740 11,740
Board of study in plant sciences 121,706 4,346
Board of study in science education 99,537 99,537
Board of study in zoological sciences 48,957 48,957
Board of study in biomedical sciences 98,600 98,600
2,745,705 1,824,438
Other Payables-short courses,workshops & oth: 9.2
Advance certificate course in org.chemistry 220,822 560,222
ICMME-2021 - 19,995
Consultancy project-GSMB - 439,840
125th S/C on GIS & its application - 340,742
W/S on neuro science - 2022 - 39,585
Consultancy project-Mahaweli Authority - 59,060
128th S/C GIS & application - 803,907
Japanese Green Youth Project 934,404 602,275
Advance certificate course in Biomedical Science 169,075 169,075
Pathegen Genomics Symposium-2023 43,800 61,000
S/C in Bioinformatics 304,135 997,000
W/S on PCPREE - 66,010
125th S/C on GIS & its application 217,265 -
1,889,502 4,158,711

.




2024 2023
Notes Rs. Rs.
10
Deposits Current Non current Total
Library deposits 3,596,000 1,042,000 4,638,000 4,688,000
Science deposits 3,007,500 928,500 3,936,000 3,954,000
Other deposits 193,009 . 193,009 196,012
6,796,509 1,970,500 8,767,009 8,838,012
Provisions 11
Provision for audit fees 1,325,250 625,250
Provision for security 130,000 -
1,455,250 625,250
12
Retiring gratuity
Balance as at 1% January 7,791,951 7,204,069
Charge for the year 12.1 2,824,273 1,893,695
10,616,224 9,097,763
Payvments made during the year - (1,305,812)
Balance as at end of December 10,616,224 7,791,951
Charge for the Year 12.1
Past service cost - 119,538
Interest cost 1,012,954 1,296,732
Current service cost 685,535 477 424
‘et actuarial (gain)/loss recognised immediately 1,125,784 =
Expenses recognized in the income statetment 2,824,273 1,893,695
Funds 13
Scholarship fund-Prof. Amarasinghe 1,638,369 1,542,907
Research & scholarship funds 2,395,265 1,188,367
Workshop & event fund 7,151,884 6,937,852
11,185,518 9,669,126
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Restricted funds Note 2024 2023
G. No. Grantee Name Grant Name 14 Rs. Rs.
6242 Prof. HM.T.G.A Pitawala Value addition to SL laterites - 50,140
5202 Prof: D Yakandawala AustriaP 33148 B 319,782 639,563
6293 DrTMW] Bandara PGIS/2020/05 7 113,476
5224  Dr.H.A.CKAriyarathne PGIS/2020/23 - 86,421
5295  Dr.B.M.K.Pemasiri PGIS/2020/10 - 259,445
5206 DRT.ILKR DeSilva PGIS/2020/04 ; 122,700
2207 DRW.RP.Wijesinghe PGIS/2020/17 . 15,639
2208 Prof.U.A ] Pinidiyaarchchi PGIS/2020/06 . 118,100
62 Dr.N.W.B.Balasuriya PGIS/2020/18 394,900 394,900
630 Prof.D.M.D.Yakandawala PGIS/2020/21 = 116,550
5202 DrP.L Dharmapriya PGIS/2020/03 » 21,155
6303 Prof.W.B.Daundasekara PGIS/2020/24 & 100,000
5304 Prof.K.B.Ranawana PGIS/2020/22 5 1,433
5306 Prof SH.P.P.Karunarame  URCgrant-280 - 300,000
6313 Prof.Bandara Swedish Research Council - 780,503
=317 Prof.D.M.D.Yakandawala Conservation of Water Trumpet 4,799,889 6,538,400
5,514,571 9,658,424

-18 -




2024 2023
Notes Rs. Rs.

nterest income 15
Fixed deposit interest 57,962,495 99,151,016
RFC interest 18,928 68,426
=21t loan interest 192,793 177,401
savings interest 73,318 6,000

58,247,533 99,402,843
senerated Income 16
Programme fees 54,314,979 51,265,751
Fegistration fees 2,564,900 2,230,500
“wamination fees 1,748,546 1,819,450
Zesearch congress income 776,500 451,739
Medical fees 129,250 37,550
services & facilities fees - 20,000
“ehicle hiring charges 1,146,400 975,820
Library tickets 475,500 372,000
Supervision fees 1,330,000 787,500
Bench fees 877,500 1,013,000

63,363,575 58,973,310
“Miscellaneous income 16.1
Printing income 52,188 78,868
A dministration charges 672,990 614,440
Certificate fees 1,006,800 1,136,990
Fooftop reservation income 30,000 107,000
Application processing fees 975,000 724,000
*RD analysis income 22,500 334,500
*REF analysis income 565,200 509,500
Other income 1,202,797 2,297,542
Degree verification income 45,215

4,572,690 5,802,839 |
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Personal emoluments 2,024 2,023

Personal emoluments (Academic) 17
salaries and wages 2,651,663 3,806,825
University provident fund 959,206 794,893
“cademic EPF 74,126 80,178
Employee Trust Fund 210,223 179,575
~cademic allowance 3,784,944 4,189,357
Other allowances 297,699 259,836
A dditional allowance - 20% 348,060 348,060
Cost of living 575,812 272,811
Research allowance 609,105 609,105
“cademic monthly allowance 116,220 118,750
Visiting lecture fees 13,196,854 9,569,147
22,823,911 20,228,538

Personal emoluments (non academic) 17
szlaries and wages 13,014,767 13,217,420
University Provident Fund 1,700,954 1,506,702
Pension fund 1,788,493 1,588,121
Employee Trust Fund 714,217 625,989
Orvertime 1,603,626 1,776,495
Holiday payments 253,294 198,338
Jther allowances 93,335 91,981
\Monthly Compensation Allowance - MCA 5,646,214 5,518,215
Gratuity 2,824,273 1,893,695
Research allowance 563,337 363,888
Additional allowance - 20% 2,509,428 2,452,540
Cost of living 5,146,242 2,223,899
\Monthly allowance 1,419,839 1,425,576
EPF 65,309 28,095
Staff benefits 129,264 140,281
37,472,594 33,051,234

Personal Emoluments (Casual) 17
Casual Wages 694,000 383,000
694,000 383,000
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2024 2023
Notes Rs. Rs.
Travelling and subsistence 18
Iravelling expenses (domestic) 162,017 128,280
162,017 128,280
Supplies 19
Stationery & office requisites 2,471,018 1,667,408
Fuel & lubricants 1,588,172 1,684,675
\Mechanical & electrical 223,548 538,807
C“hemicals & glassware 876,374 549,2?_3_
5,159,113 4,440,122
Maintenance 20
Vehicles 1,633,687 1,398,796
Plant, machinery & equipment 3,685,599 2,721,877
Suildings & structure 518,760 192,415
5,838,046 4,313,088
“ontractual services 21
lelecommunications 5,229,171 6,849,440
Postal charges 333,880 363,510
Electricity 2,042,631 2,341,536
security services 1,321,645 1,092,141
ater charges 154,175 164,693
_leaning services 1,600,686 1,757,264
10,682,188 12,568,583
Other recurrent expenditure 22
“rinting and advertising 471,871 617,368
Ludit fees 700,000 650,000
~pecial services, councils & commitees 1,682,452 1,096,026
=pecial services, professional & others 116,445 18,995
" orkshops & seminars 486,370 280,508
~iaif development - 10,000
Holiday warrants 68,175 91,825
Sank charges 392,319 326,705
“wards & indemnities 1,070,000 400,000
“xamination expenses 4,133,002 2,856,740
_ther expenses 1,074,664 735,055
~:atf welfare 452,859 439,825
~tudent welfare 25,000
L =2al & documentation charges 1,178,798 852,270
_onvocation 500,000 -
~cademic research - 311,800
PCIS research congress 1,562,471 804,171
=zamp duty expense 18,375 20,150
_niversity insurance scheme 194,400 135,000
Hesearch grant expenditure 8,620,055 8,903,225
[ osses & write-off 3,875,000 a0
26,622,255 18,552,163
Depreciation 23
Buildings 12,017,500 12,017,500
Telephone 15,849 15,539
Lab & teaching equipment 30,016,327 29,683,537
Zooks and periodicals 1,073,884 1,005,988
Difice equipment 2,492,736 2,271,711
“Motor vehicles 3,400,000 3,400,000
=ports goods 8,700 10,440
49,024,997 48,404,715
158,479,121 142,521,974
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POSTGRADUATE INSTITUTE OF SCIENCE

TRIAL BALANCE AS AT 31°" DECEMBER 2024

%LCCSLI)J];\TT ACCOUNT NAME DR AMOUNT (RS.) | CR AMOUNT (RS.)
10003 CASH BOOK A/C057100191338034 731,553
0002 CASH BOOK A/C 0001274002 1,187,590
10001 CASH BOOK A/C 0001273990 530,754
20007 CASH BOOK A/C NO 81041788 13,128,371
10320 SAVING-BOC NO: 84023069 267,434
13000 ACCRUDE INCOME 8,209,067
13100 RECEIVABLE VEHICLE HIRING CHARGES 268,167
12002 COMPUTER LOAN 178,000
<000 DEPOSIT FOR SERVICES- FUEL 150,000
2000 DISTRESS LOAN 3,538,280
01006 PREPAYMENTS 754,534
13200 RECEIVABLE PROGRAMME FEE 26,267,550
15000 RFC 530,026
310 SAVING-P.AMARASINGHE SCH.FUND 754,051
2003 STAFF LOAN 41,820
004 STOCK AS AT 31ST DECEMBER 3,685,431
001 SUNDRY DEBTORS 66,213
2004 VEHICLE LOAN 460,884
02 MISCELLANEOUES ADVANCE 15,000
30700 SUNDRY CREDITORS 55,800
23110 5% RETENTION ON CAPITAL WORKS 1,345,4304
2162 129TH S/C ON GIS & ITS APPLICATION 217,265
300 ACCRUED EXPENSES 22,285,830
23020 BOARDS OF STUDY CHEMICAL SCIENCE 74,700/
23030 BOARDS OF STUDY EARTH SCIENCE 2,288,8404
23040 BOARDS OF STUDY ENVIRONMENTAL 1,625
13060 BOARDS OF STUDY PHYSICS 11,740
23070 BOARDS OF STUDY PLANT SCIENCE 121,706
23080 BOARDS OF STUDY SCIENCE EDUCATION 99,537
23100 BOARDS OF STUDY ZOOLOGICAL SCIENCE 48,957
23112 BOARD OF STUDY BIOMEDICAL SCIENCE 98,6OOH
20100 DEPOSITS 193,009
23200 DEFFERED INCOME 11,639,151
20004 LIBRARY DEPOSIT 4,638,000
954 PAYETAX 1,150,418
952 WITHHOLDING TAX 10,750
31520 ADVANCE COURSE IN ORGANIC CHEMISTRY 220,822
2082 PROF.P AMARASINGHE SCHOLARSHIP FUND 1,638,369
30005 SCIENCE DEPOSIT 3,936,000
30200 SECURITY BOND 80,495
950 STAMP DUTY 13,050
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POSTGRADUATE INSTITUTE OF SCIENCE

TRIAL BALANCE AS AT 31°T DECEMBER 2024

. __‘:%E“ ACCOUNT NAME DR AMOUNT (RS) | CR AMOUNT (RS.)
. |ADVANCE CERTIFICATE COURSE IN P
BIOMEDICAL SCIENCES /
2135 |JAPANESE GREEN YOUTH PROJECT 934,404
238 |s/C ON BIOINFORMATICS 304,135
2120 |W/S ON PATHEGON GENOMICS SYM-2023 43,800
> GENERAL RESERVES 986,542,402
s RESEARCH & SCHOLARSHIP FUNDS 2,395,265
73 REVALUATION RESERVE 130,527,591
¢ WORKSHOPS & SHORT COURSE FUND 7,151,884
: ACA-ACADEMIC ALLOWANCES 3,784,944
212 |aca-ADDITIONAL ALL. 20% 348,060
52120 JAcA-coL 575,812
s |ACAET.F 210,223
10 |ACA-OTHER ALLOWANCE 297,699
3 |ACA-MONTHLY ALLOWANCE 116,220
4121 |ACA-RESEARCH ALLOWANCE 25% 609,105
e ACA-SALARIES & WAGES 2,651,663
123 |ACA-EPF 74,126
a0 |acaupE 950,206
$11 |AUDIT FEES 700,000J
: BANK CHARGES 392,319
511 |AWARDS & INDEMNITIES 1,070,000
-1 [BUILDING & STRUCTURES 518,760
1219 |CASUAL VAGES 694,000
205 |CHEMICAL & GLASSWARE 876,374
207 |CLEANING SERVICES 1,600,686
50 |DEPRECIATION - BUILDING 12,017,500
253 |DEPRECIATION - LAB & TEACHING EQUIP 30,016,327
25:  |DEPRECIATION - LIBRARY BOOKS 1,073,884
56 |DEPRECIATION - MOTOR VEHICALS 3,400,000
55 |DEPRECIATION - OFFICE EQUIPMENTS 2,492,736
551 |DEPRECIATION - TELEPHONE 15,849
58 |DEPRECIATION - SPORT GOODS s,moA
057 |DEPRECIATION - INTANGIBLE ASSET 283,556
w804 [ELECTRICITY 2,042,631
914 |EXAMINATION EXPENSES 4,133,002
<2 lFuBLL & LUBRICANT 1,588,172
1014 |GRATUITY 2,824,273
208  |HOLIDAY WARRANT &SEASON TICKETS 68,175
812 |LEGAL & DOCUMENTATION CHARGES 1,178,798
2404  |MECHANICAL & ELECTRICAL GOODS 223,548
216 |NON ACA. RESEARCH ALL. 35% 563,337
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POSTGRADUATE INSTITUTE OF SCIENCE

TRIAL BALANCE AS AT 31°" DECEMBER 2024

“:CC?[;‘EE\'T ACCOUNT NAME DR AMOUNT (RS.) | CR AMOUNT (RS.)
=L210 NON- OTHER ALLOWANCE 93,335
21208 NON- OVERTIME 1,603,626
84203 NON-ACA PENTION 1,788,493
=104 NON-ACA- ET.F 714,217
54202 NON-ACA- UPF 1,700,954
2212 NON-ACA-MCA.20% 5,646,214
2201 NON-ACA-SALARIES 13,014,767,

4217 NON-ADDITIONAL ALLOWANCE 2,509,428
L2720 NON-COL 5,146,242
L1209 NON-HOLIDAY PAYMENTS 253,294
122 NON-STAFF BENIFIT 129,264
272 NON ACA-MONTHLY ALLOWANCE 1,419,8391
4205 NON-EPF 65,309
915 OTHER - NEWSPAPER MAGAZINES ECT 1,074,664
926 PGIS INSURENCE SCHEME 194,400
80935 PGIS RESEARCH CONGRESS 1,562,471
702 PLANT , MACHENARY & EQUIPMENT 3,685,599
803 POSTAL CHARGES 333,880
§10 PRINTING ADVERTISING ECT 471,871
805 SECURITY SERVISES 1,321,645
%0903 SPECIAL SERVICES - PROFESSIONAL & 116,445
OTHER FEES !
202 SPECIAL SERVICES COUNCIL & COMMITIES 1,682,452
30 STAFF WELFARE 452,859
275 STAMP DUTY EXPENSE 18,375
o1 STATIONARY & OFFICE REQUISIITES 2,471,018
802 TELECOMMUNICATION 5,229,171
301 TRAVELLING EXPENSES (DOMESTIC) 162,017
701 VEHICLES 1,633,687
916 VISITING LECTURE FEES 12,875,220J
920 FIELD VISIT EXPENSES 321,635
806 WATER CHARGES 154,175
S04 WORKSHOP & SEMINAS 486,370
939 STUDENT WELFARE 25,000
913 CONVERCATION EXPENSE 500,000
241 RESEARCH GRANT EXPENDITURE 8,620,055
945 LOSSES & WRITE OFF 3,875,0001
40 INTANGIBLE ASSET 2,378,592
00 BUILDING 240,723,958
095 FINANCIAL MISAPPROPRIATION A/C 50,119,123
2003 LAB & TEACHING EQUIPMENTS 150,756,510
004 LIBRARY BOOKS 5,390,460]
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POSTGRADUATE INSTITUTE OF SCIENCE

TRIAL BALANCE AS AT 31°" DECEMBER 2024

- _:h:“JE‘}-E\T ACCOUNT NAME DR AMOUNT (RS.) | CR AMOUNT (RS.)

05 MOTOR VEHICLES 17,000,000}

06 OFFICE FURNITURE EQUIPMENTS 12,859,696

SPORTS GOODS 34,800

2 TELEPHONE 158,490*
292 AUSTRIA-PROF: D YAKANDAWALA 319,782
290 PGIS/2020/18-DR.N.W.B.BALASURIYA 394,900F
7 CONSERVATION OF WATER-TRUMPET IN S/L 4,799,889
Ll LA, ADMINISTRATION CHARGES 672,990
05 APPLICATION PROCESSING FEE 975,000|
= BENCH FEE 877,500
0073 CERTIFICATE FEE 1,006,800
N EXAMINATION FEES 1,748,546

06 EXCHANGE GAIN /LOSS 36,039,585
o= INTEREST FROM SAVING A/C 73,318

IN

—, _:DT\]EEEISCTE;NCOME FROM LOANS & 192793
06 INTEREST INCOME ON FD 57,962,495
=005 INTEREST ON RFC 18,928
S LIBRARY TICKET 475,500
70025 M.PHIL & PH.D TUTION FEE 579,000
T0( MEDICAL FEE 129,250}
007 MISCELLANEOUS INCOME 1,202,797
07 PRINTING INCOME 52,188
7 REGISTRATION FEE 2,564,900)
076 RESCON INCOME 776,500
04 ROOFTOP RESERVATION CHARGES- 30,000
TSt SUPERVISION FEE 1,330,000
2 TUTION FEES 53,735,979
BLLE VEHICAL HIRING CHARGES 1,146,400
0077 XRD ANALYSIS INCOME 22,500
078 XRF ANALYSIS INCOME 565,200
079 DEGREE VERIFICATION INCOME 45,215
3103 REASEARCH GRANTS INCOME 3,625,077

0 FIXED DEPOSIT - BOC 311,427,761

200 FIXED DEPOSITS - PEOPLES BANK 23,608,269J

10 FIXED DEPOSIT - BOC - RFC 338,600,727

500 FIXED DEPOSIT- NSB 13,200,310“

700 STATE MORTGAGE & INVESTMENT BANK 13,923,958
5720 PROVISION FOR GRATUITY 10,616,224
3000 PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION - BUILDING 36,052,500I
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POSTGRADUATE INSTITUTE OF SCIENCE

TRIAL BALANCE AS AT 31°" DECEMBER 2024

ACCOUNT NAME

DR AMOUNT (RS.)

CR AMOUNT (RS.)

PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION - LAB
TEACHING EQUIPMENT

PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION - LIBRARY
BOOKS

PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION - OFFICE
EQUIPMENT

PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION -
TELEPHONE

PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION
VEHICLES

PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION-INTANGIBLE
ASSET

PROVISION FOR AUDIT FEES

PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION-SPORT
GOODS

PROVISION FOR SECURITY SERVICE

- MOTOR

59,699,864
3,085,626
4,764,447

46,688

10,200,000}

1,240,846
1,325,250|
26,100

130,000

TOTAL

1,440,749,642

1 g;;!zgg!gzl
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Number of Postgraduate Degree Holders - 2024
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20 16

I ——
o Ph.D. M.Phil. M.Sc. Other Masters Diploma
Type of Degree
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BHwelsssl. 2 HeurTssiulL HF cpeod WTlWmIseT aupmRISLUULLOT. ABHD
SLEWIYMBTH SpTTUIEFS TRIWBISNeT UPEIS 2024 D Bp6v0TI960  6\l630T60TLILITGIH 6T
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6.1alehepmen Ll Linler Uiy PpeussSHear oprmuiFd srmdyed (RESCON) - 2024
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SEEEIRESCON 2

RESEARCH CONGRESS
Breaking Boundaries:
Collaborative Science for Global Challenges

3 Earth & Environmental Sciences

®._[CT, Mathematics, & Statistics Postgroonts nsHESG
\ ]

£
I strongly recommend the

Lanka. Discourse is vital for

9. Life Sciences oo sencs il
Congress will expose you.to.

¢ Physical Sciences awide range o esearch.

¥ Science Education Sir Paul M. Nurse
The Nobel Prize in Physiology or
Medicine 2001

Al in Biomedical Sciences

o Call for Abstracts 30" April 2024

¢ Abstract Submission Deadline 31% July 2024 == [
¢ Notification of Acceptance 15™ August 2024
 Submission of Revised Abstracts 30" August 2024
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Cuyrdflwy Omei. .uy QuBrymeiler HAplyewTwLem Fnlgw OHTLES elpT Heuduj 02 opo Had
BOLOUDDE. @RVEINS JTRILL  UOSMVSSIOE WwHHSH Ui sdHar @l (hevenilulwe Henm
Cupmdflwy  e1e1.8H.  SiehFem  deveur, HOIBIH.  UNBMVEHNS  Lsaflaleouraluied  Hiewm
Guymflwiy Lr)aﬂso‘ﬂ usﬁl&rm&,g, BurmOsailu uEmGHILE &Ml LILGH@T  SHevald  Hlewm
GuyrAflwy  etev.emeull.gBEBTWSES  SpBCWMTT  (pupemwowimest  GUEFTENTTHENMTE  H6VHSHIO\HTETIL
Fplen2ampB 2024 @1 QHTIOHI L Siwfe sl GeunMaTonTs BlenmeuenL [hHeor.
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6.2.1 2024 ®60 BEMLOUDD GCFWeEVLDT6YSH6IT, LOTBTHHE6T, Geulllenmiset

Bawsd | Heneoliy R (LDEIHENLOSH S 60
UL ./giemm./Mlensouwid/1Nfley Hesd)(@eir)
65 Ber QETEHILILLEISE Yol efleheprans; sevells 22.03.2024
Fenul
urLamemey @emewiiiys Sl O/l uflens . B | 2024 WomE
SiLILeDL U6Vl SHSHSHIEIG CHTLT @emd  oppTUIES eI QBT
ell.u.u.m (PGIS) e
YRF PGIS @animed gmur® Qauiuiiu L g gulged euemy
“Al 2 Let aewiell FBlyoordsbd: 2 ulfluied
aleheprenmiset  Hempuisd LyGwmsd”  sIem
semeolilev (pxhe0 RESCON (et Gaweviojey
ell.u.um (PGIS)/ o _ulj
swemeurmeny,  GuymrAfwy  Hwnegest  eterd. m@g‘,@gj(am@%bma‘a g—,eoamz; 31.07.2024
a8mdmis, wwHBAHUD —HAdFms  woHmw | FOU
eleneme sl elehEpTen  Hlewm,  eufeIeiwim
BTOET060E LBmedHpHD, VA, USA.
FoiBss By SGSSIEG LOYID B SID B
&MIS3 LTHT6H SDOTL6O elehEpTens HevalF 23, 24 pmeroL,
FemLl 2024.
RESCON  gpeit  Qawevojey  “ehehment
wdHauruie] semeouled  BxiFdl  GQumIHeL:
HILUBIBET LommId HobE HeNL (LPEnMB6T
PGIS/ 2 uly wmsgieu 28.08.2024
AUETEUT 6T, USA Geuulsli  usdsmevdsips | AlEhEHTaS H60alsF Fmu
@rarweralwsd Hemmgd Hemeveu Gumdfluiy
Guwluy oy 6v6T.
RESCON peit Qaweoojey “FjeuBsgd anl (h
. ) o PGIS/ 2 uly wmsaieu 26.10.2024.
SYITUIFSDW  26165@ 615560 oGhepTans HevelF Fenul
sreuy elehepTanmiser seval Femuulest (BoS) 19.20
“urd o_ulf GsmPemI D’ GNSs @reuh | HTeuT 6llEhEhTemise " )
&HeONF Femu @&8xmuy 2024

(2) mmeiT QaFwisvLDT6).
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Q&wevLoT6) @ (HEIS eI ILILITENTT HEVTHIH
gnymid iSHHI6HTTer.

. 1 wpmw 2
of.uu® (PGIS) @&t RESCON 2024 siuug (PGISYe wy oo
oGS eleheprans seell | poubuy 2024
Femul
10 Neterod  uUTLSIH LSHeT  UTLSH_LEIH6NT
wopmd Bl saisdhHed  ulLITST  Ligliy
(SLQF 9) wpmid Mg samisshdled UL nfer
uigl eMehepmeond (SLQF 10) opdlweumenmil
umm B6VHGIMTWITL SIBBMTOUNLW | Hewildh Hevall Femu 04.12.2024

SU0eTT Fal LLD.
GUEITEUT 6T : ENOIIEE:S Ol A6TOL_ 63T
LOBMVEBLESMEBF  CFjbhs  Curmdfluy

SLO6VM  [JITSH6U6IT.
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7. valz O Guenss eusnmieflan DiTalHoHS

7.1 1003 6UENEIS6N

opemnget Gurgl  ef.u.um (PGIS) whmid SLsder seoelgmym samfluifsst @@ Syllernmd

BnieussHHaT BevdHGHHMmen SMLaIHNEG Gumoduime GFameusnul eUpBIF6].

7.1.1 sevalemy ugalwesd (sumens )

ABraoL  Gupnm./ | FGraL
S001F FLI UTLLD Gumd | Gugr./ @eve. alifleyenyuim Qauig)
Bup o1y I sr ey
allfleyeny
WIT 6T}
o ully fdFema 2 _uilr GysTwenealuwied 10 13 5
@.U&rr{ustﬂsfﬂu_ls\) GoreumbeE 2 uIfws 04 07 10
Lo OamAHIL LD
LP6VSSn M
2 _ulflwed
uGLUTUIey GraFTweialulsd 05 11 16
@yamuier
P mBHEBTH0 @gamueialiisd - - -
B Geo1m 6 (6h(EhHTeILD LoMmILD B Geurm 20 27 05
QamPmIL LD
yal eflehEpmeoid GIS wpmid Gxrensowpged
yeld elghepmenid S BIFELD
02 07 02
BI6UST (PBTEMIDGGIoLD 06 09 -
SMMTL60 2 uTflwed LISEIENSHE S ENLOE,LD60 10 07 04
Y p——. SOmIeoTaliey
G060 e(6h(EHTEILD 12 10 03
SeisD DESOBTPO SEHHLD 01 11 -
Guengsaud FLOQUT@®eT GuenHsaiuied - - -
WHSSI QUeTEBaTLIED 05 15 -

Sreuy  ellighEhTeunLd

WSS BHlewamuifluied

WSS BHlewauifluied
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6)5]@@“’601&» alehepTerrs sevailulled IlIGmTLOm 02 12
&606l e Tens meoad (Femm) 06 16 -
alehepTerrds SHevad 10 - 04
L|6T[6Tﬂ UrGuwira yeTefalugealiisd 02 12 -
aluyaiwed P P A 06 10 -
LOMMILD HT6 6EhEhTeILD 05 15 -
SHeuoTeunuuled
FHB6160 QBTGB LILD _ - -
6\1l(6h (6HTEILD
alevmIdwIed W@®SHi6 Hlemamuiifwied - - -
GLoTSS1D 106 182 49
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7.1.2 gmidsflésiu’ L ugalweni wopmid SHOuTsW uSelwemiujb

2024 - omeadx Lgalwien

*) @65 (WasTmwHGHen o2 Falwmen] Geummid SefliulL pempulled @euy BlubleasluLo.

Baeneu ugeil gwouer GOUIG | wsr.GF. &. 2 _giemeur.ugheaiuwleui \Vi
aImS Simis BIhSILD SHNBTEIHLD QeumL_si
oI
SByaa uessTLILITeTy U-AC5 01 01 00 00
L TS T U-AC5 05 00 00 05
@ememn GLyTSFwy. U-AC4 00 00
AByadL aNfleyenyuwimen(y / U-AC3 00 00
alfleyemywimeny/  elfleyemywimeny
(BHMBENLD  BHIT6UT)
fBreagL o gal udeureny/ Nyd U-EX2 01 01 00 00
ugleurerny
fGyagL. o gal mHwmery / U-EX?2 01 01 00 00
dyg Biglumeny
wapmd | 2 el ugleurenny 2 gl U-EX1 01 01 00 00
Blenev ugleumery
West  Qurpluiwimeny U-EX1 01 01 00 00
elghEpmen o gealwirery U-AS1 01 01 00 00
@rewiLmd | Gzmiepliy 2 SFHCLTEHS] U-MT1 01 00 00 01
Blenev (Audio Visual)
STV CTRE R G ) U-MT1 03 01 01 01
(Contract
Basis)
WETmIHSHIe 2 SIWTen] U-MNI 08 11 00 1%)
04
pETMIDSSIO 2 SaliTery U-MN I 01 01 00 00
(s6M(ehdwIb)
(PSTENLDSSI6U 2 _gellwmeny U-MNI 01 01 00 00
(B6mISE emeuLlL])
SJIdu Fnyg) U-PL3 03 02 00 01
Blenev
levTeTluIsOm 6Ty U-PL3 01 00 00 01
pu1a|Fal Goeomeniy U-PL2 01 00 00 01
Gouemev 2_galwimeny U-PL1 04 03 00 01
Siens QUBDT @L G U-PL1 01 00 00 01
*oparels oyruisrs o selwimery BIIbST 02 00 00 02
*) snateds GFuIBISTL (Heor) BIIbST 02 00 02 00

**) gmatels opITuIFs o gelwmeny womid SHeETeds QFulg ST (BT] U BIhST IS
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7.2 QuenBd CUETEIHGEIT
HB6U60 OHTROHI L LWeTUT(H

SiLLeuewent 1 : $.0zM1. 2 LslLemwliy /[ SpuieEmLBissT | Genewiwd

LDIT 603161 ] & (61 &b G T 60T LDIT 603161 ] & (615 &b & T 60T LOTEOIEUTBOHBBTEI  H6V6NEDBBTET

DL UI6)Fn LRI 616e0r B EUOTEUT B 6T SLU16)|Fn LRI 61T6e0r SHETETB6IT
6161600115 69 6161600115 69 GTGUOTG01 b 61 & 6161600115 60 B
(s606&MY) (ss06wevmeNy;
5 192 5 3

SI_L6euenenr 2: IT Peripherals (202180&wuj 31 &60 2 _eiemeurmi)

No.
LDIT6UOT6UT B(6THBBTEN  BHEVIGHIBET  6T6T0T6001Eb 6 &
Gwend & euuTetm6iT 137
s sevvtenl /| QLI 55
Byeurs uHaNINEETET HeuvTellE6T — 6T6vT6uihemae
Goeng & 6uuT6sNHB61T 4
s Hevorell / QLI 4
He0agT] ugSelwenl 2 Hal 2mOUTsEhbETET Sl 6lamienilsamd
Geng & 6uuT6sNHB61T 3
s @ewies /| QLI 1
B60lFTIT 2eNITHEHBBTE HEIHIEH6T  6T6NTI6wIHM S
CohHT STt EH61T 6160165018560 20
(€2:4) V] - Y91 Sl (20 (21 3T0): 11
oiFal Tydh SUbATEIE6T eeuienibms (H6TJH) 2
siFs0 Gy Quibdymiser Geogiy 15
scanners erevitemildemn s 1
gemer m.f. smelser - 19 ed GawprdE GuTeim
GOLOTTL.  Lj6vens 6
Qsul QoM 5
a9 60 GasLomT 1
U160 FnLHRIS6MN6T  cTemTenildems 5
@AIQAITH SpUI6FnL SHEVIET6N  &6uuTesNBe 56,68,55,5,8
BMEILI  DIED)IHE)IEHTE LD CIOTEUT BETHEBBT6N  H6vslleullab6lT 6163916001 60 H 192
BMETL  DIED)IBEIEHHTE  LIGTIUITE] B ETHH BT &H6wTledNabeN 6160016515608 24
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8. Bijouns oD PHAFTT SiML6YBEIT

8.1.1 2023 wommid 2024s41> SyeIBHEMD GLOTHS CUHLOTEILD

2024 (emuim.) 2023(emuim.)

LSt (BHeU(HLD  LOTETLILD - -
W BF CewpurGest 63,363,575 58,973,310
TDI JADASF 2_66NH 6UDHLOTEEIS 6T 66,445,300 | 109,917,822
Qorssd | 129,808,875 | 168,891,132

8.1.2 2024 wpyrd 2023 Q61 cpevFeus GC@BmBLILIET6Y

LPEVGH 61 SITF BHFHwd FLIQUI  6U(HLOTGUTLD Qorsss G@T(HLiLeTe
QaT(HLueTeY

2024 (emuim) 2023 2024(emum) | 2023 (emum) 2024 (emuim) 2023 (emu)

(emum
&L I9L LD - 373,958 373,958
SpUIeYFaL D OHOID - 2,304,060 2,304,060 624,250
BNIHH60 2 _LIBJeuoId 624,250
STHWTeOW! ©_LIGJ6uoId -| 1,056,926 1,056,926 1,679,120
1,679,120

@Jfré"l&éf_rfm_ﬁﬁﬂ - 219,388 142,302 219,388 142,302
LI5S BRI 61T
OzTemeoBud - - 5,490 5,490
OLTgHzLo - 3,954,332 | 2,451,162 | 3,954,332 | 2,451,162

Capital Expenditures - 2024

Postgraduate Institute of Science

Office Equipment
LKR 1,056,926
27%

Cibrary Books
LKR 219,388

@ Buildings
W Lab & Teaching
Equipment

OLibrary Books

0O Office Equipment




8.1.3 e g GFevailesd

BapFA GFevalend (emHUIT)
Sliul L CoudbedImiseT - &He0aIFT 22,823,911
SOMUULL GoubemmIEeT - HEOOIFTIT 33,166,594
GursGaursad CFevaied 162,017
Gurs@Gaursa CFevaied 5,159,113
ugmofliy QFevailed 5,838,046
RUUBS Caemeusmer 10,682,188
gemel LewT(heuh GFevaileid 26,622,255
ufllorMmed BLL LD 36,039,585
Qumiorend Gzpuley 49,024,997
QLOTHSHLD 194,518,706

Recurrent Expenditure - 2024

Postgraduate Institute of Science

@ Personal emoluments-
Academics

@ Personal emoluments-Non
Academics

BTravelling

BSupplies & consumables

@ Maintenance

[ Contractual services

OOther expenses

DExchange loss

©  @Depreciation
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8.1.4 pl& weGamm Spuley

(Q&evaied)

ellL_wib 2024
LEL(CRIGT 92%
CLPEVSEIILD 77%

8.1.5 piFamy QFweommmed G HTLFLIT6wT

allLwid

@@ LoTavabHEBT OFevaieid

@b LomewIeU(HBHTe Wewi(h eumL GaFevaied (15.0&)

BB G UL 15ewTOL (1LpLd
OFevalasemnsd SlgliuenLwins Camei(h
SeilILLuL. Geuewt(hLd

8.1.6 N8 @mESH, UWLIT(H LOHUID (LPBTEHLD

2815856 (Bev.)

AwLgd LwSLBGSSWS (1H61)

(LP6OSHET  LOMEUTILILD

BemiOL (D Lomefluid

8.1.7 denLds o ymiFs relwmsst (Geuefleurfl wrefwd, 2018-2024)

3Lw(H opymuIFs  omefwimisees Gumiodl (emui.)
eTewT e N
2018 4 14,001,100.00
2019 6 10,288,860.00
2020 4 995,000.00
2021 2 341,898.00
2022 - -
2023 02 9,259,199.51
2024 - -
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8.1.8 2024 syib syewigsd

aupmsiu’ L (Qeuelipri (G Bl&) epgruiFd wrefwsiseier eluymsise

orefw aeEIGaflen | GFupHLSHHHT SHmevLi GrHzs wTeiw 2024 ®60 2023 &60
Gy AE )Y QuImIGuENT6YBH6IT QFevailerd
(U U
Gur. _ ewsbsree | ouuj  Geigdar 2 ullf | Rs.2,793,776.96 | - 319,781.55
g;rrsyuafﬂu_lsu _ glenm | yeluluied LoMMILD €192310
aflghepmen L Ld emLG6VTQIeg6BTIg & 61D ’
C(;uurrS Q;Goﬁyrru frie | @mpbs el %%]U'J SEK 105,000
LoTSEBeILEY - SIS | Lo BEOMIBAEN | Rs.3,1 .
olehepmen (i tb Qe Hnemen $.3,155,080.80 | 434,281.29 1,214,784.29
GowuBSgIeuSMST6T
BITEU6D BT Geurr-
&L emLOLIL|SH61T
Gui. le.BbBToU | Qevmiemasulled Gumaenflen | USD 20,000 - -
STeuraiuied gleom | B EIBBIEND | R 4 1,738,510.69
Aoy b (BALCLI G s s.6,538,400.00
GuraGerfl) LTSHISTLIL
GLoT LD 434,281.29 | 3,273,076.53
8.1.9 gyb gyaiiged eupmIBILLL (QeuefiBT B BFH) prmuiFd wrelwmiseiear aluymise
orefu aupEGeflar Quwy CFuPH_ LA HamevLiy QLTSS 2023 @60 2023 @60
omesfw QuI6NETTEL S 6T Q& evailend
TN
(epui.) (ewuiT)

@ 60em6v

QLT&HFLD
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8.1.10 oyemiged PGIS eupmisliulL oppmuiFs wreflwmsefer elurmsiser

Lomesil CFruPH_LSHHH HMmevLI wrelu CsTens 2024 @60 2024 @60
GUPEIG Tl QLU QULIGUET6 B 6IT QFsvailesid
oG 1 | e 2 (ewu.) (ewum.)
seom.Ul ¢ siwiiiflu @!Dé’('gﬂls](_géﬂmg”ggﬁLﬂm%ﬂ$@ 499,750.00 | 620,000.00 208,045.00 229,200.00
. wpmib 69585T-QEGm
Ueflufiuied Sim, el gmgasidlym 60
elehepment 1L LD LIGOTLEB6TT  6)6uoTL 60 6uiflemaulest
wpemm: maml Brrsmyuetaeest
PGI15/2020/03 FTHALGMS Do) GELISHE
womib Cudler mMIFliysHedes
Burgl QLUTHOEIED & LPEVE6IT
wopmib CuelGwim STevFlensv
&L (HUUT(H 6N
Gugm.eaewr.L ety 9 | @eomiens BILOY SFTenuL: 500,000.00 | 500,000.00 - -
ureogful Leluluied | Guodu’ L LuwIesTUmL 19MEITest
Hlewm, elGh(EhTeot gHHefiy whyid uweTuT®
L
PGI1S/2020/18
SH6UM. 19 b LleTuy, | fymenur/ @ymiib (@ eumemiLLb 485,000.00 | 610,000.00 - 113,476.00
Ggg wemiLTy, yeTefdeT epsold &6evLiLy
Quipiwed ien, Gaageiismei HUID
alghepmen LiL1b Blai(pemasemenl LWTLGSS
PGI1S/2020/05 616081 Brrenevl_ (HEaMed FMIm
Cuna@aursHama
Gowu(BHHIUSHET (LPEVLD DG
FHL-Hlensv LemasLilL
LOl6TT, FFTUIETTEUUWIED & iflul
WeiidevmIBem6N  GLoLIBHSHISH6L.
seom. Ul b Gas QuUITSBLomen Gigged LTI 495,000.00 | 480,000.00 - 259,445.00
Guwodn) 616081 BT Ten 6L (h&B 6N
Quengsailied GLoLIBHHSHIUBET  CLPEVLD
HeWM, 61EhEhHTesr yemasluL 0aiGeoudluiuied gflus
UL WeiisevgHent QFuwievdmest
PGIS/2020/10 HOILD BlenevHgetienioudles
oueny&e
6o, LUleTuy.op7.0 | Beomiensullen STe0benL 500,000.00 | 500,000.00 64,085.48 79,724.00

alCxmAmis
STougaluled  Glenm,
ellehepment LD

PGIS/2020/17

BL6YB6EM60 DLeWTQLILITIQE
eI Ty &BLTGLomeutTerd
JHBCITFT LOHMILD
S1FQeCGLmursLy Guemiossie
S, WM LG
OxefeyubBHSH60.
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BEVT 615.6].8.6 sEImSUled allfed glene 500,000.00 | 620,000.00 | 87,079.00 173,500.00
S flwiygeor womib Un wesdw sHresiul
STeugeiuled lienm, uuiysefled mBleveyd
elehepmeot LI 1D GrTuIBEHL T QHTLTL LU
PGI1S/2020/23 LLEhENF ELP6ULD LIT6YLD
Grmulsha\mHLilsefen
LIGTT(LP&BSHSHE0T6NLD  LOMHMILD
aBGwITsLD
Guym.Shg ULy Qengdlen 2 ully 500,000.00 | 500,000.00 | 350,142.19 466,691.94
WISBHSH66V, yeluiuied ommibd
STeugaiwled Hlemm, mLGeorLeg6dTig 6D
elehepment 1L LD
PGI1S/2020/21
Gugm.Gas.1 gewteusy, | SeomInBUTET QDTTL 631 490,000.00 | 490,000.00 - 1,432.50
aleUEIEWLIG) FHlewm, Feuell Caflw ymiIsTaND
elehepmeot LI LD o 66N LD&H6T OFHTMD
PGI1S/2020/22 SIenoLIL LOMMID FTLOLITF
reHafe (pelemns HHHLD
(Rusa unicolor unicolor)
aeor. f.8  eifgsHen, | Qevmemaulen CFilhg 495,000.00 | 498,000.00 14,970.00 14,970.00
aleoEIEWIed FHlenm, meuBBLIULL  HTeNmIBaMN6s
allehepment LD u&Ff ysdsefiled
PGI1S/2020/12 YFFS0CBMe00 e1BlTLIY
Hlen6uEH6T LMMILD 6TAHTLIL
uL(Lp e 6IT
Gugm. Lilemuy,.d. Snbs @sIHmealan Fev 410,000.00 | 410,000.00 - 100,000.00
S|l Casy WISTTHSLOM6T  &BITIJ 600756061
HeNHeluled Giewm, | QENEILILISET (LP6VLD LI6D-
ellehepment LI LD AIMLIENETWITONT  LI6V-6UMBIGLIGUT
PGI1S/2020/24 POHES MBS FIb&
QUPERIGED  FRIFH: @(h
OFwmdmestmest om&iflufest
QUETTES] LoHMILD FHmenLowlmest
Bi6y B L.
SOV, 19.615.65. 94 | GsCymenm emeuyendlest 500,000.00 | 497,000.00 - 122,700.00
19 Seveur, HewiBsH FOMIFHLP60 LFIoTMHM &SI 681
slemm, 6lghehmeot Gxmall-19 uFeeUHMHETET
gL Hewlld LoTHfwmssd Hmib
PGI1S/2020/04 2_5bH3)|
&6V 6].6T610. BluyGrmGiogdml sraysefled 500,000.00 | 500,000.00 - 118,100.00
AbBiguimyméd SLIPLOMET  SBMMEN6VLI
LewILB6T LWSTLGSS  epenet
yeeialugyeaiuied Grruismend  &HemiLpleHe0
oML  61Gh(EH 6wt LOMMILD UM BLILIHHHIHED
Hlwm,  alghehTent
L 1b
PGIS/2020/06
seum.el. FougLory, URC syymuisdl wmeflund 280 600,000.00 | 600,000.00 - 300,000.00

STeurailled Hemm,
ellehepment LD
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Guym. e6r0.615.19.8 URC opgmuiFdl omesflund 265 620,000.00 | 620,000.00 485,697.70 485,697.70
BT ST,
alevBISluld Hiemm,
elehepmeot LI 1D
PGIS/2020/01
a?érgﬁﬂa,f NEES Qeommsuisr  WTpULTEISS0 424,000.00 610,000.00 | 759,902.42 759,902.42
aleVBIBUWId Hlienm, B(HLPL ML LoMHMILD Gumelest
ellghepmenn LiL1b BB GuiTerdlest
PGI1S/2020/02 . ) . .
QFBTHNICHTUIWED BpUIR|SH6NT
56\)"551&? . @eomiemsulled cpeaim GeusiGeum | 620,000.00 620,000.00 | - -
61LD.111.&1.6T610. . . ..
e £ @afen'gluﬁeﬂufﬂe\) fsrrsmuu@w
@yamuwenaiuled &6 eenLoullest oyLflento
(D M{IDRIPEDIn ] (pemm WOMID 1IDPe CUMSEMLL
o ulflwed Hiewm ] o
PGIS/2022/03 SINLLLITEIND  &TEMI5H60  LOMMILD
UM BLIL(HSHHIH60.
&,m)rr'@g,‘]' 6160.8. STUET LoHMID &6l 620,000.00 620,000.00 | 606,000.00 606,000.00
Guongsaiush owpssLpPsmms
Slenm LWSTU(BRSE BFSHSSEENIOWDD,
GmDHs elemey, Geulil e
PGI5/2022/04 Qummesefet eusmjFd MHMID
NG TT6m6wT.
BeoTBIZ Lil.6Terd. o® Gupmsl Gutmeledebs | 620,000.00 | 620,000.00 | 61,411.08 61,411.08
[BTE0TUISBITIT, ..
arageiue seop | 00 UBL BPGIss Hoaumar
BLLSH6T euenjFa.
PGIS/2022/06
&'Wj}”ﬁéﬂ Ge.g.19.81 CIENE T TG IGTRIEE AR 620,000.00 620,000.00 | 406,000.00 406,000.00
Sy FlwBsevr, . . .
BysTwaeILe @enmiseiled alens GFwsomm
Slenm seitemwo, GFOL BLHMS
OMID UTeUEDd DIVGH6far Fev
PG1S/2022/07 o _(Heu-@yFTweralluied L6 6.
mnﬁm&-mb-eé-&?- @eomiena Fleuli| 6w 603,530.00 | 616,310.00 | 34,111.04 34,111.04
UG flw, L . . .
STATOILED S, umimu@g,ﬂ Losm.amﬂ‘s\) gm.m
elehepmen 151D mlewteniwt  Lismmerdigss @ s eflen
GuLBHsUIULL @alFaFjsbme
PGI1S/2022/08 S
&H6VIT.61F.6TLD.Bb. 6T60T. 620,000.00 620,000.00 | 686,377.85 686,377.85

61F.CaryBevO® By
yelulwed glenm
PGIS/2022/09

o ufly ueLeUIFlwIeSe0
BuUDMa aleusmwsHHNE
LTHIUSET 6en6TTeSH6T

6U6MH
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POSTGRADUATE INSTITUTE OF SCIENCE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31°" DECEMBER 2024

Note As at 31/12/2024  As at 31/12/2023
Current assets
Cash & cash equivalents 1 17,129,780 17,694,223
Investments 2 705,761,026 681,161,373
Receivables & deposit 3 35,730,531 78,841,617
Loans & advances to staff 4 1,258,606 1,195,193
Inventories 5 3,685,431 5,012,586
Total current assets 763,565,374 783,904,992
Non current assets
Loans & advances to staff 4 2,960,378 3,089,714
Financial misappropriation - (2008-2016) 50,119,123 50,119,123
Intangible assets 6 1,137,746 755,232
Property, plant & equipment 7 313,048,687 358,119,353
Total non current assets 367,265,934 412,083,422
Total assets 1,130,831,308 1,195,988,414
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accrued expenses 8 22,341,630 24,639,509
Other payables 9 7,235,350 7,715,257
Refundable deposits 10 6,796,509 6,484,512
Deferred income 11,639,151 9,980,892
Provisions 11 1,455,250 625,250
Total current liabilities 49,467,889 49,445,420
Non current liabilities
Provision for gratuity 12 10,616,224 7,791,951
Funds 13 11,185,518 9,669,126
Refundable deposits 10 1,970,500 2,353,500
Total non current liabilities 23,772,242 19,814,577
TOTAL LIABILITIES 73,240,131 69,259,997
NET ASSETS 1,057,591,177 1,126,728,417
EQUITY
General reserves 921,549,015 967,212,281
Restricted funds 14 5,514,571 9,658,424
Revaluation reserve 130,527,591 149,857,712
TOTAL EQUITY 1,057,591,177 1,126,728,417

These financial statements are in compliance with the requirements of the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978
and other statutory provisions.
% Senior Assistant Registrar
""""" Postgraduate Institute of Science
Mrs.A.A.S.PuijwataishahPeradeniya
i Senior AssisPateRepi¥frarti Lanka.
eracentya—5riLar

verauenlyd, = of e . " "
The Board of Management is responsible for the ‘preparation and presentation of these financial statements
signed for and pn behalf of the Board of Management

......... S Deputy Bursar

MrB.G< kody Postgraduate Institute of Science
I linivars: ~F e 3

Deputy Bursar/ J..,,._r_.._:y ar s

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 6t0 13 form an integral part'of these Financial Statements.
25 February 2025



POSTGRADUATE INSTITUTE OF SCIENCE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°* DECEMBER 2024

Note 2024 2023

Revenue Rs. Rs.
Current
Revenue from non Exchange Transaction-Current
Government grant (Recurrent ) .
Research grant income 3,625,077 4,712,140
Total Revenue from non Exchange Transaction-Current 3,625,077 4.712,140
Revene from Exchange Transaction-Current
Interest income 15 58,247,533 99,402,843
Internal Generated Income 16 63,363,575 58,973,310
Other Income 16.1 4,572,690 5,802,839
Exchange gain
Total Revene from Exchange Transaction-Current 126,183,798 164,178,992
Total Revene -Current 129,808,875 168,891,132
Capital
Revenue from non Exchange Transaction-Capital . -
Total Revenue 129,808,875 168,891,132
Expenses
Current
Personal emoluments 17 60,990,505 54,115,023
Travelling 18 162,017 128,280
Supplies & consumables 19 5,159,113 4,440,122
Maintenance 20 5,838,046 4,313,088
Contractual services 21 10,682,188 12,568,583
Other expenses 22 26,622,255 18,552,163
Exchange loss 36,039,585 41,494,616
Total Expense(Non Capital ) 145,493,709 135,611,875
Capital
Depreciation 23 49,024,997 48,404,715
Amortization of intangible assets 283,556 342,504
Total Expense-Non Capital 49,308,553 48,747,220
Current surplus / deficit for the year (15,684,834) 33,279,257
Capital surplus / deficit for the year (49,308,553) (48,747,220)

(64,993,387) (15,467,962)




POSTGRADUATE INSTITUTE OF SCIENCE

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" DECEMBER 2024

2024 2023
Cash flows from operating activities
Surplus from ordinary activities (64,993,387) (15,467,962)
Non - cash movements
Depreciation & amortization 49,308,553 48,747,220
Interest income (58,247,533) (99,402,843)
Increase / decrease in provision for audit fees 700,000 80,750
Increase / decrease in provision for gratuity 2,824,273 587,883
Increase / decrease in provision for security charges 130,000 -
Increase / decrease in provision for visiting lecture fees - (11,467,691)
LosseswWrite -offs 3,875,000 -
Operating surplus before the working capital changes (66,403,094) (76,922,643)
Increase / decrease receivables (127,549) 4,025,358
Increase / decrease loans & advances 65,923 (63,772)
Increase / decrease inventories 1,327,156 (475,120)
Increase / decrease accrued expenses (2,297,879) 7,918,657
Increase / decrease payables 172,075 (3,434,619)
Increase / decrease refundable deposits (71,003) (206,421)
Increase / decrease deferred income 1,658,259 4,108,946
Net cash flow from operating activities (65,676,112) (65,049,614)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant & equipment (3,954,331) (2,451,162)
Purchase of intangible assets (666,070) -
Investment in fixed deposits (877,135,491) (476,182,524)
Withdrawal of fixed deposits 852,535,837 468,920,696
Interest income 97,613,058 74,296,993
Net cash flow from investing activities 68,393,003 64,584,003
Cash flows from financing activities
Scholarship fund 95,462 (183,718)
Receipts for research grants 434,281 9,898,763
Payments for research grants (3,811,076) (8,903,225)
Net cash flows from financing activities (3,281,333) 811,819
Increase / decrease in cash & cash equivalents (564,443) 346,208
Cash & cash equivalent at the beginning of the year 17,694,223 17,348,015
Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the year 17,129,780 17,694,223




POSTGRADUATE INSTITUTE OF SCIENCE

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON BUDGET & ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" DECEMBER 2024

2024 Actual 2024 Budget
Note Rs. Rs.

Revenue
Government grant (recurrent ) - -
Programme fees 54,314,979 59,000,000
Registration fees 2,564,900 3,000,000
Examination fees 1,748,546 2,300,000
Miscellaneous income 16.1 4,572,690 2,172,000
Research congress income 776,500 600,000
Medical fees 129,250 63,000
Vehicle hiring charges 1,146,400 900,000
Library tickets 475,500 596,000
Supervision fees 1,330,000 1,000,000
Interest income 15 58,247,533 56,175,000
Bench fees 877,500 1,000,000
Research grant income 3,625,077 -

129,808,875 126,806,000
Expenses
Personal emoluments 17 60,990,505 72,440,000
Travelling 18 162,017 1,100,000
Supplies & consumables used 19 5,159,113 8,780,000
Maintenance 20 5,838,046 6,310,000
Contractual services 21 10,682,188 13,023,000
Other expenses 22 26,622,255 25,153,000
Depreciation & Amortization of Intangible Ass 23 & 6 49,308,553 -
Exchange Loss 36,039,585 =

194,802,262 126,806,000
Net surplus/deficit for the year (64,993,387) -




POSTGRADUATE INSTITUTE OF SCIENCE

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSET/EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" DECEMBER 2024

Capital grant | Revaluation | Retained earnings Total
reserve
Balance as at 01.01.2024 - 149,857,712 967,212,281 1,117,069,993
surplus/ deficit for the period - - (64,993,387) (64,993,387)
Transfer to general reserve - (19,330,120) 19,330,120 -
remaining balance of revaluation
reserve as at 01.01.2024)
Balance as at 31 December 2024 - 130,527,591 921,549,015 1,052,076,606




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General information

1.1 Reporting entity

The Postgraduate Institute of Science (PGIS) was established in 1996 by an ordinance made by the

University Grants Commission under section 18 with section 24 of the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978.

1.2 Principal activities and nature of operations

The purpose of the PGIS is providing, promoting and developing higher education in science. The

principle objective of the Institute is to provide postgraduate instructions and training and facilitate

research in different disciplines of science.

1.3 Going concern

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Board of Management of the

Institute has assessed the ability to continue as a going concern and has a reasonable expectation that the

Institute has adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future. The Board of

Management does not foresee a need for liquidation or cessation of operations, taking into account all

available information about the future. Therefore, the Institute continues to adopt the going concern basis

in preparing the financial statements.

1.4 Reporting period

The financial period of the Institute represents a twelve-month period from 1% January 2024 to 31% December 2024.

1.5 Basis of preparation of financial statements

1.5.1

1.5.2

1.5.3

Statement of compliance

The Financial Statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Financial
Performance, Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statement, Notes to the financial

statements and Statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.

The Financial Statements of the PGIS are prepared in conformity with Sri Lanka Public Sector
Accounting Standards (SLPSAS). All accounting policies adopted by the PGIS are applied
consistently with those of the previous year. Change in accounting policies have been disclosed

separately.

Basis of measurement

The Financial Statements of PGIS have been prepared on accrual basis and under the historical cost

convention except where appropriate disclosures are made under relevant notes.

Comparative information

Comparative information including quantitative, narrative and descriptive information is disclosed
in respect of the previous period for all amounts reported in the financial statements, in order to

enhance the understanding of the financial statements of the current period and to improve
-6-



comparability. Where necessary, comparative figures have been re-arranged to conform to the

current year’s presentation.

1.5.4 Approval of financial statements
The Financial Statements of the PGIS were authorized for issue by the Board of Management of the
Institute at its 184™ meeting held on 14" February 2025.

1.5.5 Materiality and aggregation
Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the financial statements. Items of a
dissimilar nature or function are presented separately, unless they are immaterial.

1.5.6 Functional and presentation currency

The Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees, which is the Institute’s functional and
presentation currency. All financial information presented in Sri Lankan Rupees have been rounded

to the nearest thousand, unless stated otherwise.

1.5.7 Offsetting

Assets & liabilities and income and expense accounts have not been offset unless required by or
permitted by SLPSAS.

1.6 Significant accounting estimates and judgements

2.

The preparation and presentation of financial statements, in conformity with SLPSAS, requires
Management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Information about
significant areas of estimates, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have

the most significant effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is as follows.

Any changes in accounting estimates and critical judgements are disclosed in the relevant notes to the

financial statements.

Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1 Assets and the basis of their valuation

2.1.1 Property, plant & equipment (PPE)

Lands, Buildings, Laboratory and Teaching Equipment, Furniture & Fittings, Library Books and
Periodicals, Motor Vehicles, and Other Assets acquired out of government grants, internally

generated funds, research grants and donations are shown under PPE.



a) Basis of recognition and measurement
PPE are recognized, if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the entity and the cost of the items can be measured reliably. PPE are recorded at cost/revaluation
less accumulated depreciation. The cost of PPE is the cost of purchase or construction together with

any incidental capital expenses there on.

An item of PPE that qualifies for recognition as an asset is initially measured at its cost. Cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and subsequent costs.
The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials, direct labour, any other costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use, the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located. Purchased
software which is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as part of that
equipment. The cost of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises its purchase or construction cost

and any directly attributable cost of bringing the assets working condition for its intended use.

The Institute adopts the revaluation model for the entire class of PPE after initial recognition at cost.
If the carrying amount of a class of assets is increased as a result of a revaluation, the increase has

been directly credited to revaluation surplus.

All buildings and motor vehicles belonging to the Institute were revalued as at 01* January 2022 by
the Department of Valuation and other categories of assets except Laboratory and Teaching
Equipment and Office Equipment were re-valued by internally appointed committees and respective
adjustments resulting from the above revaluations have been made in the financial statements of the
Institute in accordance with the SLPSAS 07. The categories of Laboratory & Teaching Equipment
and Office Equipment were revalued by internally appointed committees as at 01.01.2023 and the

revaluation gain has been recognized through the statement of changes in equity.

b) Subsequent expenditure on PPE
Expenditure incurred on tangible fixed assets are charged to the Statement of Financial Performance
in the period it is incurred, unless it meets one or the following criteria, in which case it is

capitalized and depreciated on the relevant basis.

» Fair value of fixed assets has subsequently increased.

= Capacity of the asset increases.

=  Sustainable improvement in the quality of output or reduction in operating cost.

=  Significant extension of the asset useful lifetime beyond that confirmed by repair and

maintenance.



¢) Depreciation

Depreciation is recognized in the Statement of Financial Performance on a Straight-Line method
over the estimated useful life time of PPE from the date that they were made available for use.

Lands are not depreciated.

The estimated useful life periods of each class of assets are as follows:

Description Estimated Useful Life Time
Laboratory and Teaching equipment 5 Years
Motor Vehicles 5 Years
Library Books and Periodicals 5 Years
Telephone 10 Years
Other Equipment 5 Years
Buildings 20 Years
Sport Goods ; 5 Years

d) Land

2.1.2

2.1.3

The value of the lands on which the buildings of the PGIS constructed has not been included in the
financial statements of the Institute as the ownership has not been transferred to the PGIS. Hence
the value of the land has not been taken in to account. However, it is to be noted that PGIS is
attached to the University of Peradeniya (PGIS Ordinance No 01 of 1996 dated 12 February 1996).

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recognized only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that
the expected future economic benefits are attributable to it will flow to the Institute. The cost of the
Blue Lotus 360 Accounting software has been amortized over 5 years period commencing from
year 2019. Amortization of payroll system and the pixdamapper Educational classroom software
has been commenced from 2021 for five years keeping in line with the SLPSAS 19 (Intangible
Assets).

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost is determined on a first
in first out basis and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to

their existing condition and location.

2.1.4 Receivables

Receivables are stated at the amounts estimated to be realized.

2.1.5 Cash & cash equivalents

Cash & cash equivalents comprise cash & savings deposits at bank. The receipts & payments of the
foreign currency of the RFC 2233593 US § account, maintaining at the Bank of Ceylon, Peradeniya
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is converted in to local currency at the exchange rate existing on the dates of receipts and payments.
Exchange gain/loss has been calculated by using the Central Bank year end exchange rate and

recognized through the statement of financial performance.

2.1.6 Financial misappropriation amount of Rs 50,338,160.18

As per the special investigation audit report issued by Auditor General’s Department on
26/07/2018, the Auditor General’s Department has identified a capital loss incurred due to
obtaining money anomalously by cancelling fixed deposits by the former Senior Assistant Bursar,
Mr. WMM.SM Iddawala as Rs 50,338,160.18 (Excluding re-deposited amount of Rs
5,000,000.00). Further, it was identified in their report that interest income of Rs 24,346,723 has
also been lost due to fraudulently withdrawn fixed deposit by Mr. W.M.M.S.M Iddawala from
14/03/2008 to 30/11/2017. Action has already been taken to recover an amount of Rs. 219,037.00
from the gratuity amount payable amount to Mr. W.M.M.S.M Iddawala and action is being taken to
recover the balance amount lying to the credit of University Provident Fund of Mr. W.M.M.S.M

Iddawala.

Criminal case is going on at Kandy Magistrate Court under the Case No: MC/B/43167/17. Further,
Attorney General’s Department has lodged a civil case (No DC/1196/20) against Mr. W.M.M.S.M
Iddawala to recover the losses. Lawyers are of the view that there is a high possibility of recovering
the financial losses. Therefore financial misappropriation amount of Rs. 50,338,160.00 has been

categorized under non-current assets.

2.1.7 Liabilities & provisions

All known liabilities as at the balance sheet date are included in the financial statements and
adequate provisions have been made for liabilities which time and the amounts are uncertain.
Liabilities payable after one year from the balance sheet date are treated as non-current liabilities in

the statement of financial position.

2.1.8 Provision for gratuity

The provision for gratuity as at 31% December 2024 has been calculated by using Actuarial
Valuation method prescribed under SLPSAS 19 (Employee Benefits). Followings disclosures are

made in the accounts keeping in line with the requirements of the standard.

Actuarial Valuation of Gratuity Liabilities as at 31 December 2024

Rs.
Change in the Present Value of The Defined Benefit Obligation (PV-DBO)
Provision for PV-DBO as at 01 January 2024 = 7,791,951
Interest Cost for the period = 1,012,954
Current Service Cost for the period = 685,535
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on PV-DBO = 1,125,784
Provision for PV-DBO as at 31 December 2024 = 10,616,224
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AMOUNTS RECOGNIZED IN THE BALANCE SHEET AND INCOME STATEMENT

Liability recognized in the balance sheet

Provision for Gratuity as at 31 December 2024 = 10,616,224
Unrecognized actuarial Gains/(Losses) as at 31 December 2024 = -
Liability recognized in the balance sheet as at 31 December 2024 = 10,616,224

Expenses recognized in the income statement

Interest Cost = 1,012,954
Current Service Cost = 685,535
Expenses recognized in the Income Statement = 1,698,489

Expenses recognized in other comprehensive income statement

Net Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized immediately = 1,125,784
Expenses recognized in other comprehensive income statement = 1,125,784

Movements in_the Nei Liability Recognized in the balance sheet

Opening Net Liability as at 01 January 2024 = 7,791,951
Expenses recognized in the Income Statement = 1,698,489
Expenses recognized in other comprehensive income statement = 1,125,784
Gratuity paid/payable for those who left during the period = -

Closing Net Liability as at 31 December 2024 = 10,616,224

2.1.9 University Provident Fund (UPF) & University Pension Fund

The PGIS and employees contribute 15% and 10% respectively, on the salary of each employee to
the University provident fund in line with the respective statutes and legislations in Sri Lanka and
University Act. The University also contributes 8% to the University Pension Fund in respect of

pensionable employees in which case the contribution to the UPF from the PGIS is 7%.

2.1.10 Employees’ Trust Fund (ETF)

The PGIS contributes 3% on the salary of each employee to the Employees Trust Fund.

2.1.11 Accounting for grants

Grants that compensate the PGIS for expenses incurred are recognized as revenue in the income
statement in the same period in which the expenses are recognized. Grant that compensate the cost
of assets are recognized in the income statement on a systematic basis over the useful life of the
related asset as per the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard 20. (LKAS 20). The PGIS adopts income
approach of the standard when identifying capital grants.

Where grants /donations are received for use in an identified project or activity, such funds are held
in a restricted fund account and transferred to the statement of financial performance to match with
expenses incurred in respect of that identified project. Unutilized funds are held in their respective
grant accounts and included under restricted funds in the statement of financial position until such

time they are utilized for the intended purposes.

2.1.12 Research and scholarships fund & workshop & event fund

Research and development fund has been established by transferring dormant research grant

balances and workshop & event fund has been established by transferring dormant workshops and
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short courses balances with the approval of the Finance Committee and the Board of Management

of the Institute to be used for the defined purposes approved by the Board of Management.

3. Statement of financial performance
3.1 Recognition of revenue in the statement of financial performance

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by the
PGIS during the year and represents an increase in net assets/equity. The PGIS recognizes revenue
following the established criteria of SLPSAS 10 (Revenue from Exchange Transactions) and SPSAS 11
(Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions).

A) Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Non-exchange transactions are those where the PGIS receives value from another entity (e.g. cash or
other assets) without giving approximately equal value in exchange. Inflows of resources from non-
exchange transactions, other than services in-kind, that meet the definition of an asset are recognized

as an asset only when;

- It is probable that the PGIS will receive an inflow of economic benefits or service potential

- The fair value can be measured reliably

Inflows of resources from non-exchange transactions that are recognized as assets are recognized as

non- exchange revenue, to the extent that a liability is not recognized in respect to the same inflow.

The following are the specific recognition criteria related to the non-exchange transactions of the

PGIS.

a) Government grant

No recurrent or capital grant has been received by the PGIS during the year under review from the
General Treasury.

b) Gifts, donations and goods received in-kind

Gifts, donations are voluntary transfers of assets including cash or other monetary assets and
goods in-kind that the Institute receives which are free from stipulations. Gifts and donations and
goods in-kind received are recognized as non-exchange revenue when it is probable that the future
economic benefits or service potential will flow to the Institute and the fair value of the assets can
be measured reliably.
B) Revenue from Exchange Transactions
The following are the specific recognition criteria related to the exchange transactions of the PGIS.

a) Interest income

Interest income is recognized on accrual basis.
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b) Programme fees income

Programme fees income is identified under accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, programme
fees which are applicable to the current period are only identified as programme fees income for
the reporting period. Adjustments are made in the accounts for unpaid programme fees
(Receivables) and the excess programme fees paid are recognized as deferred income for the year
ended 31" December 2024.

¢) Recurrent grants
Revenue from recurrent grants is recognized in the period in which grant is received.
d) Research grants income & expenditure

When funds are received to be used in an identified project or activity, such funds are held in a
restricted fund account and transferred to the Statement of Financial Performance to match with
the expenses incurred in respect to that identified project or activity. Unutilized funds are held in
their respective fund accounts and are included in the Statement of Financial Position until such

time they are used for the intended projects or activities.
e) Other income
Other income are recognized on accrual basis.
f) Income from workshops, short courses, seminars ete
The administrative charge from Workshops, Short courses and Seminars are classified under the
miscellaneous income.

3.2 Recognition of expenditure in the statement of financial performance

Expenditure are recognized on accrual basis and are charged to the relevant expenditure heads in

ascertaining the income over expenditure for the year.

4. Cash flow statement

The cash flow statement has been prepared using the “Indirect Method” in accordance with the SLPSAS 2
where the gross cash receipts and gross cash payments of operating activities, financing activities and
investing activities have been recognized. Cash & cash equivalents are comprised of cash & bank

balances and short-term deposits.
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2024 2023
Cash & cash equivalents Note Rs. Rs.
1
Cash at bank (A/C 0001273990) 530,754 2,875,967
Cash at bank (A/C 0001274002) 1,187,590 518,491
Cash at bank (A/C 057100191338034) 731,553 171,443
Cash at bank (A/C 81041788) 13,128,371 1,307,153
Savings A/CUS $ 2233593 530,026 7,868,108
Saving A/C- BOC-84023069 267,434 4,218,228
Saving A/C- 057-2-001-5-0031385 754,051 734,833
17,129,780 17,694,223
Investments 2
Fixed deposits at BOC 311,427,761 111,651,287
Fixed deposits at NSB 13,200,310 184,363,430
Fixed deposits in US $ at BOC 338,600,727 358,769,520
Fixed deposits at People's Bank 28,608,269 26,377,137
Fixed deposits at SMIB 13,923,958 -
705,761,026 681,161,373
Receivables & deposits 3
Receivable-programme fees 26,267,550 30,240,000
Accrued interest 8,209,067 47,572,702
Vehicle hiring charges 268,167 71,808
Prepayments 754,534 705,895
Receivable - deposits - -
Sundry debtors 66,213 66,213
Deposits for services 150,000 150,000
Miscellaneous Advance 15,000 35,000
35,730,531 78,841,617
2024 2023
Note Rs. Rs.
Loans & advances to staff 4
Current Non current Total Total
Distress loan 953,836 2,584,444 3,538,280 3,646,702
Computer loan 63,000 115,000 178,000 203,000
Vehicle loan 229,530 231,354 460,884 403,375
Staff loan 12,240 29,580 41,820 31,830
1,258,606 2,960,378 4,218,984 4,284,907
Inventories 5
Stationery 2,700,240 4,019,380
Chemicals 985,191 993,206
3,685,431 5,012,586
Intangible assets 6
Computer Software
Cost:
Opening balance 1,712.522 1,712,522
Additions 666,070 -
Balance as at end of 2,378,592 1,712,522
Accumulated amortization
Opening balance 957,290 614,786
Amortization charge 283,556 342,504
Balance as at end of 1,240,846 957,290
Net book value 1,137,746 755,232
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Property,plant & equipment

(Note 7)

Rs.
Buildings Telephone Laboratory & Library Motor Office Sport Total
teaching equip. books vehicle equipment goods
Cost
Opening balance as at 1% January 2024 240,350,000 158,490 148,452,450 5,171,072 17,000,000 11,802,770 34,800 422,969,582
Adjustments/disposals/donation -
During the year additions 373,958 - 2,304,060 219,388 1,056,926 - 3,954,331
Closing Balance as at 31" Dec. 2024 240,723,958 158,490 150,756,510 5,390,460 17,000,000 12,859,696 34,800 426,923,913
Less: Depreciation
Opening balance as at 1% January 2024 24,035,000 30,839 29,683,537 2,011,742 6,800,000 2,271,711 17,400 64,850,229
Adjustments/disposals/donation =
During the year additions 12,017,500 15,849 30,016,327 1,073,884 3,400,000 2,492,736 8,700 49,024,997
Accumulated depreciation 36,052,500 46,688 59,699,864 3,085,626 10,200,000 4,764,447 26,100 113,875,226
as at 31" December 2024
Net book value as at 204,671,458 111,802 91,056,646 2,304,833 6,800,000 8,095,249 8,700 313,048,687

317 December 2024
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Notes 2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
Accrued expenses 8
Accrued expenses - recurrent 22,285,830 24,497,207
Accrued expenses - capital 55,800 142,302
22,341,630 24,639,509
Payables 9
Stamp duty payables 13,050 11,025
Paye tax payables 1,150,418 356,955
Withholding tax 10,750 -
Other payables-boards of study 9.1 2,745,705 1,824,438
Other payables-short courses & workshops 9.2 1,889,502 4,158,711
Security bonds 80,495 18,698
Retention Money 1,345,430 1,345,430
7,235,350 7,715,257
Other payable-boards of study 9.1
Board of study in chemical sciences 74,700 74,700
Board of study in earth sciences 2,288,840 1,484,933
Board of study in enviromental sciences 1,625 1,625
Board of study in physics 11,740 11,740
Board of study in plant sciences 121,706 4,346
Board of study in science education 99,537 99,537
Board of study in zoological sciences 48,957 48,957
Board of study in biomedical sciences 98,600 98,600
2,745,705 1,824,438
Other Payables-short courses,workshops & oth: 9.2
Advance certificate course in org.chemistry 220,822 560,222
ICMME-2021 - 19,995
Consultancy project-GSMB - 439,840
125th S/C on GIS & its application - 340,742
W/S on neuro science - 2022 - 39,585
Consultancy project-Mahaweli Authority - 59,060
128th S/C GIS & application - 803,907
Japanese Green Youth Project 934,404 602,275
Advance certificate course in Biomedical Science 169,075 169,075
Pathegen Genomics Symposium-2023 43,800 61,000
S/C in Bioinformatics 304,135 997,000
W/S on PCPREE - 66,010
125th S/C on GIS & its application 217,265 -
1,889,502 4,158,711

.




2024 2023
Notes Rs. Rs.
10
Deposits Current Non current Total
Library deposits 3,596,000 1,042,000 4,638,000 4,688,000
Science deposits 3,007,500 928,500 3,936,000 3,954,000
Other deposits 193,009 . 193,009 196,012
6,796,509 1,970,500 8,767,009 8,838,012
Provisions 11
Provision for audit fees 1,325,250 625,250
Provision for security 130,000 -
1,455,250 625,250
12
Retiring gratuity
Balance as at 1% January 7,791,951 7,204,069
Charge for the year 12.1 2,824,273 1,893,695
10,616,224 9,097,763
Payvments made during the year - (1,305,812)
Balance as at end of December 10,616,224 7,791,951
Charge for the Year 12.1
Past service cost - 119,538
Interest cost 1,012,954 1,296,732
Current service cost 685,535 477 424
‘et actuarial (gain)/loss recognised immediately 1,125,784 =
Expenses recognized in the income statetment 2,824,273 1,893,695
Funds 13
Scholarship fund-Prof. Amarasinghe 1,638,369 1,542,907
Research & scholarship funds 2,395,265 1,188,367
Workshop & event fund 7,151,884 6,937,852
11,185,518 9,669,126
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Restricted funds Note 2024 2023
G. No. Grantee Name Grant Name 14 Rs. Rs.
6242 Prof. HM.T.G.A Pitawala Value addition to SL laterites - 50,140
5202 Prof: D Yakandawala AustriaP 33148 B 319,782 639,563
6293 DrTMW] Bandara PGIS/2020/05 7 113,476
5224  Dr.H.A.CKAriyarathne PGIS/2020/23 - 86,421
5295  Dr.B.M.K.Pemasiri PGIS/2020/10 - 259,445
5206 DRT.ILKR DeSilva PGIS/2020/04 ; 122,700
2207 DRW.RP.Wijesinghe PGIS/2020/17 . 15,639
2208 Prof.U.A ] Pinidiyaarchchi PGIS/2020/06 . 118,100
62 Dr.N.W.B.Balasuriya PGIS/2020/18 394,900 394,900
630 Prof.D.M.D.Yakandawala PGIS/2020/21 = 116,550
5202 DrP.L Dharmapriya PGIS/2020/03 » 21,155
6303 Prof.W.B.Daundasekara PGIS/2020/24 & 100,000
5304 Prof.K.B.Ranawana PGIS/2020/22 5 1,433
5306 Prof SH.P.P.Karunarame  URCgrant-280 - 300,000
6313 Prof.Bandara Swedish Research Council - 780,503
=317 Prof.D.M.D.Yakandawala Conservation of Water Trumpet 4,799,889 6,538,400
5,514,571 9,658,424
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2024 2023
Notes Rs. Rs.

nterest income 15
Fixed deposit interest 57,962,495 99,151,016
RFC interest 18,928 68,426
=21t loan interest 192,793 177,401
savings interest 73,318 6,000

58,247,533 99,402,843
senerated Income 16
Programme fees 54,314,979 51,265,751
Fegistration fees 2,564,900 2,230,500
“wamination fees 1,748,546 1,819,450
Zesearch congress income 776,500 451,739
Medical fees 129,250 37,550
services & facilities fees - 20,000
“ehicle hiring charges 1,146,400 975,820
Library tickets 475,500 372,000
Supervision fees 1,330,000 787,500
Bench fees 877,500 1,013,000

63,363,575 58,973,310
“Miscellaneous income 16.1
Printing income 52,188 78,868
A dministration charges 672,990 614,440
Certificate fees 1,006,800 1,136,990
Fooftop reservation income 30,000 107,000
Application processing fees 975,000 724,000
*RD analysis income 22,500 334,500
*REF analysis income 565,200 509,500
Other income 1,202,797 2,297,542
Degree verification income 45,215

4,572,690 5,802,839 |
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Personal emoluments 2,024 2,023

Personal emoluments (Academic) 17
salaries and wages 2,651,663 3,806,825
University provident fund 959,206 794,893
“cademic EPF 74,126 80,178
Employee Trust Fund 210,223 179,575
~cademic allowance 3,784,944 4,189,357
Other allowances 297,699 259,836
A dditional allowance - 20% 348,060 348,060
Cost of living 575,812 272,811
Research allowance 609,105 609,105
“cademic monthly allowance 116,220 118,750
Visiting lecture fees 13,196,854 9,569,147
22,823,911 20,228,538

Personal emoluments (non academic) 17
szlaries and wages 13,014,767 13,217,420
University Provident Fund 1,700,954 1,506,702
Pension fund 1,788,493 1,588,121
Employee Trust Fund 714,217 625,989
Orvertime 1,603,626 1,776,495
Holiday payments 253,294 198,338
Jther allowances 93,335 91,981
\Monthly Compensation Allowance - MCA 5,646,214 5,518,215
Gratuity 2,824,273 1,893,695
Research allowance 563,337 363,888
Additional allowance - 20% 2,509,428 2,452,540
Cost of living 5,146,242 2,223,899
\Monthly allowance 1,419,839 1,425,576
EPF 65,309 28,095
Staff benefits 129,264 140,281
37,472,594 33,051,234

Personal Emoluments (Casual) 17
Casual Wages 694,000 383,000
694,000 383,000
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2024 2023
Notes Rs. Rs.
Travelling and subsistence 18
Iravelling expenses (domestic) 162,017 128,280
162,017 128,280
Supplies 19
Stationery & office requisites 2,471,018 1,667,408
Fuel & lubricants 1,588,172 1,684,675
\Mechanical & electrical 223,548 538,807
C“hemicals & glassware 876,374 549,2?_3_
5,159,113 4,440,122
Maintenance 20
Vehicles 1,633,687 1,398,796
Plant, machinery & equipment 3,685,599 2,721,877
Suildings & structure 518,760 192,415
5,838,046 4,313,088
“ontractual services 21
lelecommunications 5,229,171 6,849,440
Postal charges 333,880 363,510
Electricity 2,042,631 2,341,536
security services 1,321,645 1,092,141
ater charges 154,175 164,693
_leaning services 1,600,686 1,757,264
10,682,188 12,568,583
Other recurrent expenditure 22
“rinting and advertising 471,871 617,368
Ludit fees 700,000 650,000
~pecial services, councils & commitees 1,682,452 1,096,026
=pecial services, professional & others 116,445 18,995
" orkshops & seminars 486,370 280,508
~iaif development - 10,000
Holiday warrants 68,175 91,825
Sank charges 392,319 326,705
“wards & indemnities 1,070,000 400,000
“xamination expenses 4,133,002 2,856,740
_ther expenses 1,074,664 735,055
~:atf welfare 452,859 439,825
~tudent welfare 25,000
L =2al & documentation charges 1,178,798 852,270
_onvocation 500,000 -
~cademic research - 311,800
PCIS research congress 1,562,471 804,171
=zamp duty expense 18,375 20,150
_niversity insurance scheme 194,400 135,000
Hesearch grant expenditure 8,620,055 8,903,225
[ osses & write-off 3,875,000 a0
26,622,255 18,552,163
Depreciation 23
Buildings 12,017,500 12,017,500
Telephone 15,849 15,539
Lab & teaching equipment 30,016,327 29,683,537
Zooks and periodicals 1,073,884 1,005,988
Difice equipment 2,492,736 2,271,711
“Motor vehicles 3,400,000 3,400,000
=ports goods 8,700 10,440
49,024,997 48,404,715
158,479,121 142,521,974
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POSTGRADUATE INSTITUTE OF SCIENCE

TRIAL BALANCE AS AT 31°" DECEMBER 2024

%LCCSLI)J];\TT ACCOUNT NAME DR AMOUNT (RS.) | CR AMOUNT (RS.)
10003 CASH BOOK A/C057100191338034 731,553
0002 CASH BOOK A/C 0001274002 1,187,590
10001 CASH BOOK A/C 0001273990 530,754
20007 CASH BOOK A/C NO 81041788 13,128,371
10320 SAVING-BOC NO: 84023069 267,434
13000 ACCRUDE INCOME 8,209,067
13100 RECEIVABLE VEHICLE HIRING CHARGES 268,167
12002 COMPUTER LOAN 178,000
<000 DEPOSIT FOR SERVICES- FUEL 150,000
2000 DISTRESS LOAN 3,538,280
01006 PREPAYMENTS 754,534
13200 RECEIVABLE PROGRAMME FEE 26,267,550
15000 RFC 530,026
310 SAVING-P.AMARASINGHE SCH.FUND 754,051
2003 STAFF LOAN 41,820
004 STOCK AS AT 31ST DECEMBER 3,685,431
001 SUNDRY DEBTORS 66,213
2004 VEHICLE LOAN 460,884
02 MISCELLANEOUES ADVANCE 15,000
30700 SUNDRY CREDITORS 55,800
23110 5% RETENTION ON CAPITAL WORKS 1,345,4304
2162 129TH S/C ON GIS & ITS APPLICATION 217,265
300 ACCRUED EXPENSES 22,285,830
23020 BOARDS OF STUDY CHEMICAL SCIENCE 74,700/
23030 BOARDS OF STUDY EARTH SCIENCE 2,288,8404
23040 BOARDS OF STUDY ENVIRONMENTAL 1,625
13060 BOARDS OF STUDY PHYSICS 11,740
23070 BOARDS OF STUDY PLANT SCIENCE 121,706
23080 BOARDS OF STUDY SCIENCE EDUCATION 99,537
23100 BOARDS OF STUDY ZOOLOGICAL SCIENCE 48,957
23112 BOARD OF STUDY BIOMEDICAL SCIENCE 98,6OOH
20100 DEPOSITS 193,009
23200 DEFFERED INCOME 11,639,151
20004 LIBRARY DEPOSIT 4,638,000
954 PAYETAX 1,150,418
952 WITHHOLDING TAX 10,750
31520 ADVANCE COURSE IN ORGANIC CHEMISTRY 220,822
2082 PROF.P AMARASINGHE SCHOLARSHIP FUND 1,638,369
30005 SCIENCE DEPOSIT 3,936,000
30200 SECURITY BOND 80,495
950 STAMP DUTY 13,050
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POSTGRADUATE INSTITUTE OF SCIENCE

TRIAL BALANCE AS AT 31°T DECEMBER 2024

. __‘:%E“ ACCOUNT NAME DR AMOUNT (RS) | CR AMOUNT (RS.)
. |ADVANCE CERTIFICATE COURSE IN P
BIOMEDICAL SCIENCES /
2135 |JAPANESE GREEN YOUTH PROJECT 934,404
238 |s/C ON BIOINFORMATICS 304,135
2120 |W/S ON PATHEGON GENOMICS SYM-2023 43,800
> GENERAL RESERVES 986,542,402
s RESEARCH & SCHOLARSHIP FUNDS 2,395,265
73 REVALUATION RESERVE 130,527,591
¢ WORKSHOPS & SHORT COURSE FUND 7,151,884
: ACA-ACADEMIC ALLOWANCES 3,784,944
212 |aca-ADDITIONAL ALL. 20% 348,060
52120 JAcA-coL 575,812
s |ACAET.F 210,223
10 |ACA-OTHER ALLOWANCE 297,699
3 |ACA-MONTHLY ALLOWANCE 116,220
4121 |ACA-RESEARCH ALLOWANCE 25% 609,105
e ACA-SALARIES & WAGES 2,651,663
123 |ACA-EPF 74,126
a0 |acaupE 950,206
$11 |AUDIT FEES 700,000J
: BANK CHARGES 392,319
511 |AWARDS & INDEMNITIES 1,070,000
-1 [BUILDING & STRUCTURES 518,760
1219 |CASUAL VAGES 694,000
205 |CHEMICAL & GLASSWARE 876,374
207 |CLEANING SERVICES 1,600,686
50 |DEPRECIATION - BUILDING 12,017,500
253 |DEPRECIATION - LAB & TEACHING EQUIP 30,016,327
25:  |DEPRECIATION - LIBRARY BOOKS 1,073,884
56 |DEPRECIATION - MOTOR VEHICALS 3,400,000
55 |DEPRECIATION - OFFICE EQUIPMENTS 2,492,736
551 |DEPRECIATION - TELEPHONE 15,849
58 |DEPRECIATION - SPORT GOODS s,moA
057 |DEPRECIATION - INTANGIBLE ASSET 283,556
w804 [ELECTRICITY 2,042,631
914 |EXAMINATION EXPENSES 4,133,002
<2 lFuBLL & LUBRICANT 1,588,172
1014 |GRATUITY 2,824,273
208  |HOLIDAY WARRANT &SEASON TICKETS 68,175
812 |LEGAL & DOCUMENTATION CHARGES 1,178,798
2404  |MECHANICAL & ELECTRICAL GOODS 223,548
216 |NON ACA. RESEARCH ALL. 35% 563,337

S0




POSTGRADUATE INSTITUTE OF SCIENCE

TRIAL BALANCE AS AT 31°" DECEMBER 2024

“:CC?[;‘EE\'T ACCOUNT NAME DR AMOUNT (RS.) | CR AMOUNT (RS.)
=L210 NON- OTHER ALLOWANCE 93,335
21208 NON- OVERTIME 1,603,626
84203 NON-ACA PENTION 1,788,493
=104 NON-ACA- ET.F 714,217
54202 NON-ACA- UPF 1,700,954
2212 NON-ACA-MCA.20% 5,646,214
2201 NON-ACA-SALARIES 13,014,767,

4217 NON-ADDITIONAL ALLOWANCE 2,509,428
L2720 NON-COL 5,146,242
L1209 NON-HOLIDAY PAYMENTS 253,294
122 NON-STAFF BENIFIT 129,264
272 NON ACA-MONTHLY ALLOWANCE 1,419,8391
4205 NON-EPF 65,309
915 OTHER - NEWSPAPER MAGAZINES ECT 1,074,664
926 PGIS INSURENCE SCHEME 194,400
80935 PGIS RESEARCH CONGRESS 1,562,471
702 PLANT , MACHENARY & EQUIPMENT 3,685,599
803 POSTAL CHARGES 333,880
§10 PRINTING ADVERTISING ECT 471,871
805 SECURITY SERVISES 1,321,645
%0903 SPECIAL SERVICES - PROFESSIONAL & 116,445
OTHER FEES !
202 SPECIAL SERVICES COUNCIL & COMMITIES 1,682,452
30 STAFF WELFARE 452,859
275 STAMP DUTY EXPENSE 18,375
o1 STATIONARY & OFFICE REQUISIITES 2,471,018
802 TELECOMMUNICATION 5,229,171
301 TRAVELLING EXPENSES (DOMESTIC) 162,017
701 VEHICLES 1,633,687
916 VISITING LECTURE FEES 12,875,220J
920 FIELD VISIT EXPENSES 321,635
806 WATER CHARGES 154,175
S04 WORKSHOP & SEMINAS 486,370
939 STUDENT WELFARE 25,000
913 CONVERCATION EXPENSE 500,000
241 RESEARCH GRANT EXPENDITURE 8,620,055
945 LOSSES & WRITE OFF 3,875,0001
40 INTANGIBLE ASSET 2,378,592
00 BUILDING 240,723,958
095 FINANCIAL MISAPPROPRIATION A/C 50,119,123
2003 LAB & TEACHING EQUIPMENTS 150,756,510
004 LIBRARY BOOKS 5,390,460]

-4 -




POSTGRADUATE INSTITUTE OF SCIENCE

TRIAL BALANCE AS AT 31°" DECEMBER 2024

- _:h:“JE‘}-E\T ACCOUNT NAME DR AMOUNT (RS.) | CR AMOUNT (RS.)

05 MOTOR VEHICLES 17,000,000}

06 OFFICE FURNITURE EQUIPMENTS 12,859,696

SPORTS GOODS 34,800

2 TELEPHONE 158,490*
292 AUSTRIA-PROF: D YAKANDAWALA 319,782
290 PGIS/2020/18-DR.N.W.B.BALASURIYA 394,900F
7 CONSERVATION OF WATER-TRUMPET IN S/L 4,799,889
Ll LA, ADMINISTRATION CHARGES 672,990
05 APPLICATION PROCESSING FEE 975,000|
= BENCH FEE 877,500
0073 CERTIFICATE FEE 1,006,800
N EXAMINATION FEES 1,748,546

06 EXCHANGE GAIN /LOSS 36,039,585
o= INTEREST FROM SAVING A/C 73,318

IN

—, _:DT\]EEEISCTE;NCOME FROM LOANS & 192793
06 INTEREST INCOME ON FD 57,962,495
=005 INTEREST ON RFC 18,928
S LIBRARY TICKET 475,500
70025 M.PHIL & PH.D TUTION FEE 579,000
T0( MEDICAL FEE 129,250}
007 MISCELLANEOUS INCOME 1,202,797
07 PRINTING INCOME 52,188
7 REGISTRATION FEE 2,564,900)
076 RESCON INCOME 776,500
04 ROOFTOP RESERVATION CHARGES- 30,000
TSt SUPERVISION FEE 1,330,000
2 TUTION FEES 53,735,979
BLLE VEHICAL HIRING CHARGES 1,146,400
0077 XRD ANALYSIS INCOME 22,500
078 XRF ANALYSIS INCOME 565,200
079 DEGREE VERIFICATION INCOME 45,215
3103 REASEARCH GRANTS INCOME 3,625,077

0 FIXED DEPOSIT - BOC 311,427,761

200 FIXED DEPOSITS - PEOPLES BANK 23,608,269J

10 FIXED DEPOSIT - BOC - RFC 338,600,727

500 FIXED DEPOSIT- NSB 13,200,310“

700 STATE MORTGAGE & INVESTMENT BANK 13,923,958
5720 PROVISION FOR GRATUITY 10,616,224
3000 PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION - BUILDING 36,052,500I

-5



POSTGRADUATE INSTITUTE OF SCIENCE

TRIAL BALANCE AS AT 31°" DECEMBER 2024

ACCOUNT NAME

DR AMOUNT (RS.)

CR AMOUNT (RS.)

PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION - LAB
TEACHING EQUIPMENT

PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION - LIBRARY
BOOKS

PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION - OFFICE
EQUIPMENT

PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION -
TELEPHONE

PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION
VEHICLES

PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION-INTANGIBLE
ASSET

PROVISION FOR AUDIT FEES

PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION-SPORT
GOODS

PROVISION FOR SECURITY SERVICE

- MOTOR

59,699,864
3,085,626
4,764,447

46,688

10,200,000}

1,240,846
1,325,250|
26,100

130,000

TOTAL

1,440,749,642

1 g;;!zgg!gzl
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allgh@pmerll UL ifen Uiglly BpleusLd
2024 FHOFwUF 31 @60 2 s6iTemeuTDTEN
_BA Fleneveniod Fapml

S 2024.12.31 2023.12.31
BOL(MDF QFTHSHIHH6IT
&M1& WHMID BTSHHES FIODTEIMEU 1 17,129,780 17,694,223
(W &H65(HBH6N 2 705,761,026 681,161,373
QUDGAUSTIQWINE MDD EULILIESET 3 35,730,531 78,841,617
ugelwenflebaTen (LPHLIENIBISEHLD HLTHEHLD 4 1,258,606 1,195,193
B w1 BN 5 3,685,431 5,012,586
Guorss poL (ops Gesaibae 763,565,374 783,904,992
BEOL(PHDWTAROTE OFTSHSIdbH6T
ugseNeNSET (LMHLGTIEISEH HLTHENLD 4 2,960,378 3,089,714
B (wpeonBashEar 2008- 2016 50,119,123 50,119,123
DIHOUF  QF1 5515561 6 1,137,746 755,232
SDLBHRBIHET QUITANBOT 2 _ LI GUOTEIH6IT 7 313,048,687 358,119,353
Guords L @mpuedens Gemsgibse 367,265,934 412,083,422
Clorgss Qsmggisamen 1,130,831,308 1,195,988,414
Qurmutigseit
BL(PenDF GQUITDILIL|SS6T
SI_bBm OFevaleimissin 8 22,341,630 24,639,509
Qeass Gouemiguieneubei 9 7,235,350 7,715,257
Q_E@Q,&Gmsaﬁmu_l M EULIL|E B 6T 6,796,509 6,484,512
SHGUTLOLL L euHLomed 11,639,151 9,980,892
MU (B 6iT 11 1,455,250 625,250
Gwrré 5 _BEnL(penm Gurrgﬂu&&sfr 49,467,889 49,445,420
ML (PEnDWITe0 QUITDILIL|E ST
uesGsTenL SsTen gouT®h 12 10,616,224 7,791,951
S 13 11,185,518 9,669,126
QeassCouemigwl LIS S6i 10 1,970,500 2,353,500
OGurgs BeLWDLIEONTS QUITDICILSE6 23,772,242 19,814,577
Quorgs GuTnIIydhSe 73,240,131 69,259,997
Cailu_Qarsgibssi 1,057,591,177 1,126,728,417
2 flenio
QUTE @BISHHLD 921,549,015 967,212,281
. GUUGSSIULL L Bl&uid 14 5,514,571 9,658,424
et (b @&IHSE6H 130,527,591 149,857,712
OCrgs 2 Ffew 1,057,591,177 1,126,728,417
1978 @6 16 o Qvbs  UOEBMOVGHHNSEIEBET  FLLGHMFD — gmenws  BludHFFlL
BxemeuiuT(hasEHL@ID BIFdBFmMDMIGEH6T 6wImIE S Een.
d.28.e160.19. mwGasmig
gl BlBwimeny
51\ &b Fn D) B 6w 61T SWTiugm@Ld FOINNILSHGLD (PSBTMLOSSHIOILD QUL

o aTeNgl. BbHHbImPNIEHMND (PEHTMWSHIEN FmU FTIUTS mBOQWTUILOL (BLD 2_6iTeng|.

..................... ///
Prof.B.M.N-W.B.Balasooriya
Director/PGIS ™

(WPBTEMOGHSH6N FMLSBTH

6 (WPpH6L 13 euMTWITE USSEIGT GHMIYSDHET MWD HISSEL ([ CBTeTeNDHDHEHLD B DM S ETh ST 60

(PSHEWLDTES LITHBISENTS 2 6IT6I60.

2025 GQuugeuifl 25



alghepmeans UL nfesr gl Muieussd
2024 FeFwuF 31 B0 (PIPEUMLES LGWIIQDESTEHT

i Qsuinnpps s
&My 2024 2023

6U(THLOITEBILD abLIT. abUIT.
[BOL(penD
umLDIT[j)[DG}') SIOOTH OBT(HHBHED GUTEIBED LEHT6
QU(HLOTEBTLD
SiyF wreflwd (LesiL(1pLb)
SHITUIES el aiELoTend 3,625,077 4,712,140
UflomHmed DIVOTH OQBT(HSHSHED GUMEIBED LSHTE 61(HLOTEHILD 3.625.077 4.712.140
Qo gB1b T v
ufoTHDEd SiTEH GBETHHHED GUTEIGE ST IHLTEILD GLOTSHSHLD
ML (LpenD
6UL 19 6)(THLOT63TLD 15 58,247,533 99,402,843
2_eitens FHuiled o _(houTen euhLOTEILD 16 63,363,575 58,973,310
6J6MEUTULI  6)([HLDIT6ILD 16.1 4,572,690 5,802,839
OFsveuemil @evruLd
ufllonpmed CETBHHHE0 UTEIHEO UHLOTAILD GLOTSFHD [FML(PHM 126,183,798 164,178,992
OTsHEH UIHLOTID - HN(HLOMD 129,808,875 168,891,132
CLPEOGHEITLD
umwrr,ri),ma? SIOTH CBTHEHSHED CUTEIHE) LSS Tent
QU(HLOMEIILD  CLPELSHEILD
QLTSS AUHLOTEILD 129,808,875 168,891,132
GFsvaieid
[BEML(LpenD
Heliul’ L Geugsermeamsit 17 60,990,505 54,115,023
Aywimessid 18 162,017 128,280
QUIPRIGBEVILD BIBTeULD 19 5,159,113 4,440,122
ugmofliiy 20 5,838,046 4,313,088
RLUBSH BFeneusmsit 21 10,682,188 12,568,583
gemerl Q606G 6iT 22 26,622,255 18,552,163
QFevmeuesil L LLD 36,039,585 41,494,616
QTHEH CFeLaleDd (FLPEVBHEID BILTSH 145,493,709 135,611,875
CLPEVGHEITLD
Qumiorerg8a Ul 23 49,024,997 48,404,715
BOUMEN CFTHBISSEHSSTEN ST6vHB L6 283,556 342,504
GorsHs GFevailand PSID JHE6VTSH 49,308,553 48,747,220
gpemngnarTean G Wmas LUDDTEHGMD (LPEOSILD (15,684,834) 33,279,257




ellghepmedrl UL Linler Ligln| MBlpieusid
2024 FoFwuj 31 @60 (PQaUMLHES DLERIYMHBTHN STHULTUIFFEO Fndml

2024 2023
QFwEOUTLH BLUYBMBETIHHSH STHI LTUIFFEO
QUDEDIDWITET  [BLOUIQHENHEHENMTET LD S (64,993 387) (15.467.962)
BTFOOTH DIENF6BH6IT
QuuIETEHBHUINID &TEVESR D 49,308,553 48,747,220
QI lg QIHLOTEILD (58,247,533) (99,402,843)
BMIHHTUIR] B LeWISHDSTE HHBHIL/ GHmmey 700,000 80,750
ueibOsTenL gouTLigmsTe RSP/ GHmme| 2,824,273 587,883
UTGIBTIIL &L L RIEISEHSST gnur® dHefiy/ &smmey 130,000
UGMS alfleyenwimeny  HL L WImISEHHHTET FHUT(H (11,467,691)
aFsfiiy/ Gemey
BL_LBISEHHBIeT LBeudiiL] 3,875,000
Qﬂrf]rj)u@ (LPEVSHE LOTDDEIBEHDHE (WatergTer GFwpur’ (b (66,403,094) (76,922,643)
Qump Geuewigwimeusaied HBFIILY /Gmmey (127,549) 4,025,358
sL& LoHOID (WHuemmBeNed oifasfliy/ @Gemmey 65,923 (63,772}
Bolysseisd dHsfliy/ Gmmey 1,327,156 (475,120)
SLbm QFvalamisaied HsFliy /Gemmey (2,297,879) 7,918,657
OCFnss Couamiguiemeaiseied SiH@HIIY/ &mmey 172,075 (3,434,619)
B6MOFISHs Couswigul enaulissefsd iHsiiy/ &mmey (71,003) (206,421)
AHGUTLLILL L eSS HHBPNILY/ &mmey 1,658,259 4,108,946
EamMADUTL(H BLYHEMSH6MD 2 meurel GsHHlul Hma (65,676,112) (65,049,614)
WSS (B BLOUYEMEBHAMNIMBHS HT&HI LTUIFF6)
SLEHAEIBET, QUTINB6T 2 LisTamimIGHsT OBTeTaIaT6] (3,954,331) (2,451,162)
shumas 0FTHSI5H6 CSBTaTaIT6Y (666,070)
Bleneowimes eneulilbsemeomet (1p&5650H (877,135,491) {476,182,524)
Blemeowimes emeuli eml Gumed 852,535,837 468,920,696
QUL 1Y 6U(THLOTEIILD 97,613,058 74,296,993
WESLB BLeagsmasaiedmhs GHiw STHILTUIFF) 68,393,003 64,584,003
BHF CFupuTGEailanTed 2 [HouTen BT
yevewioll Lfldled mlduwid 95,462 (183,718)
SpITUIES] 1oTeiwl QLMICIENTES 6T 434,281 9,898,763
SpITUIES oTeiw Qsm@HliLeTea] (3,811,076) (8,903,225)
BHF GFupurGseilenmed 2 meuTten GsPlul Mo (3,281,333) 811,819
BTG LOHMID BTHHG FoaTaTmed SHBHLIL/ &MDey (564,443) 346,208
SLEWIQET SLTDLLGH6D BTG LOMMID HTFHG FLOOTEIEN6 17,694,223 17,348,015

17,129,780 17,694,223

SLeMIgel BmiHulled HM& LoHMID HDEG FLOTEIEN6U




alghepmeans UL nTer gl Mpieussd

2024 FoFwuf 31 B0 (PIYOUMLBS L 6RIQMHBTET

urTsS® whpid 2_eTemeurprearena GsTLyuTen UG

Gy 2024 2023
QHLIT. erHLIT.

6U(HLOTEIILD
S7F wrelwid (esoL(1pLb)
QF WA L L L 6WIEIH6IT 54,314,979 59,000,000
ufed SHLL WIBIHEIT 2,564,900 3,000,000
uflengéd &L eIl 1,748,546 2,300,000
BITITANSH  6U(HLOTEIILD 4,572,690 2,172,000
SLITWIFS reflus &L L ewlmISHeT 776,500 600,000
LHBHHIO HL L GOIBIH6NT 129,250 63,000
AUTHET GUTL6MSH L L 630ILD 1,146,400 900,000
BIVS 195HBL 475,500 596,000
Gopumyensu &1L 6wImIG6NT 1,330,000 1,000,000
WPpH6SL(H  QU(HLOTEIILD 15 58,247,533 56,175,000
Bench a1 Lemmsissi 877,500 1,000,000
SLITUIEFS Tl 6u(HLOTEILD 3.625.077

129,808,875 126,806,000
GFevailemIseiT
Seliul L Geugsetmedassit 17 60,990,505 72,440,000
Aywimessid 18 162,017 1,100,000
GULDMBIGHEVILD [RIBT6LLD 19 5,159,113 8,780,000
uymofitiy 20 5,838,046 6,310,000
RLUBSH CFeneusei 21 10,682,188 13,023,000
generl OFe0aleuBIg6iT 22 26,622,255 25,153,000
GumuoTengGsuley MDD &TEVSESIH6 23&6 49,308,553
QFsomeuemil HLLLD 36,039,585

194,802,262 126,806,000

SengmaETe Caiw ems,/ UDDTEHEGMD

(64,993,387)




olehepmens Ll nTesr gl Bimieusio

2024 FoeFwuF 31 60 (PIYEUMLHD D1, 6WIIQMH BT 60T
2 flmw GzPlw cpeBHISHHE LOTHOEIHET FnMHU)

01.01.2024 @60 2_6iTemeurm)
BETHE.(H HOUMIBEHBBTET H(HHBHLD
- PmISd meubSILLL  @6VTLLD
2024

CLPEVS60T et AN G| PousH emeudbsi’L Qo510
LomeiwLD PBIHBLD 2_6m|pLIl
- 149,857,712 967,212,281 1,117,069,993

(64,993,387)

(64,993,387)

CuTE P&IBHEHHDSG LTHHWS - (19,330,120) 19,330,120 -
(01.01.2023 @6V Lﬁe‘hwﬂljlﬁl'_lgsﬁl

Hevteny eTehFl cpeuGHen LomesfiuiLd)

2024 HOgbuy 31 @ev 188 - 130,527,591 921,549,015 1,052,076,606




pPé sappisbsEpdbGiu GOIOLSSei

1.1
1.1.1

1.2

1.3

14

QUITHIUTET HBHEUEOBEIT

ofsmasuiBL Bmeusd

elehepmeorl Ul Lldesr gy Mmeusd 1978 @& 16 D B60SHS  LIGOSHM60EHHLDHHBISEN
FLLSHGT 18 oib fley wwmmid 24 oo fleler S UNBMEVBBS  LOTNWIMBISET
LMD GH (eI alHHHILU L  SLLMENF FLLESHG  cpsvld 1996 D 600119601
Gurgl evaTUGSILL LS.

waaimy  QFuDHUTHSeT WwHEID QFWHUTLH BLalgsmeEaiear Heareno

allehEpTaold QHTLIUTEST 2 W Hevallenl GUPEIGHHD, 2e1HGHalHHe0 oMM GLoubhsHSHIgH6e0
oo vwWinfsmen  eupmIGeug  elehepmer Ul Ll  Lgly  BlneuetsHar  DlgliLienL
Oaretens GBEToHsLTGW. Bbhd BeuaisHar (wesdw Ghrésh, eIEIEHTID G&HTL U6
ueoBaum umLl \Wfleysefed Ll Linilenr wglysefed uuWipd wHmId wvUIHFenU  CULPTEIGHIGID,
SLITWUIFSenw 61efHTHGMBID D ELD.

QFTLJHI WG ZH60

BHbgmpmbEer QFTLIHSH GFeosid  SigliuenLuled swimfléasiul (Bememer. mHmieueTsale
WaTmWwHGHIOID CHTLIHH OCFwsbuBl SHmewer AU (BeTeng LOMID  BimieueILd
aHjsresHe QHTLIHSH OCFweouL  Burgionen uFHTIRIGM6NS CBTEvI(HETeNS  61631M
Blurwioren et HFUTTUmUS CBTI(heTeNgl. (ETMWHHIN FmU  THTHTOSHMSL LMD
SIMDHH SHBOUDBMETUD HewTHE 61(HHHIBOBTENI(H, HMEVLIL AH6060FH CFWeOLIT(HBEM6T
BniSSUSDETHT CHemeusnw IHTUTTEHTN60mev. 61aB6l, BHdBFnmmIbHemens  HWTHLILH6D
Blneuestd OBTLIHS iSSmPUIST SigliLmLmwl LHeumnmiSng.

SfSmsuiLed ST6vLd

Poeveigder Bide smeod 2024 gmeoufl 1 wpHed 2024 19abuj 31, auenyuleomen
uaiiefyewih LOTH BTVHMBD GBS MBI

1.5 Bdé FmpmobseT HWTHHH0 DigliLienL

(@) QSeandsd Famu
PHE FpmIbsEneast BF Bensvenod Famml, BHF GFweOTHMEL QBHTLIUTST Fnmmi,
2 Flenw (pevSHEHHe0 THMEIGET QFHTLIUTET Fapml, STHI UTUIFFO Fapml, MBI
FDMISBETHSHES W GO SHB6IT LOMHMILD urs®B B eHDHD DM S 6N
2 _6iTeNL&&LILIL (HeTermen.

alehepmeail ulLOfsT ugly BneuasHer HHe Bamevenod FammibssT, HHF
QFweoTOHDEd FnMMIBHEH6T @ReVEINE CUTHIGHIMD SHeusbsS (b Bwwmissr (SLPSAS)
BUWLEISERSE gnu SwrflesiubSaimet. elehepmerll Ul Ll uglly Bimieussin
deupnid  oimansHs  aeSEL([H  QEBTETMBHEHLD  (LPSTMEIL  DLEWIYMES ML
o eitemerr  PMID  CaremeulLBLBUTE  FHCUTMBHW  opewgsr  LeTafaleugmiserieo

LTHOEIS6T Uowurs QeusfiiiLbGsEUUL (HelTeme.

152 oemeil® oligliuemL
elehEpmevLs UL CnSest gLy Bmieusg et B an HDIHS6I SiFH60



1.54

1.5.5

1.5.6

1.5.7

1.6

G aul Been Fh ST LILIMBIBENT FHaly GUT6OT DM Sy SiQLILIENLUT6D

swimfléaiul Heere.

153 @Uil(hsd FHBH6ued
BLUY &Mool LsHar BHd gmpmibsamentl Uibs OCamelauensud  Sleummlest
sI5mS Cwubhsgumsuw ChrréssworTss OoTeau(h, (LPETM6IIL  SHTEVEHL L GHMSLI
QuUTNIHSHEUEMT, i3k FnDMIBH616E0 OafelbsluLl (heTem DM HHI5
OFTMBHEHHGHW o6y, eleuflly wHMW elondss SHeU0H6T 2 6Tafll L

RUI (bS5 BH6usLE6T GeusfuiL LinbBalermet.

Bdé FnDmSHHmeN DIRISHTFLD

2024 GQuugeufl 14, 2025 op Had BOLOUDHD BMEUSTISRHST (LPBHTENLOSHSHI6M
gemuulest 184 eugl gl LD, Ul LU uglly BnieusisHer HiFd Fnhmicaenen
QeueWIBHousN@ DEBISHTID DeNHBHHI-

(waAwdHGHieud oppid HLed

pd  ofsmazeied @5 OQuTBLSeiaT @alQeur@ QuUTmET GLUL — Sleneu
wadwoppeney  Hely.salissaiwuns oupmsiubGSapeal. GapulL SHEI®ID  DjEV6VS
QFwedum s OCaTawiL 2 BlugseT FHaflhsaiunrs eupmislLGESame.

QFWOHUTL®G LopmiLd (peieneusslUBLD BT S6VE)

Bd omsmazer @evmens puTuisd epBIBELUGHaDT, @& BH Nsmauied
Poeuemddear  QFweurl®  wppd — FoFilSHed  Brewwwor@Gw.  Gaumielslorss
GOILiuLr  ollLmed, @evmiens  pumuied  aupmIBILL (Fellem  SiMeiSdH  HHDH
BHBOULBEHD B lpwl pulysHded Smewwr eul Lo (IBLD.

FHOFUISH6D

QovEms QUISHISSHID  BHBEL(H Blwwmisenmed  (SLPSAS)) Gaumieisorss
GzemeuliLLTGsomr Slev6vg Si@IbHEsiu’LTCr Hely, CQaFrshgissen WOHMILD GCUITDIILEET
LOMID eUHLOTEID LMMID CFeves HewdHGHE6T GRINBESTAID FHOFUIWLILILL TSI

GO G555 SemssS (B HIIGH6T WOMID SFLiLEwerT

SLPSAS &@ @eukis HHeammmbcsamens sSWTflesed wwommid FFUlsse opdluenel
BBBL_ VBB OCBTeTenNBHET MWD CFTSHHIBH6T, QUIMILILBET, 6UIHLOTEIBIEET  LOMHMILD
QFeveysem S Sweummlest Sl6NMen6l urdes@d  SFUyse, HEANMGES LoMHMILD
SiIoTeEIEmeT  Bljoursd  QFuiw  Geuswi(hd.  AHIIBHET  LOOHMID  DIGEILDTEIIEISENT
OaTLibBa Weatmwle] GauiwiuGdeaimer. seundl (b wHIIBsEHHETE HHHDHHEIHN LALIH
HmSSUULL  sTeolILGHUIed SmSHfEsIubBL, HHSIHD DibHH BTVSLLEHMS L ([HGL
untHEBEME, SV0FH FHHSHD GHNHDH STV LHMID THTHTED HTEVRIGBET @RTEwTENL LD
urdasamed, oI5 SPOUTMHSHW  OHMID  THTEHTEL  HTUEIGBEMET — UTHHHTL — HlHs
FPOIEEeN omsSsflesiu’L  OxTmsseflsd  Haajn  GIUOLSHEE  HTHBHMB
gOUbBSBEIngU  BeiHSL(H OCBTeTendBmeN  LWaTLBSHIUHD WHIIH, BFFWLHD
FSSEm oMb pddHwioret STy spdweuppler  GPOUILSSEE  UGH®BeT UMW
HBOUEVB6NT  LI6BTEUHLOTDI.

oS (p  WHIIBHeT oMb  (WwedHwiorer  SFlyseied  gCHeId  LOTMHMEISET
BHEFNMIBHEHLET Renewihd GPUYsaied GeuefliubBHsULEBLD.

(padwiorer sanusdl (hd Gamersefar QM
SLBHEIB6T, QuTMEeT WHMID 2 LsFevmEESeT (PPE)



(&)

(=)

STeNE6T, SLIGLEIG6T, SpUIeFnLBIG6T LOMID SHOUIGHED 2 _LIGJEuIEISST, SHEMLUTLBIS6NT
OMID FTSHHIBIEET, [BHIVS LHHBEIG6T MMILD FehFnDBH6eNT, MTHEIMBIG OO LTn
QFTHzI5H6T S ELMmeU ATFTRIBSHSTL BHwelbslulL, S ITUIFS FTiHS, 2 6THTLIQ60
2 meurdalulL BiFseT wmmid wreflwmsiseT psod GQuplUlL QUTHLEET LSRG,
Qumilsen o _usgeuikiseiest (PPE) S1p smewiilssiiul (hetene.

ghnIBOsTeaTensd wHmLd AN G SiglienL

SLBOEIH6T, QUTHIE6ET WOMID o LSTMIBIGH6T, DibDH 2 (HLUGHST 261 TH HemLSEGLW
THTHT6V QUTHEMTHTT  HETMWSET  HNEUSTSHDEG UFHFQW  UTWILSSHET i
2 mlugseest Sywid BLOUSHSHbHS (MU0 Siemai (WIQULD 616V 60
SRS HEBILGAGDET. DLBOBIH6T, @QUBHATEIGHT LOHDID 2 LUSJTEOIRIGET  6T6TLIeUMMI6u
Hrlgw GCasuiomerd sfldsiulL  Syusdeo BTGB ULGSSTDET. DY HIIBIB6,
Qurplsel HMID o LsFenmEIGalsa b saug Gameaialamsy Sje060gH MBIFOTeRT CF6v6,
OO DSDBTE QHTLIFS LT QF6V6YB6T S GHLD.

SLBOEBIHET  ,QUTHEET LHDID 2 LSFEEIGTET @ CUIheTTEIH, @ CFTHHTH
SIEISHfEHIUBUSDGHSH HSHIAWMLWSF 6ISIUSH DLTWUSHO CFevailed el LLBEmGI.
OFevailed QFTHmazl GumusNE ChIYwTss Faplupd CFeseT O DBHHHHD
OFeeYH6T JILBIGHWD. HWIOTE SLLMWEBUULL CFTesHer alensv, GQuTELE6ReT alensv,
Cory o emwlly, OCaTsHmad e CmréEsd Qasmewil  UwWSUTLIYDETT  QFweouTL B
Benevds@ OCamewi(h  eumeausm@ GCobrouwnsds gaplu@Gl n GFeveysel  LoMHMID
OQurpLamer SismHY BN Supemn BLHH0 LIDMUSDSTET  OF6ve LEWEn6
SILEIGW. OCBTLIYmLW 2 usFeamimiseiear  QFweourlion@  SeudWImer  eummsIuL L
OLo6BTQUIT (h 61T Y- ) o _LIBTeuIch 36t QM UGHWTS PV SHSILOTHBLILHB MG
SLSHIBIBET ,QUTHEET HMID 2 _usFevmEIBeieas  aleney UBET OCBTETIPHE0 DLV
sl (porarsHnarar GFeve| OHMILD S CETosb O@ETawiL UWSUT YnSTer CFTHms
QFweouT (b Hewevd@ CaTemi(h 6umHeUSNEG CoIYwTad FapluiBl CFae| SpEweDHemDS
Oz TemI(BHeTENSHI.

ArwsHmG QRewimis (WPpHedeo ermisTeuiiul L Un@, Bneusid SpHeimiseT ,Curpsert
wpniw 2 usyewmseier (PPE) ww au@llineh seunssl B wrdfleow gnnissteardng.
Wemodnilger  alemeneuns @ OCFrshdar  Gwhg OFod  OFTms  HDFHST6,
Fsfly Chrywins et (B WemassE auye| meusbsLLHLD.

PoeueisHNGF QFTHILOTET DmaisHEH SLIGLEIE6T OmId Gurl LTy surseimiseT 2022
oaiauflulsd  alemev AU BSH  HemewibHensHBHTe0  LeTTUle)] QauiwIul L gL 63T
SLUIeFaL BIEH6T OMID SOISHH0 2 _USTUIBIST LOHMID DIVIUNS 2 _LISJEIEISN6NTS
&y  Hm  eumad OCFTHHIGHT 2 MBI HuSSIULL  (GHUWSHeNTe0  LSemTule)]
QFuwiul Ler. @evmienad QUTHISSHIMD HemisHS (h Buwww 07 @nE Sewmis, SUaiuleT
PdHsampmis  Hefled  CumamPu seudbsTwielar  alemeraurs  QUTHSHLOMRT  H(HHBEISET
QFwiwiul_(peenest.  01.01.2023 o4 HaHuled 2 _etemeurm SpUIagal  LOMMID  SMHLIHSH60
2 _LIGTUIBIGAT LOHIID DIVIEUVSE 2 _LIGTIBIHET 2 6THTLIQE0 HBUIOSSIULL (G (1LD6UT6D
e sewiadLlu’Lg wwomd Cwrsg et G Georud o flHs  LTHDEISET

OaTLIUTE FamPlemLTe SeTBISTeILLL (HeTeng).

sreu@ Beneowmer Garsgisser (PPE) aryewiors Ueiey goufBw G&sveied

SBOUMET  Blemeowmes OQFTHHIHHNMT60 gOUBL OFeveyse, LISTUHD  DiemeBHTeLEH M6
uisd Gsuiwg saufeammsd DGSsmEW FhHHTLUUGHM, BBFH CFwmur® CHTLIUTET Fmpyl
swmfléaiudLd. SIGL6UT DT 60T FHSHTLILSSH 60 315G FevaT6ILD LPELSELDTSHBLILIL (B

OaTLIYmLW SglinenLulsd Bxuiomerd Gauiwtiu@GaEeiment.

. Blemeowimest QFTHFHIHH6M FHhemd LAY e LUeian] HsfHal6Tengl.



®

. Cargzg Quievens] iHsflsdng.

. 2 _pusHuilaT srsHe0 BensoGumprer (WaGammmd Bievevg Gewpurl(h GFsveaseflsd
@mmOsuTem QL GUMeL

. uepgIuTFiy wmmid ugmofliy spflwiensy CFTHHET SpUjeNET HENFLTS BQLILSTS
BlepLISSUULLT60. SIS LIWIGDIGTEN SUIN6T HEWIFLOTS [HLIQHH60.

QupiorersCGsley

Qumiores8suley  ouFHemBeT, GQurphlasT o 2 _usyeunkiselesr  (PPE)wdlld®
QFuwin’ L opéaLTaInTe SpUl ETeushdHer LFsTIn SigHemen LWeUTlipomnE eupmIdgs
Had a0 BFH OCFwpur® OsTLIUTET Fammled elafll  (PEDDMENLD  E6IHRISTERILILIHLD.
wHUIG CFuwiu’ L QFwupdHmesimer STeOlLGHS LISTEUHLOTGLD.

@auGeurm OQFrsda eu@lien HINLOUCL uweeTen LUl sTeod LeTeumLomm):

eluLb TSI LIwesTLI(h)
Op UL &BIT60LD
SLUIe gl © LIGJRIMBIGET OMMID  &H(hHeIS6T 5 opamiBaEe
GLOTL LT 6UTH6IRIGH6TL 5 opemiBEeiT
BTV USHHBRIH6T FEhFensHenL 5 oLemIBe&e
OsTemne0BLIF®6iT 10 oy emiBsel
JOENEITUI D LIS 6WIBIH6N 5 opemiBE6eiT
5L I19L_BIS6IT 20 oy e 6N
elenenwiImT (5 2 LIGJ6uIBIE6NT 5 opemiBEei
® &HITemN

2.1.2

elehepmenl ulLfesr gl BmeuenigHemed (PGIS)  mljwomeildbsin’ L sl gL Bigbeafe
sreiseilasr 2 flenw  @eaienid  elehepmeorl  ulLldem ugly  BlneustsEHL LD (PGIS)
@uUuUenL &aluLaleoenev. sIeBeu, MevdHer QuUUILS HewisEe0 61(BSHSHIHCBTATETILIL 6606M60.
eTeusuTMTUIEnILD, eleheh el UL nTest uigLiy MHmIeUewTLD BuyGseseiiw
L6OBMEVSBDBHBHIL 60T SenemibslUL_(heTendl sieilend (1996 @er 01 b Qevds LoHmILD
1996 Quigeufl 12 oyb HaHw elehepmert ulLifer ugly Boeusd FULD). SHeuaiHHled

Qazmeten Geuesvt(hLbd.

SHLME O&FTSHH15HS60

spUmeF QFTHOSHTEIN 6160 BLOUSHGHHS (WPmPUied Semal  (PQUiD LOMHMID  DIGH68
alemeneurd  eTHTUTTEBLUUBLD  6IFTHTeL  QUTHETTSTY  [BETENOEHET  LISODHM6VSHHLDHHH 60
utwwo Burgl wLGOL @M  Simeuoter  GFTHH 2020 D pewIged  LYFHS
QFwiwiul_eteng  Blue  lotus 360 (Gwu®GSHSLILL L Swmfliiy) BB (h
OwaIOUTHEpSEETET  HTeLHBWR 2019 LD JpeWIged  STIOUWLTS. 5  SWI(HBEHHSG
sT0&5B06 CruwiuGAang. .85 QevEns QUTHIGSHIMD  BewIHSL(H  HUWILDLD
(SLPSAS)19 @et Ugangw gFwusm Qasm(hlUueie) wmmld &evel eu@ly GwsrGummer 05
SLWIBBEHHBTH 2021 0 pewi(h (WH60 BTeVEBI00 L TIDNSSUIUL (HeTeNG.

SenghFw B LSS 6NT

@miy  fywd  womw  CaxPw  messligw  Gumied  opFHweupmleT  SigliuenLuied
sTLLOu(pdeamet. Qurgieurs, Sywd, WpHelsd eubsHemel, (WPpHedsv eupmisliul L (FIFO)
SliuenLuled  Swreissiubdeaiper, Gosd @mUyssenerl QumeugsnaTear  GF6ve]



2.1.4

2.15

2.1.6

womd et SH6uTmsw Uil  wHmw  GoUILsHDEG —OCsmewi(h  euHLD
OFLNBIRIBMETUID 266N & @GBS

QupCeuettiguiensu

OuPBsuemTguIene DiehHey HTULITEGHLD 6160 WHII LU (B STeRilldaUUL (HeTeng).

SN LPOID HTHHEG FLOLOTRIENEUBEHLD

&M& MM BTHFHG FLOTIIMEUBEDHD HTH MWD eumEIBUTed  61EhFUeTen  emEULILHHENT
2_eiemLsslul_(heTener.Qevmiensd  eumdlullar  Guymdeneids  Hememuled  ugmwofléaluLd
2233593 b @Qevdsd el samaded  GeueflpTL(h  BTEwIWEBIGST LMD
Oarplusiaser, OuDSHHEEmeuseT WODID CFass GCeouswigwl HaHsefsr LFioTHD
Mds5He0 2 eMBTL(H  Brewwors  LIODUIUGSDE. wSHW  eumiHular  DiselwuF
Ggevmeuewi uflomrHmed @evomud / @ty Syt @miF uflornm  eissmBU  LWETUHSHS
X AMNNGEAE)

epum 50,338,160.18 o6 uewt Glomsig

sUBETWITENT SFHUH  HenewissensHermsd  26.07.2018 oeim  eupmislULL Sk
sLwelwed sawibsTWe ofsemauiar ug, weaemear  J8ragL o gel BlHwmeny
L6iTuy,.61D.6TeM0.6T10.6T60.  @SH0e006ue0  Bemeowme  euliybsmen  @IHsIE  QFUIg)
Gurgywrs Qupmis OCsTewiL, OHTEND STTEIIOTS GOULL  (LPEOSHT [HLLLOTE  (HLIT
50,338,160.18 (1861 emeuyF Geuwiwin’ L (epum  5,000,000.00) Haly SoufHenTed E6NIEI
STEIIULL&|. LLN6TWy.611D.6TLD.6T60.610 RHH06ueL Siaufsenmed 2008.03.14 (pshed 2017.11.30
auengwimes  sTeoliL@GHuled Gmgwimen  (penmulsd WemlQumm BleweowTss  eneuUlIL|SbEH6iT
SMPTEWILONS  ehUT 24,346,723  eullp eu(bOTEID @UPSSIUULLSTE DibHSH dAPEHamnasuien
Goaid  Qflelsaslulpbssl. Hp BHIu  JafsEndG OCFsHs  Geusmigul
uelaOaTenL s Ozmensullsd  epum  219,037.00 Ogremamw  SpalbBausnE SHCUTH
BLOUQEMS 6T(HHBULUL(HeTengl. 61chdFl OFHTenBmHW RHHOUD DeUTHEET  LI6DDHM60HDBIOD
Bgwevru PHwSHNEG OFeve] emeudsslULL UaISHHbH SINaBHaSDEG BLAIQSHMS
(BBBUULH eUhHBBTDS.

8 Gzrijure MC /B43167 /17 o0 @evdsd alpdHEG SHamilg BHeure BHLOEIMESHH 60
aupd@  alFmfleasiu’ (B aumHEBSIDGI. Auiysmen Sl (HeEOBTaTEUSDETES — FLUL DT
ST Hemewibsenid LLeTuy.61LD.61610.611D.6T610. B HH06006uevaln@G eidynas (DC/1196/20)
o0 Bevds  Faled eupsHLETEIMD  FHTHHL OQFUISHETENG. 610G FLLSHSTemNseMe
uryeneuuileo Bl SlienL (A OES B BTN 2 Wb B en s GuimssTy)
sTeRLUBGSRTDH. DpFHeomed HiF  (WemmBsLmest epum 50,338,160 QFTewsd BHEOL (LPHMEF
QFTHHIEHMET S euemBLILBHBLILL (HETENGH.

QurgiiyseT HDID goUTHS6T

;BOSTmS  HeHuled Pwin’ L  sewershg  QuIpLSSEHD  HH  Hlensveniod
FmOMIHHaTe0 o eTen salul(BeTenglen seuppler  Gumiod  HlLeu'Lions HEFEFHwES
wwrg QurpiysendsTas Gurdhwene MHAgHUTH CuHGsTaTaniuLL (FeTongl. MBOSTMS
Haduledmbal @rmemwigng ey  OFass  Cousmiguwiensl  BML(PMD  DIEVEVTSH
QuUTMILIYBTTSHS & ([HBSLILHES ST,

Ui BC BT BBT6T GFOLIT([HBET

31.12.2023 o HaHuled uelsOsTenLSBTer OUTH @6VEImad QUTHISHIMMD HewIbSL (H
Bluwwd  (SLPSAS) 19 @er  Uysmyw (el Hevasisen) &S sewidbal LUl (heen
Byemulsaslul (hetem  opuwed WAL (wpemmenlo uweiubhsd 2022 HeFwuy 31 @60
2 eitemeurm  UeNlBOBETHLESHTE  SewibHLUUL(HeTongl. BuwsHear  Chpemeuliumbaefest

rsmyw QeusfliubBeHe0H6T Sewidh@GEefed GmOsTeTaTUL (HeTermeT.



2024 HOgwuj 31 et Ugsmyw Spujel  WHUTI G uelbOsTenL
Qumrmiiy

epUIT
2024 Hegwuy 31 e KysTrw Spwjelm  WHOT.(H usilssTamL
Qummiiiy] eue»FWMISSUIULL BTN SLMDSMN  HHGUTEMSHW 7,791,951
Gumiod rHow AL UL pevaseflean SHCUTHW GuUILHEHT6
Bl& gour®G(PV-DBO)
2024 geteufl 01 @evt gaTyD uebOSTEL  QUITDILIL
UMTWMIBSLIULL BNy SLmwHeflsd snGurensw Gumiod LTHDLD
AlLbliu’ L pevaseflen sHCuTsW Gumiodéster Bl gour@h

BTOVHEMBTET UL Igdh SFuILD 1,012,954
BTeuSHHMETET BLITHL BFemeu QFsv6y 685,535
Hrfl i’ L pevsiiseflesr sHCUTHW Gumiod) Spu’ 1,125,784
Sl (B @eomuibd /(BLLLD)

2023 HEgwuy 31 e 2 _aTemeurm HLOLLUCL Hevasiseest 10,616,224

sHBuTsw QuuoddsTer BF gouT®H

wBOsTSUleT OO aumLTET fismaulsd SmEsfssiulL QFHTemnS

2023 FHOssFbuy 31 a1 usmissTamL goUT(H 10,616,224
2023 HOFFwuUF 31 R0 2 _eTeneuTn SeEIGTEILILLL LU
et (@eomud / BULID)

10,616,224
2023 HOgFwuj 31 v 2 _eitemeury GeTEIGTOILIULL QUM
QUHLOTETS Fapmlesl @emisTenlul L QFsvaieid
aully QFevaileid 1.012.954
snBurgw Gaemeuds &lwid 685.535
AUHLOTEISH60 @emisTeuTlIUL L QF6vaild) 1,698,489
gemerl elifleuren euLOTeNS Fampled @emisTanTlILL L QFsvaied
Gemmismeiiul L Caplw Spujl seillil(p @eomub/BLLLD 1,125,784
geneil alifleuren eubLOTeTdS Fampled @emISTeTILL L QFevailssibd 1.125.784
mbOFTeMHUI0 QemisTeiulL Capmiw GQuImItiydHafear iemde]
2024 geeufl 01 @60 2 _eTeneurm LU Bzl Gurmiliy 7,791,951
QUmHLOMTEIS Fnpplent @emisTeniul L OFsvaissid 1,698,489
generiwl elifleurest euHLOTeNS Fapmled @enmisTeniiul_ L GFevalsiid 1,125,784
sTeVaL LeHHe0 GeueflCupweuysend@d OCFsSSIULL / OFss
Gouemtngui L1ewNleQBTEmL
2024 Fsgbuy 31 @60 2 etemeury @miH QUTHIL 10.616.224

2.1.9 usvsmensslpd Baweoru BiFwW (UPF)opmid usdsmevdssips @uisgdul Bl

Bevmmasulsl QHTLIYUMLW FLLEIGET OO @UOEIGPMDDSET LOHIID  LISOHN60HHLDH
FLLSH Uy @euQeurp UswlwTemflel  FOUMGSHNID LDEHMEVSHBIOBH(PD  DeMOUITSH(ETHLD
wempBw 15%, 10% wpmid 10% e UOSMVSSLS GFweomu  BHWHHDG UEIS6TILIL
QG dSimer.  euuTBY  UOBMVESES @uleyduid  Quurd  emfluwFseflOlmHhHS
PAwWSHNG 8% umsailly OCFIADS. DiSHILeT @UisSwd Quuid 2emALIFHEHHE
LUVBMEVEBPBD uisydl BAwsHNG 7% umseily GFudng).

2.1.10 o0z wiomnd ¢s@ec (ETF)

B0 8@ 08 arwmme (PGIS) o o eddmwed :9essy 3% 0ddm widmad
808eEO vwm el Dnewsy endn CIE.



2.1.10 2afuiy Gzweomu HiFw (EPF)

21.11

2.1.12

LEOHMEVEBLBHEHDTE0  @ealGeurh omfluly FuensHer sigliuemLuied eamfluiy GFsomu
BHwsHnG 3%umiseily Csuidama.

relwd QFHTLIUTEN HvihE@ el

wreflwg  QFeveysel  alghepmerrl ULLLTST  ugly  BmieuetsSlenimed) 1@FevalLLIuL L
OFovalmsErdEaTed  QFNGHSUUGL  wTelww  SeEISTIIULH — DiHSBTEOLILEGHSH W60
QUHLOTENES  FaMiled eu(HLOTEIOTS SmSHfsslIUGENS. @ QFTsHar  HFwsIHNSTH
FHOFUWIUGBLD  wrelwb  euwmoTaiddmmmled o flu OFTdhdear  uwealeTen  oLU|HBTeughH6e0
uulURUITE  SEISEFSSILGHDS. @Revmms &emissl(h Bww 20 (LKAS 20) @en
U, cpeUHe  LOMLBISENST — SIHLWTeND  Hmewl,  elehepmearl Ul LinTsr Ll

BINIEUETSHSTED GUHLOTET MG PMD SewidbSl (B CaTiurlh  uweUGSHSUIULL ).

SLWTeMND STl QFuPH LD  edevg  GFwsdumiigsd  LWETUBHSHHIISDSTS
wreflwhiseal/ BatGsTenLsaT  QupLLBLLEUTS, BHE6T  suemgwmIBSLIULL  BlHD
B6u0TES 60 emeusbBLILL (B, SIHLWITELD STeuTLILIL L AL GG 601 OHTLFLemL W
QFevalemisenenl QuUIhEHS BlF OCFweommmed oM@ LWIPMPOUGL. LWSTUGSSIULTSH
PHs6ll DBFHS BHE BawidGHDHaMN0 meubslUL (Helene WOHMID Seneu  CHemeuliLBLd
Uy BlFsammmibsefsd WL GHUUGSSILLL BHwrisafar S BaFyoHaliubLD.

S ITIFS opid Yevenwluflfed BlHuid, GaFwevwjeyser wopmid elCFL Fhayiu BlEuid
BHE G WwHOILD (PHTEMSHHIN FMUUINT BISHTTHSHILOT Lmpwl QFweomm g FTuIFS
SHBEmeN  LOTOHMIGUSHET cLpsOld  SpTTUIFS oD STelBHEH BHWD Bmieu it (HeTengL 6t
QFwsomm Q&FW6VLDT 613 61T LoMHMILD (SMIEIHT6V urLQpPlser BlaVIen61EHem 61T
LTOMIUGET  elpeold  QFweowTeysel omid BlawFd FHub o maurssiulLgs. b
MBBWIBIH6IT (PSBTMLOHF|61 W VAL =¥ @Mlumeot GrbIT & B MBIH EHHBTH
vweTU(BSSUUL BA DS

BEHF GFweomdHmed FndHmI

BHFQFWeOMDHDEO FaM6d 6UHLOTGIEIBENGN S GIEISHTCIIC0

QU(HLOTEUTLD 6TEUTLIG, Dh6WI(B (PIPeUBID elEhepmenr L LInTesr uigliy mBlneuesissmed Quplin’ L
oo  CuUPEHES CUTHMTSTY HEMLE6T Jvevdl BFmeu g Omeder  GLOTHS
Uy semend  QETemi(heTeng  OMIWL  Hay  CFTHHIsHT/URIGHM  siFHEfllmud
Gsdngl. eleheprenr ulLlbar ugly FBoeuend, @evmens CUTSHISHIND SH6mTSHSL6D
Bluwwd 10 (uflwrpn ufleuissemnansafledhbal eUmHLTEID) HMILD GevEmns CUTHIGHHIEND
semibEwed pwwow 11 (ufliorpod  seveons  ufleuishHmansafedbbal  GUHLOTEILD)
Spdweumnled Bimieuliul L SiemeyGsmevsenentl LSumm 6uhHLOTEIGMEN DBISHFHE NS

A) uflorppd SIeVeOTSH LIfloufSHBHMmetsaiehbEH cuHeuTUl

ufllomOod  BieVEUTSH  UFeUTHBHMEIHET eTailgl, 6lehepmer UL gl — Bimieuestd
(PGIS) Gamymwwons 9183 oiemey GQumiodenwt (61.&T. UL BeV60FH LD OFTHHIHH60T)
uflompiles  GameTenmosd  WHOMTMH  BloeustSHLOBBH  Cumidenw OQUMIEUBTSHLD.
Bremeumer Haly, @ CQFTHHST eumFUmMOW LFsHH GFuuw ufliormod  Sie060TSH
ufleujSHHmesanelhhE GUMEIGETT eUTe BT QFTHHIGHNTS HNEISHSHHLILHS6TN6N

* QUITHENTHITT HETMOHET BiVEVEH CFemeu SLDHMEIST aUT6| (LPHIBHMEL DMATulIed
BnieueTHHMGH eUHEUSMBTET euTUIlL B (hH&HEGHWBUTSI.

e pwrwworer Quuibdenw  BOUSHGSHS (WmDuled Semall (piuid Gurg.



QFTHHIBHENTH SIBIESdBE UL uflormoLd SI6V60T S ufleu s eneut el edlhb S
ouenBIGeNasT  suFedel LfOTHOL  DIEVOTH  UHATWTS DRSS HSILGESDT, DHS
I s@ (PaIBme Sifielwsd Bmeuard {Umen) @b SLmwmW gnaTs enalnd.

elehepmeor ulLlnfesr gy  mMloeuesd (PGIS) ufliorpmd oieveoms  Lifleui 85606018 E1h S ST 6T
GOUILL omESsETy ieme|BsTe0saT Lo hLomm).

18emiGL (gD Lomefluid

WewtGL (oo omelwid  epevld  Lemmuleumennged, eilehehmenr UL LTesT  LigliL MSmIeUewTLD
(PGIS) SemmBasfluledmmba  OsTLIFSAWTem  DI6V60FH  (LPEOST  LOTOIWILD  TEMHUILD
Gumeailsvenev.

b) uflasel, BETOETMLE6T WLHMID TN EUMSWTET [HesTOHTML H6IT

R BIOBTML 6T60TLSH BUBSMOIWDY 6UMBWTRT QFTEHHIHHET 2 LLL, L6WID D606VE
On uew QarsgioHseT wLODWD  eumsWTal  CFTESHISHmeT  BnouasHnG SIS
(PIEUBSH  LOTOMICUSTGID.  6THTHTVL  QUTHEMTHTT HETHIDBT DleVevG I BFeweu  FHmest
PoeuetsHm@G Uty  sutwily @me@Gn  Gurgk womid  CFTsHHisbserila  Bmuomest
wHimU BOUSGHGHS Wmpuied emel  (puw Gurgl, uflasei, BHETOBTNL H6NT

OO euemBWTET QFTHHISH6T LFIDTHMD DIEV6OTSH 6UHLOTRILTS DEISHFISHHELILIBSSTDeT.

B) applws Gaeomeuswi Lifleujssmendeflelpba euHLOTEILD

elehepmesr UL desr gy  Bmeusnsdent (PGIS) uflommo ufleuyssenensst QBTLFLT6
SO L omSsTy SleneBaredsat LaaHLoTD:

a) elllg GU(HLOTEILD

'y eupLOTEID LGN SigluenLuied @emisTeiLGE SIS

b) pPeWFHHEnHHETE S L GIIBLOTEILD
BlapFAHH L &BL_L6u0r QU(HLDITEOTLD S (bml BB (Hd Gamumigest
Bufled @emsTeRILUL(heTongl. ST LsTrn  SHBUTHW  &STOHDESW  BlawFASHLL
BLLEWIBIHOT — DSBTOLIUGHGBETE  BHHDFAGH L aUHLOTEIOTS  QEBISTeILILL (HeTeng.
2024.12.31 @60 (PYoUDLBHS WIgMETET  CFISHILLTH HHWEFASH L S L WImIH6IT
(GupBsuewnguwr) wHMID GFaSSILL(HeTem Wend  uTLOBENS Sl Lemmiser (NHGUTLLIL L
QUHLOTEIID) @NETH HEWIHGHHB6NM60 FITHBHD QFLIWIUL (HETENG.
¢) BeBIOL (gD Lomefuid
e pod  meflwd  cpeod  HMLBGW  UHOMRID  SDWTlD LG

BTEVLILGHUI60 G 6UTEISTeTLILIHLD.

d) oprmuiFs oreiEIS6T 6IHLOTEIEIS6T LHDILD CFevaieIEISel
SiemLWTenDd smewiliul L. QFwm S Sjevevd QFwsOUTLIged LWau(bhsHsS BiF QupluEld
Gurrgy, SIGHMEW  HHB6T @ SHLOFLIWILLL HHs sewadsd  emeudbsiUl (b,
Hettenry oibgd SewLWTeNDd &TewilulL HLLb Sevevgd GFweounr® OsTLIuUTs  gouBLD
OFeveysemen QUTHSS MHH GQFwTHDE SPSMEHEG LIPOUUGLD. LWETUBGSHSIULTS
PHs6l SBFHS BHd @mibGaHeisd meaubslu@GD, Guwaid meu Crrésd T
FHLD Si6vevg QFweuTLNGU LweTUuhSHSUIUBL aueny HiFH GFweommmed Sinildbanasulled

CayssLLBLD. ,



e) MU 6U(HLOTEIILD

gemeal eUHLTRILD SILBH SigliumLuied GenmisTenriubaSaImgl.

f) Qzwevfe), GHmiBEWwSTeL UTLQBMSE6T LOHDID &([HSHSPEIGH6IT
QFweojaysel, (GNBWSTEL UTLOBMSST LHMID  SHSBIBIGHEHEHBTE  BHIFUTHS
BLLEIBIG6T HTanTels TGS S QeuafliuGasIuGEET D).

3.2 mld Qsweonpmed ofismsulsd GFevasamen DIMSHHHH0

OFev6yH6T @) HILL6D SigliemLuiled SmisSsfssiubEainer, Gebd op6m(HaHET6
OFevailemisEnd@ Gsd eaupLTaID SmSHsslubBL Curgl GsTLIYMLW GQF6vey
SHMEVLIBEHHE 61F606HLILHS M.

4. STHI UTLIFFED Fadm]
Exmnur’ (b [BL6UIQ &N HH6IT, mHglwief g g 60 [BL_61Q 60 HH6NT LoMHMILD WH65L_(h
[BL_6L19 &6M & & 61T S FWweudMeNBHSI LI6uoTLD Qumieuee LoMHMILD LI6uoTE QBT (HLILI6DT
omEsfaslIubISImeT. Seomemnsd CuUTHIGSHIMD SeubS (B Bwwow 2 (SLPSAS 2 )@enr
Aysmpd  sraiurdged gapm a1 Aysmpn Cwfled (wpemmeno Siglientullsd
swrflaslul Berengl. SiEiG CrsHs Ul eugeaser oM Grss uew CamBLLRTE|SH6NT
&MT&H MWD HTHEGF FIOOTHIENEN HMTHG LOHMID 6ukId GHLUYSHSH6T LOHMID GMIEW  HTev

maullsh OHTNBHMENS BTN (HEGLD.



2024 2023
&5 LONOID BTGk FLOLONGIENE @Myl CMHLIT. eHLIT..
caumIdlulled e 0001273990 530,754 2,875,967
aumidluled &ma 0001274002 1,187,590 518,491
eumIduled &ma 0571001911338034 731,553 171,443
eumIBluNed &ma 81041788 13,128,371 1,307,153
Gauoliy A/ C US$ 2233593 530,026 7,868,108
Gzl A/ C- BOC-84023069 267,434 4,218,228
Bg1Oy A/C- 057-2-001-5-0031385 754,051 734,833
17,129,780 17,694,223
wpa’E 2
8. amd wsesH 311,427,761 111,651,287
65.05. amd se5H 13,200,310 184,363,430
Blensowimest _eneuli 15.9.8 4761018, 338,600,727 358,769,520
W&EH6T aumd (PpH65(H 28,608,269 26,377,137
SMIB eumIluled Hlensowimen emeuLiL 13,923,958
705,761,026 681,161,373
QLm Galsmilguienal LOPMILD 606 : 3
Oup Geusmigwl BBHLOFS EU(HLOTEILD 26,267,550 30,240,000
SILBm eul g 8,209,067 47,572,702
OUTHEN GUTL 6WE L L 6WTRIHGT 268,167 71,808
(pHOSTHLILGTEY 754,534 705,895
QumGsusmtigul em6uLIL
BreTalls SLeTUl LT 66,213 66,213
CremeusEheHHTen meULIL|SHEH60T 150,000 150,000
BIeITall® (LpHUEKILD 15,000 35,000
35,730,531 78,841,617
2024 2023
Sl eTHLIM. LI,
4
. .
[EL(LPENDUIOEOIT QuorsgLd QTS50
[bENL_(LPEMD il
QLT HL6&T 953,836 2,584,444 3,538,280 3,646,702
Hoootenl]  BL_6oT 63,000 115,000 178,000 203,000
GUTH6IH  HL_60T 229,530 231,354 460,884 403,375
ugselwesflufesy &L ei 12,240 29,580 41,820 31,830
1,258,606 2,960,378 4,218,984 4,284,907
QuIgefpiy BEiybsel 5
s110&IBmeT 2,700,240 4,019,380
QyFrwer SmLiy 985,191 993,206
3,685,431 5,012,586
Bewierl  QLoGTELIT(H6IT 6
dyuwibd
ST 15 1,712,522 1,712,522
gl (B 666,070
And 158 2,378,592 1,712,522
Srlipul sTeHS 6
STIbU 158 957,290 614,786
a6y T (haev GauiwliulL 283,556 342,504
Bm& 153 1,240,346 957,290
Caplw ysss Gumpiod 1,137,746 755,232
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(@O0Y 7)

SpFHAEIHB6T, QUTESET LOHDILD

DIREE:S) 2080
LI,
SpulaFnL
&1 560 BT6VEH Gy SIS
sLpLEBIH6 | OpTensGud 2 _LISJenIbIS &5 SIBIH 61 AUTHRBIBET | o usyemmsst | elensmum’ (B GLorHFLd
Sywid
. . 240,350,000 158,490 148,452,450 5,171,072 17,000,000 11,802,770 34,800 422,969,582
2024 saneufl 01 @6v 2 aiensurmy
FTTHBEIGET MBS/ HATOBTmL -
AIBLSHD  BFTHHe0H6N
373,958 - 2,304,060 219,388 1,056,926 - 3,954,331
2024 FOFOUT 31 @6 2 6lTemeuTl 240,723,958 158,490 150,756,510 5,390,460 17,000,000 12,859,696 34,800 426,923,913
Ay w1 GupoTesCsWie]
24,035,000 30,839 29,683,537 2,011,742 6,800,000 2,271,711 17,400 64,850,229
2024 semeufl 01 @0 Spyidu LS
FITHEEIBET MBBHATUL/ HOTOBTENL -
AIGBLESHD  BFTHH0H6N
12,017,500 15,849 30,016,327 1,073,884 3,400,000 2,492,736 8,700 49,024,997
36,052,500 46,688 59,699,864 3,085,626 10,200,000 4,764,447 26,100 113,875,226
2024 geeufl 01 &0 Hyligui
@QupjoTensBs5ule]
2024 FOFwuf 31 v 2 _eeneuny GxHaw
Cumiod 204,671,458 111,802 91,056,646 2,304,833 6,800,000 8,095,249 8,700 313,048,687
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) 2024 2023
. . . @m;uq. EHLIT. gHUT.
21 Go QFaalamEIseT
SILBo Gesvalamise - WBamGL(pid 22,285,830 24,497,207
SILBM QFVAIDIBIHET - (LPEVSHEILD 55.800 142,302
22,341,630 24,639,509
R
9
o Ga.ouf 13,050 11,025
o .Qg.aufl 1,150,418 356,955
2 .Qs.cuf 10,750
gmel Qseishs GCeusmngulenel -Heoals 9.1 2,745,705 1,824,438
FMLISH6NT
g Gsqiss Gousingwiene - 9.2 1,889,502 4,158,711
GMIMBISTE0 UTL QBaNse6i
Aemewr Qummiliy 80,495 18,698
Pnsd emeissed 1,345,430 1,345,430
7,235,350 7,7 5,257
9.1
@ysmwen alehehTen HeLAF FenLl 74,700 74,700
yelulwied elehehTes HevalF Fenu 2,288,840 1,484,933
FHOOTL6L 6lEhEhTen HevalF Fenu 1,625 1,625
Quengsaiwied allehEhTen HeLAIF FenLl 11,740 11,740
FTeugalwied 6lehEpTer HeellF FemLl 121,706 4,346
olehepTenss Hevell H6VONF Femul 99,537 99,537
alevmiBlsd alehEhTeid  HevalF FenLl 48,957 48,957
2 ul] mHSEI HvalF Fenu 98,600 98,600
2,745,705 1,824,438
LD[ilLb SIeneuL 9.2
Brzenn @uamwealwelsd Gowul L FTeis) 220.822 560.222
LigLiLy 5 >
ICMME-2021 19,995
wHwemy QFupdird GSMB 439,840
125 opeugl £5.:m.61610. LFGWITasLD 340,742
W/S BwGym elehepmend - 2021 39,585
opLeorFemem BFauemeu LaMGaIES 59,060
B BMTFenL
128 opougzl of.m.ere0. LyGuimsstd 803,907
SUUTET L&MW Geneneh] OFwnHLL LD 934,404 602,275
2 Wiy wmsger aleheTasdled 2 wisy 169,075 169,075
FnaiMap ur Gpm
Pathegen Genomics wnmpr($2023 43,800 61,000
2 ul] s@eued elEhEHTaISI0 2 ST 304,135 997,000
Frasp urL Qb
PCPREE @arLjumen umL Qb / &hSHSIEIES 66,010
128 opougzl o.m.ere0. LpGuimsstd 217,265
1,889,502 4,158,711




2024 2023
um.
Gmly. U ®
10
b HEML_(LPMMLLIELEVT FH
DEULILEH ST QLo & HLD
BIT6VE  MEULILEHEH6IT 3,596,000 1,042,000 4,638,000 4,688,000
el(6h(EHTEN  EMEULILIEH6IT 3,007,500 928,500 3,936,000 3,954,000
JEMEITU!  EDEULILIEH6NT 193,009 193,009 196,012
6,796,509 1,970,500 8,767,009 8,838,012
gHUTB a6l 11
BOSHTUIOS &L L 6wl 1,325,250 625,250
goUT(H&H6i
Henewid &L Lewl 6JHUT(HEH6IT 130,000
1,455,250 625,250
12
3 - 950
goaufl 01 @60 155 7,791,951 7,204,069
SLEWTYMBTH FTL L LILILL 12.1 2,824,273 1,893,695
10,616,224 9,097,763
opemigerr Gurgl GFasHul QsT(HLILIET6Y {1,305,812)
Spemtigen @migluied g 10,616,224 7,791,951
SL,EWIYMBTE  SHL L 6TIBISH6ENT
12.1
uenipwl BFemeuds Hyuibd 119,538
el 19F QFsvailed 1,012,954 1,296,732
BmL(penn BFemeu Hyuibd 685,535 477,424
GxPlw (6u(HLOTEID). [BLLLD 2 L arguims 1,125,784
SIRISHHEBHUULL )
QUHLOTE DMBmBUTD DBISESFHSEIULL  CFeveyser 2,824,273 1,893,695
13
yevemwolt Lflfled Bl Siogdeis
1,638,369 1,542,907
SLITwIFS oo Yevenoliufldled 1,188,367
2,395,265
Qswevnfayd BapFdlsst HHLPLD 7,151,884 6,937,852
11,185,518 9,669,126




. GUUGSSIUL L. BFHwmiseT @My 2024 2023
14 amum eHLUT.
Loreiw @ev. QUPEISLILL L 6uf QUi
6242 Buym.e1F.611D.19.23.19L 61160 Bomimas CaLL®ILGES 50,140
OQumwd Ll (Hs60
6292 Guym. & WaEhSTaIe0 @ P 33148 B 319,782 639,563
6393 &6, If.6TD.LL1. LISwILIT PGIS/2020/05 113,476
6294 soor. g&.g.8.Ge. opflurser  pGrs/2020/23 86,421
6295 @eurm. 15.61D.Gs. Guyodlfl PGIS/2020/10 259,445
6296 LT&LIDEUT. 19.605.65. 9T 8 pi1g/2020/04 122,700
FlsOour ’
6297 1g.2%f Ludlsiruy. 4. 1. PGIS/2020/17 15,639
LA
6298  GuyTdIFLy W).q.Ge. PGIS/2020/06 118,100
ewiguinymge
6299 Lm&LY eten.LLl6iuy,.1. PGIS/2020/18 394,900 394,900
ume g, fluim
6301 GuyTEfw 1g.61D.19. PGIS/2020/21 116,550
WISHBHTEU6D
6302 seomHgl l.eted. gfionflul PGIS/ 2020/ 03 21,155
6303 Guyrdiflwy Lleiruy.l. PGIS/2020/24 1Q0,000
BobSCsaET
6304 Gugralflwy Gs.1. pewieuen PGIS/2020/22 1,433
6306 GupmAflwiy ererv.61&.19. ail.u.u.om. wreflwkiseT -280 300.000
& ([ GUOTITIY G631 ’
6313  Guymdlflwiy uewwTLmy evaigag oprTuIFd S erdlsd 780.503
6317 (Sug_rré]d’lu_l'g 19.6TLD.19. BJ UTHISTOY Fal LRISH6NT 4,799,889 6,538,400
WIBHSTEU6D
5,514,571 9,658,424
@iy 2024 2023
eHuT eHuT
QILIg AU(BLOMEIILD 15
Blensowmest emeulil 6ullg 57,962,495 99,151,016
L7610 F.6ul 19 18,928 68,426
usalwenll HLT 6ULlg 192,793 177,401
GaAliy eul'ig 73,318 6,000
58,247,533 99,402,843
2 (HUTSSLULL QU(HLOTEILD 16
BlapFH B LewId 54,314,979 51,265,751
udley S L 6w 2,564,900 2,230,500
ufl engd L L 6ewIld 1,748,546 1,819,450
| oppmuIFS smmEISFe  eumHLoTeLD 776,500 451,739
LO(hSHSHI6U HL L 6w0TLD 129,250 37,550
BFemeumel LOMHMILD 6UFHBH6T HL L GwILD - 20,000
GUTHT GUTL 6WH &L L 6U0ILD 1,146,400 975,820
BITevd 1950HL (HH6NT 475,500 372,000
Gupuryeneu HL L ewid 1,330,000 787,500
QuEhF L L ewIld 877,500 1,013,000
63,363,575 58,973,310




92 (HOUTSSLILLL  6(HLOTENILD

16.1

SIFFL60 QU(HLDT6IILD 52,188 78,868
BIT6UTES  HL_L 6UOIBIS 6N 672,990 614,440
FTOIMIHL EUHLOTEILD 1,006.800 1,136,990
Guoevomg  (LpesTLIgeY 6U(HLDTEITLD 30,000 107,000
alleteniiill QFWIEOTHS &L GWILD 975,000 724,000
XRD u@lumuiiey eumLomesib 22,500 334,500
XRF u@iumiin] aimorenb 565,200 509,500
ORI eULTEID 1,202,797 2,297,542
uCL FHumFly 6u(HLOTEIILD 45215

4,572,690 5,802,839
Sl L  Geugbemmelssl 2024 2023
SEiul L Fbuend (He0ell&Ty) 17
FLOUSTLD LoHOID 2agluisiseT 2,651,663 3,806,825
LELBMVSHS BFosomu  BlFHwid 959,206 794,893
sevall omfluiy  Gaweomu MK 74,126 80,178
LERIWITEN] SIDSSLL 6T bHid 210,223 179,575
seval GamHliLere] 3,784,944 4,189,357
0w @amHLiLese e 297,699 259,836
gn(bpe0 OaTBLUeTe] 200 348,060 348,060
aumpsmas GiFeve| GaT(BLL6Ta 575,812 272,811
SpITUIFS QamBriLeTe)] 609,105 609,105
LTETHS SV GBT(HLLIETE] 116,220 118,750
Geuslourl  alfleyemy &L L6wid 13,196,854 9,569,147

22,823,911 20,228,538
SEBUT Fouemd (Heval FTym) 17
sibUSTEIEAT WHOID saFurissh 13,014,767 13,217,420
LEOBMEVGHIS @uieydHwl Bl 1,700,954 1,506,702
@uisyAw bl 1,788,493 1,588,121
oy BoUGmS  BISILD 714,217 625,989
Guegles  GryL 1,603,626 1,776,495
slBupemn Hamll  Ligaein 253,294 198,338
gemenl Gem(BLiLIE6 6T 93,335 91,981
wrsThs GuilG GarGluussy - MCA 5,646,214 5,518,215
U601 QST emL 2,824,273 1,893,695
SIMUIES GBTBLILETE 563,337 363,888
Guede Qsr@lusaey - 20% 2,509,428 2,452,540
auTpEmed OFevealeans  GamHLILIeTeY 5,146,242 2.223.899
THTHS OET(HLILGTEY 1,419,839 1,425,576
uswiwmeny G mg 65,309 28,095
LeRIWITENT  FIem a6 129,264 140,281

37,472,594 33,051,234
SHIUL L Coupammelsal (SienLow) 17
SIMIDWI  FLOLIGTLD 694,000 383,000

694,000 383,000




Gy 2024 2023

18 ¢pum pum
SllUC L CougsammellseT (DienLout)
Aywmesst LgseT 2 6B 162,017 128,280
162,017 128,280
R DIAETNE T 19
S1(BIBHENBEBLD HEVIEI6VS 2,471,018 1,667,408
Bxpemeuum (e empHLd
@QUTHEHLD 2 _Jrule] [HdaHEmLD 1,588,172 1,684,675
Qurpluiwed wHmID BRevdHTeiluisd 223,548 538,807
QT FTUIGIRIBEHLD HE0TENITIQL 876,374 549,233
QUIT(HL_BH(ETHLD
5,159,113 4,440,122
ugmofiiiy 20
6UIT & 6UTMBIG6IT 1,633,687 1,398,796
DSORGB, QUTNHH6T 2 _LIS]6RIBIH6T 3,685,599 2,121,877
SLIQL BIHET HL L MLOLILSHSH6NT 518,760 192,415
5,838,046 4,313,088
@uUBs CFemneuselr 21
QFHTLFUTL 60 5,229,171 6,849,440
g)urre‘{) HL_L_6U0TMRISH6NT 333,880 363,510
\OeiFmyiD 2,042,631 2,341,536
urglsmiy Caemeusmeit 1,321,645 1,092,141
ﬂ?,'u’ HL_L_6U0TMRISH6NT 154,175 164,693
ssHafliliy CFevalemisern 1,600,686 1,757,264
10,682,188 12,568,583
gemenw 18emiGLpld GFsveilerd 22
SEfLib efembLy(pth 471,871 617,368
BHEMIBBTUI6|DH  HL L GOTRISENT 700,000 650,000
Guyemen LOHOID GlobBEhbsTaN 6@ 1,682,452 1,096,026
Caemeud it
OpTleoamy oMb gemeul elGFL 116,445 18,995
Bxemsumel
BHEHIHGHEHD QFLIDIaHEHLD 486,370 280,508
ugaiweni silellmeHs 10,000
SIBpen Hen Ligame 68,175 91,825
UEINE HL L 6RIEIS6NT 392,319 326,705
almsIHEHD RUI[HSEHLD 1,070,000 400,000
ufl eng QFe0aleumISH6iT 4,133,002 2,856,740
gemeil  QFevailenmiasei 1,074,664 735,055
ugelwIewd 5606 H6NT 452,859 439,825
LOTEwT6Y  [B6VATLfS6N 25,000
FLL LOMMID S,616TIEIH6NT 1,178,798 852,270
ul L eIy 500,000
Hev6ell SpTTUIFS - 311,800
PGIS oppruigdl srmidyen 1,562,471 804,171
W Hmy  eulfl 18,375 230,150
LVHMVSHIH HTLILMIEH HI L LD 194,400 135,000
SuyTuIFS el GFsvaierd 8,620,055 8,903,225
BLLMEIGEHD UBHeudiLb 3,875,000 2,500
26,622,255 18,552,163
HLI9L BIHEIT 23
Qx5 TemevBUd 12,017,500 12,017,500
SpUIeYFal MWD SHDMeD 15,849 15,539
©_LIGI]6WIMBIH6N
LSHSHBEIHEHLD F(6hHF 60 HH6IHLD 30,016,327 29,683,537
SIVIEU6VH O _LIGIT6UTLD 1,073,884 1,005,988

&L IQL_TBIH6IT 2,492,736 2,271,711




G LTy 6UT&601mIH6NT 3,400,000 3,400,000

allenenwiml (5 2 _LIGIJ6uIBIS6NT 8,700 10,440

49,024,997 48,404,715

158,479,121 142,521,974




alghepmers Ll L (fest gl mMlmieussLd
2024 HeFuj 31 O 2 eiemaurprer LfmF
15

Bew® Bemed® »H® »o DIt}
eSm®@ (c) ()
00003 “&r@gx{H 0571001911338034 731,553
00002 &S1G&H 0001274002 1,187,590
00001 &1BFE 0001273990 530,754
00007 &16F(H 81041788 13,128,371
10320 Gy Bevmienad eumidl &.g 84023069 267434
03000 SILBM QIGLOTETLD 8,209,067
03100 OUTHEN UTL W& HL LoD Gum Geuemrnguig| 268,167
02002 el &L 6I1Eb6IT 178,000
04000 CremeusEndsren meullh0FHTems - 150.000
eTfQUIT (6T ’
02000 GuilLy L evmer 3.538.280
01006 peitgnLgBur ClFISHSHIHE0 754,534
03200 CUPSBHS BIFEO BHLLEWILD 26,267,550
05000 RFC 530,026
10310 Gxily-19.siopdBIs 2 FHalsE0HTams. Bldo6l 754,051
02003 LeTWITeN &L 65161 41,820
01004 Fwuy 31 o Bz mleveugliug L 3,685,431
01001 QBT S 6UTHIGLI6U]TSH6IT 66,213
02004 GUTHEIT  BL_60TEH 61T 460,884
1002 @B (LPEITLIETOIEIHENT 15,000
30700 QBT HLET 6ULDEIGEHLIOTH6IT 55,800
23110 (PeVGEIL LiewbEnd@ 5% HHeemeuli 1,345,430
32162 GIS o> oiFer vwesTuT®H GHNGS 1296ug) 217,265
S/C
30300 Ayl Liul L GFeveysei 22.285.830
23020 Gy ,yeTweralwed Fenu ’ 74”700
23030 el elghehmen emL SH6iT 2,288,840
23040 FOMIFFHLP0 SIMalwied eumflulmiserT 1,625
23060 AQuipiwed siplailwied eumfluimisert 11,740
23070 STeugaluled eumFlmIser 121,706
23080 allehEhmenr Heval FemLl 99,537
23100 6EVMmBIEILIED 48,957
23112 2 ullfl w@pssen SAPeluled eurflwibiser 98,600
30100 MEULIL|BET 193,009
23200 RSHHMEUSHLUILLL 6)(HLOTEITLD 11,639,151
30004 BT60S eneuLL| 4,638,000
31954 aumeuruilesr 155 OFashs Geuswmigur euflasei 1,150,418
31952 aufl Bmbd meusbgHeo 10,750
31520 &flio GeugduTwiedsd Guobul L umL Qi ’
220,822
32082 Guprdflwy . ouwrfms 2 sa50sTms B 1,638,369
30005 allghEhTe  mEULILSOIBTEMES
3,936,000
30200 dlememill LUSSHITLD 80,495
31950 CEELRY ] 13,050




Ben® Hemid@ Uiy oY a6
) () (cn)
32155 2 uiiflued ellehEpransded 2 WISy sTalHD
LigLiLy 169,075
32156 MUUTET UMD Ben6neh] & LLD 934,404
32158 o uly ssaedwelsd S.C 304,135
32160 PATHEGON Genomics SYM-2023 G&rLjumen W/5 43.800
20000 Qurgl emeulidbasel 986,542,402
20500 SpITUIFS wHpId 2 Fels0sTme Kl 2,395,265
21500 el WHITLG SLIySS6i 130,527,591
20600 OFweviofey  OMID GMBW SM6v Ligly Bl 7,151,884
84108 Beval-se0al CBTHLILIETR|SH6T 3,784,944
84112 Hoval- Bevdlad Gambliueiey 20eLp 348,060
84120 Hovail-euTDHMBF OF6v6y QBM(HLILIGITE 575,812
84104 seval-GFmeu Big 210,223
84110 sevail-Lp GemBLiLemey 297,699
84113 BVAI-OTHTHS BT (BLiLse) 116,220
84121 Heval-oLTTUIFS Qam(hLiueey 250 609.105
84101 &H6LEI-FLDLIGNBIGHAT LOHMILD 2enHUIBIHEIT 2,651,663
84123 &60al-Gemeu [Hlg) 74,126
84102 seval-all. uw. Big 959,206
80811 HIHBTUIE|  SLL6WILD 700,000
80910 GUEIS  BL_L GUIEISH6IT 392319
80911 uflesen wpmi> i’ 1,070,000
80703 SLIQL MBIHET MWD HLL 6NLOLIL|SH6IT 518,760
84249 BHOFWeTE 2agluimiseT 694,000
80605 JETWIGNBIS6IT LOMMID SHEWIGWITIQ 876,374
80807 loyTey GFeneusel 1,600,686
80950 CaUIoTeDd - HLIgL IS 12,017,500
80953 GHUIDTEID - SpUIUSLD WHDID BHISHSHE0 30,016,327
9 _LIGIJ6uIBIGB6IT
80954 GapUIomed - BT6VE LHHBHEIH6H 1,073,884
80956 Cxpuiomeid - GTLLTT 6UTH6RIGH6NT 3,400,000
80955 CxpUIDTSID - DIEVIEUEVS 2 _LIG]T6ITRISET 2,492,736
80951 Baxuiomed - GHTensvBudlmer 15,849
80958 Gaxuiometd - elenemwiml(BU QuUT(HL &6 8,700
80957 Gauiomeid - SimHeu CFTHSHISH6 283,556
80804 WleTTFTyLD 2,042,631
80914 ufLeng Gaeveyset 4,133,002
80602 sflOUT@AT LMD 1D&FE TG 1,588,172
84214 e 2,824,273
80908 aﬁ]@@szs)m urrqb&,eﬁ, QuryiyseT WOHMID STV 68.175
SIL_L 6U6m6I0TH 61T
80812 FLL LOOMILD SLEUETTS S L GIIMBISENT 1,178.798
80604 AQuipbdy womid Wetgmyl QuTHL &6l 223,548
84216 seolFTrm - opymuIFSH OsmBluete| 35ep 563,337
84210 seoalgmym - p QsmHLuLesT6 D6l 93,335
84208 HOFTIT - FBBHe0 GBI 1,603,626
84203 SHEOAIFTIT - @UisduILD 1,788,493
84204 sevelgmym - GFemeu B 714,217
84202 HeolFmrm - ai.ef. Bl 1,700,954
84212 @evelFmym - 61b.d.65.20% 5,646,214
84201 SHEORINFMT - FLOLIGNLD 13,014,767
84217 HevelFTIm - FalhHev OHBT(HLILIETEY 2,509,428
84220 HeLRIFTIT - auTpEmEBF OFevey O&BT(HLILIETEY 5,146,242
84209 sevallFmym - allhupenm OHT(HLILICT6H6NT 253,294
84221 HEONNFTIT - FEML LIGVETIBH6NT 129,264




84222 HeURIFTIM - LTHTHS CHT(HLILGT6Y 1,419,839
EX1ESE)) Hewibdlet GLUwIy 0o IS
GMui® (51) (61)
84205 o GF.[. BlFsaT 65,309
84915 Un - CeuidssTaisen BHHE6T HI2eme| 1,074,664
80926 g. . . Bmeuesr ST (hd H LD 194,400
80935 . . ®. Boeussder ougmuiFd wrmrh 1,562,471
80702 m@réj&,e‘b&,_aﬁ, _@mi,g;"lgréj&.ﬂﬁ LoMMILd 3,685,599
9 _LIGJOIBIGH6N
80803 SHUT60 BHL L OIBISH6NT 333,380
80810 S1FG aleNDUTRIGHET [Hio66] 471,871
80805 urgismiy CaFemeusmeit 1,321,645
80903 oG  Gaemeume - OaTHsOPEND LHMID
Up &L L ewimisbei 116,445
80902 alBFL BFemeudel H6|SIFE0H6N LOMMILD 1,682,452
(& (LHHB6IT
80930 LGTIWITeTTH61T  [H6V6sT 452,859
90275 eroLmIBI QF6v6YH61T 18,375
80601 6ILPSHILQUT[HET LOMMILD DisVieUsvd GUT[HLH6NT 2,471,018
80802 Wlesigmy o1, Be0mFement 5,229,171
80501 uwetd QFeve E6T (2 6hHTL(H) 162,017
80701 61T & 6VTTBIH 61T 1,633,687
80916 Geouafiiym elifleyenys GFeveymsin 12,875,220
80920 Qeuefles @6l LWeIF OQF6v6LH6N 321,635
80806 BT BLLCUIRIH6NT 154,175
80904 ulLeflliy SMLS6T LOMMID SHHDHTEISHSH6N 486,370
80939 LDT6WT6U] (5606 25,000
80913 ul Lweflliyg OFeve|mel 500,000
80941 SLTIES wrelwd QFeveser 8,620,055
80945 Capuiomeid wMMID 6T1(LDSHICHTE0H6N 3,875,000
10040 S QFTEH I HSH6N 2,378,592
10000 SLIQL BIHEIT 240,723,958
10095 B WemCHHEHSBTE BH6vIdhE) 50,119,123
10003 SLUIeUSD MHMID BONGHSHE0 2 _LIG]T6IIBIS6NT 150,756,510
10004 BTV  LHSHBMBISENT 5,390,460
10005 GUmLLT] 6uTeemIssiT 17,000,000
10006 SIVIEUGVH HEMLITLBIHET D LIGIJGOIRISH 6N 12,859,696
1011 allememuml_(hl1 QUITHLB6iT 34,800
10002 OpTemeGudaer 158,490
6292 SpeAFwm-GuymdAflwy: 19. WSeRILeumevT 319,782
6299 afl.f.uy. plmieussio /2020/18- seommld. 394,900
steur.L 1961wy, umevgfluim
6317 urLFTenev. .OaTdlsOpenn B UTHISTLIL
4,799,889
70072 BITeUTHD BL_L 6IITBIHEIT
672,990
70075 allestenilILg QFWeVTHSBEH &L L 6uulld 975,000
75100 QuEhF &L L 6WIEIH6NT 877,500
70073 FINHBLD HLLEWIBISET 1,006,800
70010 Caiyesd L L 6v0TEIH6NT 1,748,546
70061 uflormm ,e0muLD.” [BLLLD 36,039,585
75000 Gxiliys Hemibded[Hha aullg 73,318
75010 BLGIHET LOMMILD (LPSTLGIRIS6T60(HHSHI UL Ig 192793
75060 Blemeowlimest emeuUlILGHOHTeNd LOSHT6 6uL 1g 57.962.495
75005 H@Ga IHTE 6ullp 18,928
70250 BIevs GFjoams Ligeaumidsi 475,500
70025 Bjege UF LHOID HTagen agefl 579,000




SpUIMIEMSHS B LIBISH 6T

70090 IDBSBIONS B L GWIEIE6IT 129,250
70070 GJMEIL 6U(BLOTEILD 1,202,797
70071 SAFFBHEO EUBLOTEIILD 52,188
BV () HewibHe QU »d O]
GMui® (c) ()
70030 ugley &L Lewild 2,564,900
70076 g% ml. Blmieusst oprTuIFS rBrL® euhHeuTul 776,500
70074 Bwed Hom (W&TUH6Y HL_LGWID 30,000
70064 Gupuryensy SL L 6wID 1,330,000
70020 uuimd &L L ewrLd 53,735,979
70200 OUTHE GUTL WG GL_L6I0ILD 1,146,400
70077 XRD u@lumuie) eumLomed 22,500
70078 XRF u@liumulie euLomesid 565,200
70079 ulLtugly SFluTiiy euBLoTeIILD 45215
75103 SLITUIFS omeflul eumHLOTeILD 3,625,077
10100 BleneowTen eneuls0STens - lepom 311,427,761
10200 BlensoWITe MAULLGHOHTENS - LDHEB6T 6UEIEH 28,608,269
10110 BleneoWITe emeUlILSOSTENS - R6VRIENS 6UMIE- 338,600,727

Fi(GH 2N
10500 BleneOWTe meUlSOHTens - Si.Bl. 6UbIS 13,200,310
10700 LOMHleL SILLDTENID LHMID (PHeSL (B i 13,923,958
35720 LTI @36 10,616,224
35000 Gauiomen @HIBBEBH - HLIQL BIH6N 36,052,500
35200 Gapuioren @HIBEE - Spuleud BHUIHSHE0 59,699,864

9 _LIGJOIBIGH6N
35300 CapuwioTen @HIssh - BIVE LHSBEIS6T 3,085,626
35500 Gauiomen HIBSEBH - BIEVIEUVS 2 LIS 6IIBIS6N 4,764,447
35600 Gxuwiomen @HHSEH - CHTenOBLFH6N 46,688
35400 Gxuwiomen @HibBEH - GTLLITT 6UTH6IBIS6T 10,200,000
35650 Cauiomen @HIsSH - deu CFTHHISS6 1,240,846
35700 BHEMIHBTUIR| B L GOIEIHEHHHTE QHIHSEH 1,325,250
35652 Gauwiomen @HHSEH - alemenwimt (b QUTHLS6T 26,100
357740 urgiemiy CeameuseEnhssTal @Hissb 130,000

OLoTg LD 1,440,749,642 1,440,749,642

elehepmem UlLnGer uigliy BPneussHer Sewibsrule] WHDID (PEHTHLSHIHIMNSE G NBMHS -

2024




SiP(psHLD

alehepmeorl LlLnfssr  ugly BloeussEaT  (paETemwsHen  Feouwmed 2022.04.23 o Hed
BLOUDD 173 Speugl gmlLgder Gumgl saueaTule] WLHMID (PSTENDSHHINS G BUILDEILD
Qruwiu’ L gl @&@Gw 2021.11.16 oup HaHw Qurg PpwnmHseT OBTLIUTET HEV6OTEHENDHDHETH
ouflasriguier 7.4.1 o upHuied GPHUALIU L ghurGaeien &S elehepmem ulLrnfer wuigliy
BneussHear  oLEpma  Fouwler  HopGaummieny  Sieveond e 2 mIllerfseT  LommIb
HenmBaflenw HyHBHsgieulinbBoHain auenHUTle0 @(HEU(HLD BB BTUIED IR
SIBISHEHH6U]T HENTEU].

2024 oL WP  IBHDBTH BVBIMB  BHMSBTUIUTENT — HMVENLD  FHudenul
Ordpdiubsss  gngueurm Uydh udeureny, FHCyegL mMHwmeny, o _Halll udeuTeny OMHMLD
Cpfw HmMISHTUIR DINIEUNBHHGT  HETHBTUIS] HHHWLFSFT  URIGUDDIL 68T  LswilUTeny,
L FCWTHLET cpeim (03) HWSBTUIONS H(Pd Fnl LBIG6T BLISHSUULL . HEwibaTUIR] LHMID
(PETMSHFHIUS G BEOTEHMBHBTS QUTH  (PWDSB6T PBTLIY, LDHEN60HBLDBMBIHENT
el oL mes@Ewala &SOPHEmesat, 2 Wj Heoeal MLFFaT SHDOOEmEBHEDDHE SenIms
SHEMIHBTUIE] OOHMID (LPEBTEMDSHHIOIS H(D HOG SLemwHmen BConoaTauighbsHILar B, Heval,
seoellFmTym GFwmuUTL(B BLAIYSHMmBHaMD 2 6Tens SLBUUTLH (PenDenemU  LsOLILBSSIUSMEHTS
Bieurss  QFweipempenwl  CLLUBHSHIUSHGL BLIHMEMT  JEHLWTEND  STERILILSNESLOTS
ufibglengsemen FOFUNSH0 SLIDOUMHDSI.

(WP TGeD MBI 61T

Wenmuieumewiger  GuUITE SHWISBTUIS] LOOMID (PHTMDSHSHIUS (GHelamed 2 6fend &L (HUUT(H
wohmid  sevisaTwalmeT  BwuhsHiusnEG — uPSTL (HLO oo uflbgHiMIBET  LOMHMILD
WPTELOTPeB6T  (LpeiTeneubsIULLet. GUITHMET UOSMeVSHHBD 2022 HFwuj 31 b Had
(PYOIDLHS DLETYNBTE BHBIDNBHEHHEH SMBBTUITONT HMEVMD HNHUHUILD BBHSI
wenauflwpy sevssTuie] HUENATTwSmsH (Oefeurer oIIdyTww) Qupmis CHTeTUSME
BuTEHenest LOEHMEVEHINBSHHT allEhepTerll Ul Lndes Ll BneussHn@EG (WIQUDTE S(HHSHH!.

2 6iens SeawssTlieyll ey
semssTw Nfleler suflariLeler &P 2024 oL SLEIYNHETES 2 6Tendd HewibaTule] Liflaler

QFweormmed Leteupomm QumOiuTsaUULL gl

o NHpeuaisHear 2 _etend  SLBUUTLH  (Wpewnemwdenst  GDUBSHIUSDETEH 6 JT6TLOT6uT
ufbaIMIEEBLET  dnlpwl  elfleuTelr 2 _efeNd  HAUIGBTUIE| INHMHBMW  2_6iTeNS

semssTwIA 1Nfle] Qeuafuil (Heeng.

o  GQeuafleurflourenpLesr  QHTLIYOHTEwI(H  GUITHmen  UBMOVBBBHHE  6lehEhTeILI
ulLidsr ugly BneussHear 2 SHCWTEHHTHEHHEG BEVISHBTUIOTONT HMEVEHLD DIFHUDH
SNbNB, HMHBTUE elFTymeniser Sfdmaseiled &ilgossTlLUUlL  (GmpDUTHS6NT
OarLjurs UaOsTL] BLougsms GFwpurhasaner BmHOETaTUSNSTS 2t CeTFmemIH6NT

GULDMBISLILIL L 63T

o 9FNG GBwedsons, 2 s saussTWal Wfley Ozfey SeavasTiln] HILL (LPEHMEB6IT

s puurhseflar GFrmmensel, UGUUTUIR| BHOL(PEDHMEBOT HOIFOMe wHMID  elifleures



L (PMMEBMETL  LwWaUBhHEH DS  UBHLIHS 2 6T6Nd  SeuidbsTllo)d  HLSHHe0

wpwenwits Geajemns OFuigleTeng|.

o FWMHHTWE| GHUelemed euPRIBILLL oLCurFmeuaamst OsTLIFAwTs  LHearOsTLy

BLoUgHmE BnOsTeaTer BLQHMS 61(HEBBLLL (BT

DG Llg, HEIHETUIS| LOODID (LPHTMLGFHINS GHWPH Ll LeHHe0 (WpoHBWLDTer il WmiseiT
aleurdlaaiul Lear, Goald SbHE G saupEIHW ufibglengsamen Lsaeumorm OFHTEHHH60TLD.

o alghepmenr  ulLlfer  ugly  BmeuensHeT  eumHLOTeD SIRBSHTTE — QBTETENSHMU

2_(HeUTHGHeUSHBTE Wenmule], AUEH wHMID UFbHSHIDTHENET  QULPEIEH6V.

o HoeuemsHnEg OCFass Geuswiguwr mMeveneuuilsd o etem  wmewieuy UTLGBEY &L L IBISH6NT
&Nss alfleuten sPemsenwsd SWTfHs BHoeuaismns all G GeusfGuipiul Tl semer
u@LuTuie] Q&uilgse.

o eaflugseflen  @uisyHu  Fmassemnen  alBellug  OaTLjuten  eldHsel MDD
RLEBIGPMDBHM6TL  LSTLDDIH60.

o Poeuessted  aupmislUGD  pBeonFemen  CFemeusEhdHETal  BlemeowimTe  Buibhd

BEDL (LPENMEB6T (EHLH6T) LMMID eudSTL (HHeoHemeNL LleTLDHDISH6.

* alehepmenr ulLlfenr Ll — PmeuensHer QurpLser wHmId GFmeusmeien QEBT6T(LHH6E0
QFweouTiged 2 eiten 2 61  &SLGBUUTHS6T GHSa wHiumwie), wHAUIE  LOHIILD
Ul &I HENEN  CULDIEIF H60.

e COPE muwealear sl Lamenseafar UFsryw Fflumer BLegbHenodmemen 61(hoHH60.

o QFTHHIGH6T WOHMID HemehFw QuTHLEBmeN FAuTTHGW GFwWeOpemmenW  alenFeyubB s,

apsmamw Fflwmer ChIsHHed @ewaaTuisuflb FoJlT6H5H60.

SHBungl, BuTEemeTll  UUEBMVEBINBHHNT 2 _6TeNds  sewasTuiayl  Lfley,
CuITHemeill  LOBMVEHBPHHHMG L (Hosve, Bmieuetd, elehepmesr UL LG gLy
BPoeuesid, Tl eaiuied wHmId Fpsd  alehehmer UL  Ligliy Blnieuestd  LommILD
wohSH6N  alehepmen UL  LigliLy Bloeuetd  opdweupmin@G  QFwLeOUT(HEHEMeNTEF
QFwIFMgI.

Bhs BneuamissT BCxAw urdliyed Smba BHwellssluGw sHalssel BneuaEEaTTss
QFweoLLLTeID, 2 6Tens SemssTiley UfelnE ypwurs omAuiseT @&idsliuLaledensv.
aeBel, UBMOVBBBHIE 2 _6Tend SewibsTule] Lfley pewiGBSTMILD 20 @M@
BupulL sewusaETUIesS HL FalLEIGmen BLHSH Couswi(hd. @Hev, @euGeurm UL ife
ugll MPoeuesEIANGL  GODHSH 04 SmlLmEeT  BLSHSUUL  Ceuemi(B. 2 _6iTeNdHg
BHEMTHBTUIGUTTONT L6V Fnl LEIG6MN0D SHHIOBTENIH DibHd Ll LBIG6MNST DIMdnNdHm6d
swumflés  Geuswnguiplusmed, sewibETUINDG (WPHMHSW  BLOIQHMBHEHDHGFH DIHD
Cryupd omAuITHEHL @HISHILUL  Geusmi(HLD.

BUITHMIL LOBHMEVSHIOBD WHMID DG Ul L e ugl] — Bloneueimiseier Gumanmiul



urflw uBINBH HHHHL CBTERI(H, LOBMOVBBOBHIE 2 _6T6MH SHaIbsTUIal HLHmSH
Wwwemwwnts GFweubsHd FnbHe0 2 OALITEHEmeT  aUPEIGMS BuTwioreas. @elGeur
ulLifesr wgly  PoeueisHHGL  DAeuTHeMaT 2 6ToNd HMIHHTUIE]  HLOUIQHMBHEN

Frre poLOUMUmE 2 mFFIL @ ST usalweniwer @HibsiuL Geusmi(hLD.

THTBMEVS S L BIH6NT

BuITHMmT  LOBMVSBOBHHNT  allghehmes UL L6  LigliLy Bmleuesid, Bimieuengest
HMISHHTUIND (G, SiemlyseT wwoMIdD sLGUUThSemen  enumuie) GFulg, 2 6Tens
sLGUUTL(H  Siemolysamnsn  uIlILbBHHIUSHSBTET  LUFHEHIENTHENET  UDEIGHUBDBTET  DIH6T
Brrasmsmen Goad alfleubBss HLLO BaTengl. Gwed, iFHer GFwsOLT(HHST LHMILD
Qurmiiysenst  HpwuL  BepGaupmieusnaTs o 6lens  saussTwia]l AflysE wweils
QUENTRIBMET @HIHGH0MmS dFEFHG0TN CaTrinhangl.

Hmod. meveflm oy ligest Qxenyeu. LilemTuy.q.09. Hife0 aiyGssy
SHMEVEUT, HEWIHSMTUIA| LOMHMID (PSTEDLOSHHIO (& (LD
2 eienad HewidsTwleureny (QFweourl(H)

allehepmesr UL LLINTesT Ligli] — MSmieueio,

THE ORIGINAL DOCUMENT HAS BEEN SIGNED


Anuradha
        THE ORIGINAL DOCUMENT HAS  BEEN SIGNED
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Vision

To be an internationally renowned centre of excellence for
Postgraduate Training, Innovative Research & Development in

Sciences

Mission

To contribute to the development of a globally recognized society
with social sensitivity, ethical rectitude and economic prosperity to
promote innovative research and outreach activities in an

intellectually stimulating and a conducive academic environment




Alignment of Vision, Mission, Goals, and Objectives

excellence for
Postgraduate
Training,
Innovative
Research &
Development in

Sciences

economic prosperity

by promoting
innovative research
and outreach

activities in an
intellectually
stimulating and
conducive academic

environment

research and

partnerships

Vision Mission Goals Objectives
- Attract and enroll high-caliber students (local
& international)
1. Ensure quality
- Bridge employer expectations with student
and relevance of
skills
postgraduate
- Revise programmes to meet
programmes
national/international standards
- Improve postgraduate employability
2. Enhance - Promote postgraduate education to increase
opportunities for | enrollment
postgraduate and | - Expand and improve online distance
To contribute to the L. )
continuing education
development of a
education - Offer demand-driven programs
To be an globally recognized
3. Enhance
internationally | society with social
capacity for - Foster national/international research
renowned sensitivity, ethical
innovative collaboration
centre of rectitude and

- Promote multidisciplinary research

4. Strengthen
efficiency in

Financial and

- Improve administrative and financial
management
- Develop M&E systems

- Restructure administration for productivity

Administrative - Optimize workforce planning
systems - Promote financial sustainability with
accountability
5. Upgrade
- Encourage participation in university life
learning,

working, and

- Implement performance-based rewards

- Adopt green and sustainable practices

living

- Improve physical/digital infrastructure
environment

- Develop community-targeted outreach
6. Enhance programs
outreach - Collaborate with external stakeholders
engagement - Align with national policy for sustainable

development




DIRECTOR'S REPORT

/,
A

The Postgraduate Institute of Science (PGIS) is a premier national institute affiliated with the
University of Peradeniya, dedicated to advancing scientific research, providing high-quality
postgraduate education, and fostering interdisciplinary collaboration. Its mission underscores
its critical role in shaping the future of science and technology in Sri Lanka and globally. PGIS
holds significant national importance, as it plays a pivotal role in the scientific and
technological development of the country. Since its inception, the Institute has awarded over
5,200 postgraduate degrees and trained more than 19,000 professionals. These postgraduates
are equipped to manage critical national challenges and contribute meaningfully to the
economic and social progress of the country.

SaA

On the international level, PGIS has established itself as a prominent player in the global
scientific arena. The Institute attracts students from abroad, fosters collaborations with top
universities worldwide. A significant milestone in 2024 was the successful completion of a
master degree programme for Chinese students, reflecting the dedication of the Institute to
enhancing its contribution to global academic excellence.

The Institute increased its global research visibility by publishing the abstracts of RECON 2024
on Google Scholar. It also demonstrated transparency and good governance by securing a clear
audit opinion for 2023. Innovation and discovery are encouraged through initiatives such as
awarding research grants from earned funds. Hosting several national and international
conferences provided valuable platforms for knowledge exchange and scientific discourse.
Additionally, PGIS developed curricula for several master and M.Sc. programmes, expanding
its educational offerings to meet the evolving needs of the global scientific community.

Looking ahead, PGIS is dedicated to strengthening its national and international standing. Its
strategic objectives for the next three years include creating a sustainable learning environment,
expanding student intake, implementing a sophisticated Management Information System,
fostering international collaboration, and enhancing industry partnerships. The Institute aspires
to be a beacon of scientific excellence, driving national development and making significant
contributions to global scientific advancements.

Prof. H. M. T.G.A. Pitawala
Director/PGIS



1. BRIEF INTRODUCTION

The Postgraduate Institute of Science (PGIS) is a National Institute attached to the University of
Peradeniya, Sri Lanka. It was established in 1996 by an ordinance from the Ministry of Higher
Education and enables university graduates to gain knowledge and competence in the science
disciplines of their choice through postgraduate studies. Currently, about 1900 students are enrolled at
the PGIS. The principal objective of the Postgraduate Institute of Science is to promote and provide
postgraduate instruction, training, and research in various scientific specialties, thus enhancing the

graduate academic experience.

To fulfill the demand in the public and private sectors of the country and other nations, the PGIS offers
Masters, M.Sc., M.Phil., and Ph.D. degree programmes in addition to postgraduate diploma and
certificate courses. The M.Sc., M.Phil. and Ph.D. programmes require the completion of a research
project, while the other programmes require the completion of coursework. Provisions are available to
conduct research work at either in the University System or at a relevant research institution in Sri
Lanka. Under sandwich programs, there are options for conducting research both nationally and abroad
at a relevant institution. On a number of research projects, the PGIS collaborates with the Faculty of
Science, the University of Peradeniya, and other national institutions. Local and international graduates
from various science disciplines constitute the student population. In addition, structured and tailor-
made training programmes, such as short courses and workshops, are also conducted frequently. The
PGIS offers a variety of popular short-term programs in accordance with the demand and requirements

of the nation, and they are conducted through 11 Boards of Study, covering all science disciplines.

The institute also offers consultancy services to local industry and public/private sector institutions. The

annual PGIS Research Congress and other research conferences



and symposia are organized by the Institute with the academic collaboration of participants from abroad

and locally.

In collaboration with other top universities around the world, the PGIS seeks to become a premier
platform for education and research that advances human knowledge. It also provides training programs
for scientists and other professionals with high levels of responsibility and specialization. For the past
27 years, PGIS has focused on and continuously pursued internationalization due to the capacity of
well-trained staff to provide effective services to its stakeholders. The goal of the Institute is to be
globally recognized internationally renowned centre of excellence for postgraduate training, innovative

research & development in sciences.



2. ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

Director

Senate

Financial Administration

General Administration

Coordinating Committee

Board of Study

Deputy Bursar /Senior Assistant

Bursar/Assistant Bursar

Deputy Registrar /Senior Assistant

Registrar /Assistant Registrar




3. BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

3.1 Ex-Officio Members

© N o g &

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.

18.

3.2.

19.

20.

Prof. HMTGA Pitawala, Director, Postgraduate Institute of Science

Mr. RMPS Abeyrathna, Deputy Director (Planning) , Higher Education Division

Ministry of Education, Science and Technology

Ms. RJ Abdeen, Director, Department of Public Enterprises , Ministry of Finance

Planning and Economic Development

Dr. SRSN Sudasinghe, Director General, National Science Foundation

Dr. SW Gamage, Chairman, Chamber of Commerce and Industry of Central Province

Prof. RGSC Rajapakse, Dean/Faculty of Science, University of Peradeniya

Prof. U Sonnadara, Dean Faculty of Science, University of Colombo

Dr. P Samaraweera, Chairman/BoS in Biochemistry & Molecular Biology

Department of Molecular Biology & Biotechnology

Prof. MMAN Navaratne, BoM Nominee/BoS in Biomedical Science, Department of Chemistry
Prof. MYU Ganehenege, Chairperson/BoS in Chemical Sciences, Department of Chemistry
Prof. NWB Balasooriya, Chairman/ BoS in Earth Sciences, Department of Geology

Prof. SK Yatigammana, BoM Nominee/ BoS in Environmental Sciences , Department of Zoology
Dr. THKR De Silva, Chairperson/BoS in Mathematics, Department of Mathematics

Prof. LRAK Bandara, Chairman/BoS in Physics, Department of Physics

Prof. SCK Rubasinghe, Chairperson/ BoS in Plant Sciences, Department of Botany

Prof. WAPP de Silva, Chairperson/BoS in Science Education, Department of Botany

Prof. YPRD Yapa, Chairman/BosS in Statistics & Computer Science, Department of Statistics and
Computer Science

Prof. SH Boyagoda, Chairperson/BoS in Zoological Sciences, Department of Zoology

UGC Nominees
Emeritus Prof. OA lleperuma

University of Peradeniya

Emeritus Prof. LR Jayasekara

University of Kelaniya
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4. COORDINATING COMMITTEE

Members of the Coordinating Committee of the PGIS

Prof. HMTGA Pitawala, Director/PGIS

Prof. RGSC Rajapakse, Dean, Faculty of Science

Senior Assistant Librarian, Science Library

Chairpersons, Secretaries and Programme Coordinators of the M.Sc Programmes (as per the table below)

No. Board of Study Chairperson Secretary M.Sc. Programme Programme
Coordinators
1| Board of Study in Dr.P Dr. MPCS Dhanapg Clinical Biochemistry | Dr. WIT Fernando
Biochemistry and Samaraweera Dr. H Amaratunga
Molecular Biology Biotechnology and Dr. MPCS Dhanapala
Molecular Biology
2| Board of Study in Dr.P Dr. PK Perera
Biomedical Sciences | Wijesinghe
3| Board of Study in Prof. MYU Dr. JMS Analytical Chemistry | Dr. JATC Ariyasena
Chemical Sciences Ganehenage Jayasinghe Dr. TP Gamagedara
w.ef.05.12.2024  "|nqustrial Chemistry Dr. MB Wijesinghe
Dr. WSS Dr. S Abeyweera
Gunathilake Nanoscience & Dr. WSS Gunathilake
Nanotechnology Dr. SB Alahakoon
4| Board of Study in Prof. NWB Dr. PL Disaster Management | Dr. B Athurupana
Earth Balasooriya Dharmapriya GIS and Remote Dr. AAJK Gunatilake
Sciences Gemmology & Prof. SW Nawaratne
Industrial Minerals Dr. PL Dharmapriya
Engineering Geology Dr. AAJK Gunatilake
&-Hydrogeology Dr. Udeni
Amarasinghe
Water Resources Prof. MP Perera
Management
5| Board of Study in Prof. HMD Dr. GAN Suranjith | Environmental Science | Prof. GWAR Fernando

Environmental

Science

Namal Priyantha

Biodiversity
Ecotourism

& Environmental
Management

Dr. GAN Suranjith

Ms. CS Munasinghe

Board of Study in
Mathematics

Dr. THKR De
Silva

Dr. AMCUM

Atapatthu

Industrial Mathematics

Dr. PGRS Ranasinghe

11




7 | Board of Study in Prof. LRAK Dr. TP Medical Physics Dr. NL Dassanayake
Physics Bandara Ranawaka Physics of Materials Prof. TMWJ Bandara
w.e.f. 01.11.2024
Dr. EN Jyaweera
8 | Board of Study Plant | Prof. SCK Dr. ADSNP Medical Microbiology | Prof. V Thevanesam
Sciences Rubasinghe Athukorala Dr. S Athukorala
Pharmaceutical Botany | Prof. GAD Perera
Dr. C Ariyarathne
Dr. BS Nanayakkara
9 | Board of Study Prof. WAP Dr. AK Overall Programme Dr. WD Chandrasena
Science de Silva Amarasinghe Coordinators Prof. SY Ekanayake
Education Science Education Dr. S Athukorala
(Biological Education)
Science Education Prof. CV Hettiarachchi
(Chemistry Education)
Science Education Dr. UD Wijesooriya
(Mathematics
Education)
Science Education Dr. TP Ranawaka
(Physics Education)
Diploma in Science Dr. ARGAM
Education Abeykoon Menike
10 | Board of Study in Prof. YPRD Dr. SP Applied Statistics Prof. YPRD Yapa
Statistics Yapa Abeysundara Computer Science Prof. AAI Perera
& Computer Science Dr. RD Nawarathne
Data Science & Dr. HTK Abeysundara
Artificial Intelligence Dr. H Usoof
Information Dr. UAJ
Technology Pinidiyaarchchi
Dr. DMMB
11 | Board of Study in Prof. SH Dr. NMT Applied Epidemiology | Dr. S Kumburegarma
Zoological Sciences | Boyagoda Anupama Dr. Charitha Mendis

12




5. ACHIEVEMENTS

Activities and Initiatives Undertaken:

Developed comprehensive curricula for new programmes

Revisions for existing programmes and PGIS Handbook.

Admitted students for various Master/Msc programmes in 2024 and registered over 60
students for MPhil and PhD programmes.

Prepared the implementation of a Management Information System (MIS) to streamline
operational processes.

Organized and hosted numerous national and international webinars, workshops, short
courses and conferences, including the prestigious Annual PGIS Research Conference
(RECON-2024).

Publishing the abstracts of the Research Congress (RESCON 2024) on Google Scholar
Implemented several collaborative research programmess with prestigious research
institutes worldwide.

Started school linkage programme for O/L & AJ/L students organized by the Young
Research Forum of the PGIS.

Successfully completed a Master degree programme catering specifically to Chinese
students, fostering global academic collaboration.

Received a Clear Audit Opinion for the year 2023.

Eleven research grants awarded in the year 2022 funded through the generated income of
the Institute were extended for the second year.

163 Research publications have resulted from the work carried out by academics/scientists
affiliated to PGIS, which were published in international journals , e-journals and local
journals. In addition, many abstracts have been published based on the presentations made
by the scientists at conferences.

Several scientists have won awards for outstanding research, including National Science

Foundation awards and National Research Council awards.
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5..2 Publications in refereed journals by PGIS affiliated members

Title of the Publication

Name of the authors

Name of the Journal

CANINE VECTOR-BORNE INFECTIONS
OF WORKING DOGS OF THE SRI LANKA
AIR FORCE, AND FREE ROAMING,

AND PRIVATELY OWNED DOGS

P. S.Jayatilaka ,R.A. S. Ranatunga,
H. S. U. Wijerathna, A. D. S. Fernando
K. M. H. Jinarathne,

N.G. R. K. Naullage,

S. N. S. Silva, K.Thananjayan,

L. K. H. R.T.Amarasiri, N. P. K.
Jayasundara, M. C. K. Mallawa,

A. Dangolla, S. S. Iddamaldeniya,
S.M.N.S.Samarakoon, A. G. M. L. K.
Dayananda, A. M. M. Nazeem

R. S. Rajakaruna

Scientific reports

METHOD OF DIRECTLY DEFINING THE INVERSE MAPPING FOR

Dewasurendra M.

Ceylon Journal of Science

ESSENTIAL COMPONENT IN THE MICROPLASTIC CYCLE

Abhishek Kumar, Shiran Pallewatta ,
Meththika Vithanage

NONLINEAR FUZZY HEAT-LIKE PARTIAL C.W.Sahabandu
DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS
MICROPLASTICS IN URBAN STORMWATER SEDIMENTS AND RUNOFF: AN | M sewwandi TrAC Trends in Analytical Chemistry

MICROPLASTIC ABUNDANCE, CHARACTERISTICS, AND HEAVY METAL
CONTAMINATION IN COASTAL ENVIRONMENTS OF WESTERN SRI LANKA

M.

Sewwandi

M. Sewwandi

Hansika Piyumali, Thilakshani Atugoda ,
Hasintha Wijesekara ,

Kushani Mahatantila , Meththika Vithanage

Physics and Chemistry of the Earth, Parts
A/B/C

EXTRACTION OF TEA POLYPHENOLS, CATECHINS AND CAFFEINE FROM
DIFFERENT TEA
CULTIVARS IN SRI LANKA

N Piyasena

Nimanthi Weerakoon, Nishantha Edirisinghe,
Mahasen Ranatunga, Sarath Abeysinghe,
Upesha Siriwardhane

Food Science Research

VARIATION OF ELASTASE, COLLAGENASE, TYROSINASE ENZYME
INHIBITORY
AND ANTIOXIDANT POTENTIAL OF DIFERENT TEA CULTIVARS

KGNP Piyasena

M. T. Napagoda,

Jayani Kalinga, A. A. B. Abayarathne,P. A.
M. Jayawardhane,K. D. P. Upesha Siriwardha
ne,M. A.B. Ranatunga, Lalith Jayasinghe

Discover Chemistry

RNA EXTRACTION FROM URINE SEDIMENT: A COST-EFFECTIVE
PROTOCOL FOR GENE EXPRESSION ANALYSIS IN
RENAL PATHOLOGY

S Saseevan
S. Rajapakse, D.N. Magana-Arachchi

Ceylon Journal of Science
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EXPLORING URINARY BIOMARKERS FOR THE DIAGNOSIS OF DIABETIC
AND HYPERTENSIVE
CHRONIC KIDNEY DISEASE: A PROMISING PILOT STUDY

S Saseevan
Nadeesha Nishanthi, Sanath Rajapakse &
Dhammika Magana-Arachchi

Indian Journal of Experimental Biology

IMPROVING LIGHT HARVESTING AND CHARGE CARRIER SEPARATION
ENABLING ENHANCED PHOTOELECTROCHEMICAL HYDROGEN
PRODUCTION BY SB2S3-DECORATED TIO2 NANOTUBE ARRAYS ON
POROUS TI-PHOTOANODES

CN Wijerathne
Hong-yi Tan, Chang-Feng Yan, Chang-Feng
Yan, Jayasundera Bandara

International Journal of Hydrogen Energy

VARIATION OF ELASTASE, COLLAGENASE, TYROSINASE ENZYME
INHIBITORY
AND ANTIOXIDANT POTENTIAL OF DIFERENT TEA CULTIVARS

YK Abeykoon

A. A.l. Lakmal, M. A. H. M. Munasinghe,
B. S. Dassanayake,

N. Gunawardhana

Journal of material research

SEASONAL PATTERNS OF HOG DEER (AXIS PORCINUS)
ANTLER DEVELOPMENT IN SRI LANKA

S Madhushanka
Danushka S.  Weerasekara, Mihiran
Medawala, Kithsiri B. Ranawana

World News of Natural Sciences

STAND-ALONE AND COMBINED EFFECTS OF PROTEIN HYDROLYSATE
AND HUMIC-LIKE SUBSTANCES DERIVED FROM WASTE MATERIALS ON
THE GROWTH, PHYSIOLOGY AND MINERAL NUTRITION OF TEA NURSERY
PLANTS

S Raguraj

S Kasim,

VR Sanali, TTSenarathne,

SK Weerathunga,

MMN Damayanthi,

SSPK Wijesinghe, RKA Amali,
MGK Madushani
LRMCLiyanage

Biologia

ENHANCING WATER QUALITY AND SUSTAINABLE ORGANIC-PHOSPHATE
FERTILIZER PRODUCTION THROUGH PHYTOREMEDIATION OF CATTLE
FARM EFFLUENT USING ARTIFICIAL WETLANDS

T Kulagana

W. M. T. P. Ariyarathne
H. M. D. N. Priyantha
M. C. M. Igbal

Sri Lankan Journal of Biology

FORECASTING THE POWER GENERATION AT RENEWABLE POWER
PLANTS IN SRI LANKA
USING REGRESSION TREES

J Jayasinghe

Piyal Ekanayake, Oshadi Panahatipola,,
Charuni I. Madhushani,

Upaka Rathnayake

Results in Engineering

SIZE-TUNABLE GRAPHITIZED CARBON SPHERES FOR WATER
DEFLUORIDATION

BVN Sewwandi

A.R. Kumarasinghe, Z. Wu,
P.M.C.J. Bandara, L. Jayarathne,
Athula Bandara ,

Himal Wijekoon ,

Xing CHEN,

Rohan Weerasooriya

Physicochemical and Engineering Aspects

ENHANCEMENT OF PHOTO-ELECTRICAL PROPERTIES OF CDS THIN FILMS:
EFFECT OF N2 PURGING AND N2 ANNEALING

KLG Sankalpa

Gayan R. K. K. G. R. Kumarasinghe,
Buddhika S. Dassanayake and
Gayan W. C. Kumarage

Electronic materials

A CASE REPORT ON BLAST DISEASE IN RICE AND FINGER MILLET IN SRI
LANKA

DMHR Dissanayake
M. D. Pabasara
G. K. S. N. Gajanayake

Ceylon Journal of Science
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W. A. M. Daundasekera
H. A. C. K. Ariyarathna

ANALYSIS OF SEDIMENT CHARACTERISTICS AND DEPOSITIONAL
ENVIRONMENT OF BEACH SEDIMENT ALONG THE PULMODDAI MINERAL
SAND DEPOSIT IN EASTERN COAST OF SRI LANKA

A Wickramasooriya
Udaya Gunawardane

Journal of the Geological Society of
IndiaSearch Dropdown Menu

POTENTIAL OF THE LOCALLY PRODUCED LACTOBACILLUS INOCULANTS
IN ENSILINGGUINEA GRASS (MEGATHYRSUS MAXIMUS) FORAGE

KM Dewdini

U.L. Karunadhipathi, R. Priyantha, N.
Liyanagunawardhana, W.M.P.B.
Weerasinghe,R.G.S.C. Rajapaksha and
M.B.P. Mahipala Kumara

Tropical Agricultural Research

COMPARATIVE EVALUATION OF THE EFFECT OF PHYTOCHEMICALS OF
GARLIC (ALLIUM SATIVUM) ETHANOLIC

EXTRACT AGAINST AEDES ALBOPICTUS AND CULEX
QUINQUEFASCIATUS MOSQUITOES IN SRI LANKA

W.R.G.W.N.Rajapaksha
W.R.G.W.N. Rajapaksha,
W.A.P. P. De Silva

and T.C. Weeraratne

Ceylon Journal of Science

EFFECT OF EXOGENOUS APPLICATION OF SALICYLIC ACID ON
ALLEVIATION OF DROUGHT STRESS OF IMMATURE TEA (CAMELLIA
SINENSIS L.) PLANTS

M.M.N.Damayanthi

Maha Makkalage Nalika Damayanthi,
Thushari Lakmini Wijeratne, and Jilushi
Wishwamali Damunupola

Israel Journal of Plant Sciences

CANINE VECTOR-BORNE INFECTIONS OF WORKING DOGS OF THE SRI
LANKA AIR FORCE, AND FREE ROAMING, AND PRIVATELY OWNED DOGS

P. S.Jayatilaka
R. A. S. Ranatunga, H. S. U. Wijerathna, A.

D. S. Fernando, K. M. H. Jinarathne, N. G. R.

K. Naullage, S. N. S. Silva, K. Thananjayan,
L. K. H. R. T. Amarasiri, N. P. K.
Jayasundara, M. C. K. Mallawa, A. Dangolla,
S. S. Iddamaldeniya, S. M. N. S.
Samarakoon, A. G. M. L. K. Dayananda, A.
M. M. Nazeem & R. S. Rajakaruna

Scientific Reports

EFFECTIVE REMOVAL OF PB(Il) IONS USING FE304
/MGO ADSORBENT: A
COMPREHENSIVE STUDY

V Gurunanthanan, KB Wijayaratne, BS
Dassanayake, PG Mantilaka, and CS Perera

JOURNAL OF THE
NATIONAL SCIENCE FOUNDATION
OF SRI LANKA

DIVERSITY OF SEED STORAGE BEHAVIOR OF TREE SPECIES FROM
TROPICAL LOWLAND RAINFORESTS IN SRI LANKA, A GLOBAL
BIODIVERSITY HOTSPOT

B. R.Chandima

P. Samarasinghe, K. M. G. Gehan Jayasuriya,
A. M. Thilanka A. Gunaratne, Kingsley W.
Dixon, Mahesh C. Senanayaka

BIODIVERSITY IN ASIA

FORWARD OSMOSIS MEMBRANE WITH LIGHTWEIGHT FUNCTIONALISED
MULTIWALL CARBON NANOTUBE NANOFILLERS

Z.Wu
B.V.N. Sewwandi, Xing Chen, G. Perera, L.
Jayarathna, Rohan Weerasooriya

Environmental Technology

INTERCALATING GRAPHITE-BASED NA-ION BATTERY ANODES WITH
INTEGRATED MAGNETITE

RKarunarathna

Harsha Ranasinghe Arachchige, Shadeepa
Karunarathne, W. Parakrama Sanjeewa
Lakshitha Wijesinghe, Chanaka Sandaruwan,
M. M. M. Prasanga Gayanath Mantilaka,
Yasun Y. Kannangara, Amr M. Abdelkader

Small Science
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INVESTIGATION OF THE MIXED CATION EFFECT AND THE IRRADIANCE
LEVEL DEPENDENCE ON THE EFFICIENCY OF DYE-SENSITIZED SOLAR
CELLS

H. M. N.Wickramasinghe

H. M. N. Wickramasinghe, N. G. A.
Karunathilaka, D. M. T. Gnanarathne, L.
Ajith DeSilva, K. M. S. P. Bandara & T. M.
W. J. Bandara

International Journal of lonics — The Science
and Technology of lonic Motion

TERRESTRIAL PEST GASTROPOD DIVERSITY AND SPATIOTEMPORAL
VARIATIONS IN HIGHLAND AGRICULTURAL LANDS OF SRI LANKA

D.Thilakarathne

Dinelka Thilakarathne, Nadeela
Hirimuthugoda , Kithsiri Ranawana and
Shalika Kumburegama

Journal of Ecology and Environment

THE LOACH GENUS LEPIDOCEPHALICHTHYS (TELEOSTEI: COBITIDAE) IN
SRI LANKA AND PENINSULAR INDIA: MULTIPLE COLONIZATIONS AND
UNEXPECTED SPECIES DIVERSITY

HSudasinghe

Hiranya Sudasinghe, Neelesh Dahanukar,
Rajeev Raghavan, Tharindu Ranasinghe,
Kumudu Wijesooriya, Rohan Pethiyagoda,
Lukas Riber & Madhava Meegaskumbura

Hydrobiologia

META-HEURISTIC METHOD TO SCHEDULE VEHICLE ROUTING WITH
MOVING
SHIPMENTS AT THE CROSS-DOCKING FACILITY

SR Gnanapragasam
W.B. Daundasekera

Operations Research

BIOSORPTION OF CD 2+ IONS ONTO PEEL OF ARTOCARPUS NOBILIS
FRUIT: INTRA-PARTICLE DIFFUSION AND ISOTHERM STUDIES

P. A Kotabewatta
HMDN Priyantha

Research Square

INVESTIGATION OF LIPASE PRODUCING BACTERIA FROM OIL
CONTAMINATED SOIL AND CHARACTERIZATION OF LIPASE

Karunarathna J.A.D.D
P. Samaraweera

Sri Lankan Journal of Applied Sciences

ROLES OF BRONSTED-BASE AND BRONSTED-ACID CATALYSTS FOR
GLUCOSE ISOMERIZATION INTO FRUCTOSE AND FRUCTOSE
DEHYDRATION INTO 5-HYDROXYMETHYLFURFURAL

T.N.Dharmapriya
Kun-Yi Andrew, LinPo-Jung Huang

CATALYSIS AND KINETICS

CHEMICAL BATH DEPOSITED ZNO NANOWIRES FOR
GAS SENSING: EFFECT OF DEPOSITION DURATION

Y. K.Abeykoon
A. A.l. Lakmal, M. A. H. M. Munasinghe, B.
S. Dassanayake & N. Gunawardhana

Journal of Materials Research

ENHANCEMENT OF PHOTO-ELECTRICAL PROPERTIES OF CDS THIN FILMS:

EFFECT OF N2 PURGING AND N2 ANNEALING

G.K.L.Sankalpa
B.S.Dassanayake, G.W.C.Kumarage,
G.R.K.K.G.R.Kumarasinge

Optoelectronic Materials

DIVERSITY OF WATERBIRDS AND POTENTIAL FOR PROMOTING
AVITOURISM IN SELECTED REGIONS IN THE JAFFNA PENINSULA, SRI
LANKA

D. Jayarathna
C.S. Wijesundara

International Journal of Multidisciplinary
Studies

DORMANCY, GERMINATION, AND ASSOCIATED SEED ECOLOGICAL

K. M. G. G.Jayasuriya

Plant biology

TRAITS OF 25 FABACEAE SPECIES FROM NORTHERN INDIA S. S. Phartyal
RIDGE ESTIMATOR IN A MIXED POISSON REGRESSION MODEL R.Tharshan Communications in Statistics - Simulation and
P.Wijekoon Computation

DYE-SENSITIZED SOLAR CELLS ACHIEVED WITH MULTI-LAYERED
SNO2/ZNO COMPOSITE PHOTOANODES THROUGH PRECISE CONTROL OF
THICKNESS AND COMPOSITION

M. I. U.Weerasinghe

K. D. M. S. P. K. Kumarasinghe, Buddhika
C. Karunarathne, P. M. L. Kumarage, T. M.
W. J. Bandara, Kirthi Tennakone, I.
Albinsson, B. E. Mellander & G. R. A.
Kumara

Journal of Materials Science: Materials in
Electronics

17




POISSON-MODIFICATION OF THE QUASI LINDLEY OPTIMAL
GENERALIZED REGRESSION ESTIMATOR

R.Tharshan
P.Wijekoon

A Journal of Theoretical and Applied Statistics

SPATIO-TEMPORAL VARIATION OF MICROBIAL INDICATORS OF RIVER
WATER AND TREATMENT EFFICIENCIES OF DRINKING WATER
TREATMENT PLANTS ALONG THE UPPER MAHAWELI RIVER SEGMENT OF
SRI LANKA

P.T. A Thilakarathna

Pulwansha T. Amandi Thilakarathna , Fazla
Fareed , Sarangi N.P. Athukorala , Rasika
Jinadasa , Thejani Premachandra

, Faseeha Noordeen , Chandika D. Gamage ,
Madhubhashini Makehelwala , Sujithra K.
Weragoda , B. Ruchika Fernando , Yu Zhang,
Yuansong Wei g h,, Min Yang g, S.H.P.
Parakrama Karunaratne

Environmental Pollution

BREEDING HABITAT PREFERENCE OF THE DENGUE VECTOR
MOSQUITOESAEDES AEGYPTI AND AEDES ALBOPICTUS FROM URBAN,
SEMIURBAN, ANDRURAL AREAS IN KURUNEGALA DISTRICT, SRI LANKA

J. M. M.K.Herath

J. M. Manel K. Herath, W. A. Priyanka P.
De Silva, Thilini C. Weeraratne , and S. H.
P. Parakrama Karunaratne

Journal of Tropical Medicine

TOWARDS THE ESTABLISHMENT OF NATIONAL DIAGNOSTIC REFERENCE
LEVELS FOR ABDOMEN, KUB, AND LUMBAR SPINE X-RAY
EXAMINATIONS IN SRI LANKA: A MULTI-CENTRIC STUDY

SWelarathna
Sivakumar Velautham and Sivananthan
Sarasanandarajah

Journal of Radiological Protection

AN UNUSUAL OCCURRENCE OF CARBONATITES DERIVED FROM THE
CRUST IN THE UHT GRANULITE FACIES METAMORPHIC TERRAIN OF SRI
LANKA

W.A.G.K Wickramasinghe

Wickramasinghe

, T.B.N.S. Madugalla , Bhathiya Athurupana,
Lei Zhao

, Mingguo Zhai , Xianhua Li ,

H.M.T.G.A. Pitawala

Precambrian Research

ANALYTICAL HIERARCHICAL PROCESS (AHP) PRIORITIZATION OF
LANDSLIDE-CAUSING FACTORS

A. AVirajh Dias
Jagath Gunathilake

Progress in Landslide Research and
Technology

THE FIRST RECORD OF ALBINO GREY LANGUR (SEMNOPITHECUS PRIAM)
FROM KATAGAMUWA, YALA NATIONAL PARK AND ENDEMIC TOQUE
MACAQUE (MACACA SINICA) FROM MINNERIYA NATIONAL PARK IN SRI
LANKA

S Madhushanka
Kithsiri Ranawana

World News of Natural Sciences

ADDITIONAL CHALLENGES FOR ON-SITE INSPECTION (OSI) IN TROPICS

W. A. G. K. Wickramasinghe
S. N. De Silva

Pure and Applied Geophysics

SIMILAR GERMINATION BUT DISSIMILAR FLOOD TOLERANCE
BEHAVIOUR OF SEEDS OFTWO WEED SPECIES (LUDWIGIA) INHABITING
RICE FIELDS IN RAJGIR, INDIA

K.M.G.G JAYASURIYA
Shyam S. PHARTYAL

Taiwania

OCCURRENCE AND PARTIAL CHARACTERIZATION OF SERINE PROTEASE
INHIBITORS IN THE BARK EXTRACT OF
SOME MEDICINAL PLANTS IN SRI LANKA

T.S.G.S.B.Wijayarathna
R. G. S. C. Rajapakse

Journal of Technology and Engineering

EVOLUTIONARY REVERSAL OF PHYSICAL DORMANCY TO
NONDORMANCY: EVIDENCE FROM COMPARATIVE SEED
MORPHOANATOMY OF ARGYREIA SPECIES (CONVOLVULACEAE)

D M H Gunadasa
K M G Gehan Jayasuriya, Jerry M Baskin,
Carol C Baskin

AOBP Plants

EFFICIENCY ENHANCEMENT DUE TO THE COMBINED MIXED CATION
EFFECT AND T102 NANOFILLER EFFECT IN PEO AND IONIC LIQUID-BASED
DYE-SENSITIZED SOLAR CELLS

M. A. K. L.Dissanayake
W. N. S. Rupasinghe, V. A. Seneviratne, C.
A. Thotawatthage & G. K. R. Senadeera

Journal of Solid State Electrochemistry

18




GEOGENIC POLLUTION OF GROUNDWATER QUALITY IN GAMPAHA
DISTRICT, SRI LANKA: A CASE STUDY OF GROUNDWATER
ACIDIFICATION FROM RATHUPASWALA

| .Pathirage

Anushka Upamali Rajapaksha, S. P.
Sucharitha Bandara, G. W. A. Rohan
Fernando

International Journal of Geosciences

SLOPE-SPECIFIC LATERITIZATION OF GARNET-SILLIMANITE-GNEISS
CUESTAS IN MATALE AREA, SRI LANKA

W. K. G. V.Weligepola
D. M. S. N. Dissanayake, M. M. M. G. P. G.
Mantilaka & H. M. T. G. A. Pitawala

International Journal of Earth Sciences

FUNCTIONAL GENOMIC REGIONS ASSOCIATED WITH BLAST DISEASE
RESISTANCE IN RICE PREDICTED SYNTENIC ORTHOLOGS AND
POTENTIAL RESISTANCE GENE CANDIDATES FROM DIVERSE CEREAL
GENOMES

S Gajanayake

Janani Wakkumbura, Menaka Fernando,
Sachith Abeysundara, Indika Wijewardena ,
Chandima Ariyarathn

Physiological and Molecular Plant Pathology

LAND-USE PATTERN-BASED SPATIAL VARIATION OF PHYSICOCHEMICAL

PARAMETERS AND EFFICACY OF SAFE DRINKING WATER SUPPLY ALONG

THE MAHAWELI RIVER, SRI LANKA

P.A. Thilakarathna

Fazla Fareed, Madhubhashini Makehelwala,
Sujithra K. Weragoda ,Ruchika Fernando
,Thejani Premachandra,Mangala Rajapakse
,Yuansong Wei,Min Yang andS. H. P.
Parakrama Karunaratne

Water

PATIENT DOSE AND ASSOCIATED EXPOSURE PARAMETERS IN PELVIC X- | S Welarathna Radiation and Environmental Biophysics
RAY EXAMINATIONS: DEPENDENCE ON RADIOGRAPHIC SYSTEM Sivakumar Velautham & Sivananthan
Sarasanandarajah

CONTROL OF DENGUE LARVAE OF AEDES AEGYPTI AND AEDES
ALBOPICTUS USING THE LARVICIDAL BIOACTIVE COMPOUNDS IN
DIFERENT PLANT EXTRACTS AND PLANT EXTRACT-MEDIATED
NANOPARTICLES

M.P.Nawarathne
Chathuranga Dharmarathne

Tropical Medicine
and Health

EFFICACY OF THE INSECT GROWTH REGULATOR NOVALURON IN THE
CONTROL OF DENGUE VECTOR MOSQUITOES AEDES AEGYPTI AND AE.
ALBOPICTUS

J. M. M. K.Herath

W. A. Priyanka P. De Silva, Thilini C.
Weeraratne & S. H. P. Parakrama
Karunaratne

Scientific Reports

COLORED INTERLOCK BLOCKS OF NON-TRAFFIC GRADE — A NOVEL
APPROACH USING RED SAND

W.L.A.C.l.Weedagama
Nadeesha H. Koralegedara, R.A.L. Sanjeewa,
A. Senaratne & Kushan K. Wijesundara

International Journal of Pavement Research
and Technology

ENHANCING DYE-SENSITIZED SOLAR CELL PERFORMANCE;
OPTIMIZATION OF QUATERNARY COUNTERION-BASED GEL POLYMER
ELECTROLYTE WITHOUT CHANGING ADDITIVES OR NET-ION
COMPOSITION

T. M. W. J.Bandara

K. M. S. P. Bandara, H. M. N.
Wickramasinghe, L. R. A. K. Bandara, N. M.
Adassooriya & Kapila Wijayaratne

Journal of Solid State Electrochemistry

EFFECT OF TITANIUM DIOXIDE NANOFILLERS ON THE PROPERTIES OF
GEL-POLYMER ELECTROLYTES AND POWER CONVERSION EFFICIENCY
OF DYE-SENSITIZED SOLAR CELLS

R. P.Chandrika

S. M. S. Gunathilaka, J. P. Liyanage, Kapila
Wijayaratne, G. R. A. Kumara, N. G. A.
Karunathilaka, L. Ajith DeSilva & T. M. W.
J. Bandara

Journal of Solid State Electrochemistry

PHYLOGENETIC AND PHYLOGEOGRAPHIC INSIGHTS INTO SRI LANKAN
KILLIFISHES (TELEOSTEI: APLOCHEILIDAE)

H.Hiranya Sudasinghe
Tharindu Ranasinghe, Kumudu Wijesooriya,
Lukas Riiber, Madhava Meegaskumbura

Journal of Fish biology

19




Tharindu Ranasinghe, Kumudu Wijesooriya,
Lukas Ruber, Madhava Meegaskumbura

GEOCHEMICAL CHARACTERIZATION AND GEOTHERMOMETRY OF THE
KAPURELLA GEOTHERMAL SPRING, SRI LANKA

A.M.A M. Abeysinghe, M.P. Thilakarathna,
S.P.K. Malaviarachchi4 and ND Subasinghe

Proceedings of the Postgraduate Institute of
Science Research Congress 2024 1st and 2nd
November

LITHOSTRATIGRAPHY AND SEDIMENTOLOGY ACROSS THE
CRETACEOUS-PALEOGENE (K-PG) BOUNDARY IN THE OFFSHORE
MANNAR BASIN: UNRAVELING PALEOENVIRONMENTAL DYNAMICS IN
THE EQUATORIAL MARGIN OF THE NORTHERN INDIAN OCEAN

S.S. Nawarathnal, P.L. Dharmapriyal,2*
A.U. Wijenayakel,2
and E.K.C.W. Kularathna

Proceedings of the Postgraduate Institute of
Science Research Congress 2024 1st and 2nd
November

HERBICIDAL PROPERTIES OF LANTANA CAMARA AND MIKANIA MICRANTHA
INDIVIDUALLY AND IN COMBINATION AGAINST BRASSICA JUNCEA

W.W.R.L. Fernando?, J.W. Damunupola3",
N.C. Bandara®, K.M.G.G. Jayasuriya?®
and B.M.R. Bandara®*

Proceedings of the Postgraduate Institute of
Science Research Congress 2024 1st and 2nd
November

EFFECTS OF CLIMATIC VARIATION ON EPIPHYTIC CRYPTOGAMIC
DIVERSITY IN THE KOTTAWA RAINFOREST, SRI LANKA

H.A.C. Dilrukshi!, N.C.S. Ruklani2and
S.C.K. Rubasinghe?”

Proceedings of the Postgraduate Institute of
Science Research Congress 2024 1st and 2nd
November

CONSUMER PREFERENCE AND SENSORY ACCEPTABILITY OF MI-2 CHILI
PODS (CAPSICUM ANNUM) CULTIVATED WITH MIMOSA PIGRA-BASED
BIOFERTILIZER

T.M.M.P.S. Bandaral*
and K.G.S. Madhushani?

Proceedings of the Postgraduate Institute of
Science Research Congress 2024 1st and 2nd
November

SEDIMENTOLOGICAL CHARACTERIZATION OF GIANT’S TANK CLAY
DEPOSITS IN SRI LANKA: IMPLICATION FOR THEIR GENESIS

D.S.D.D. Silval*, H.M.T.G.A. Pitawala>2and
L.V. Ranaweera?

Proceedings of the Postgraduate Institute of
Science Research Congress 2024 1st and 2nd
November

GREEN SYNTHESIS, CHARACTERIZATION, AND pH
DEPENDENT ADSORPTION OF LEAD(II) BY
HYDROXYAPATITE NANOPARTICLES

S.M. Keerthisinghe!
, T.P. Gamagedara2 and N. Priyanthal-*"

Proceedings of the Postgraduate Institute of
Science Research Congress 2024 1st and 2nd
November

ENHANCING MICROPLASTICS DEGRADATION USING Fe-RICH RED
YELLOW LATOSOLS: A FENTON AND PHOTOCATALYTIC APPROACH

Ishani M. Wijekoon! , Nadeesha H.
Koralegedara®* and Sanjeewa K. Rodrigo®

Proceedings of the Postgraduate Institute of
Science Research Congress 2024 1st and 2nd
November

PRELIMINARY STUDY ON EVALUATING THE CARBON STOCKS PRIOR TO
SEAGRASS RESTORATION IN SINNA ARICHCHAL, KALPITIYA, SRI LANKA

W.S.P. Gunasiri* and C.S. Munasinghe?

Proceedings of the Postgraduate Institute of
Science Research Congress 2024 1st and 2nd
November

PRELIMINARY OBSERVATION OF MICROPLASTICS IN DRINKING WATER
FROM TREATMENT PLANTS IN KANDY: COMPARISON OF RAW AND
TREATED WATER

R.S. Rajakaruna!”, B.A.P.C. Premathilake!
G.K. Kapukotuwa? , A.M.M. Nazeem?, N.
Jayasena* and S. Weragoda®

Proceedings of the Postgraduate Institute of
Science Research Congress 2024 1st and 2nd
November

HYBRIDIZED METHOD TO SOLVE THE INTEGRATED PROBLEM OF
VEHICLE ROUTING AND SCHEDULING AT THE COLLECTION CENTER

S.R. Gnanapragasam™"and W.B.
Daundasekera®

Proceedings of the Postgraduate Institute of
Science Research Congress 2024 1st and 2nd
November

MACHINE LEARNING-DRIVEN DISEASE DIAGNOSIS AND MANAGEMENT
FOR DIVERSE CROPS USING CNN AND TRANSFER LEARNING

M.S. Gunarathna®* , P.H.K.R. Punchihewa?
and R.D. Nawarathna!

Proceedings of the Postgraduate Institute of
Science Research Congress 2024 1st and 2nd
November

20
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G.R.A. Kumara®, A.D.T. Medagedara3 and
T.M.W.J. Bandara-?*

Proceedings of the Postgraduate Institute of
Science Research Congress 2024 1st and 2nd
November

EXPLORING THE ANTIOXIDANT POTENTIALS AND
PHYTOCHEMICALS OF THE EXTRACTS OF BABY COCONUT
(“KURUMBATTI”) OF Cocos nucifera

R.R.S.W.H.S.M. Bandara!, A.M.K.C.J.
Costa?, J.M.S. Jayasinghe'”and K.K.
Wijesundara®

Proceedings of the Postgraduate Institute of
Science Research Congress 2024 1st and 2nd
November

FABRICATION AND OPTIMIZATION OF NANOPOROUS
MEMBRANES FOR ZINC-BROMINE FLOW BATTERY

V.U.H. Serasinghe! , R.M.G. Rajapakse!" and
K.D.M.S.P.K. Kumarasinghe?

Proceedings of the Postgraduate Institute of
Science Research Congress 2024 1st and 2nd
November

MPACT OF AI-DRIVEN TOOLS AND PERSONALIZED LEARNING
PLATFORMS ON SCIENCE EDUCATION IN HIGHER EDUCATION
INSTITUTIONS

K. Balasritharan!* and W.D. Chandrasena?

Proceedings of the Postgraduate Institute of
Science Research Congress 2024 1st and 2nd
November

EFFECTIVE PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES FOR
SCIENCE TEACHERS IN SECONDARY EDUCATION IN SRI LANKA

K. Balasritharan!* and W.D. Chandrasena?

Proceedings of the Postgraduate Institute of
Science Research Congress 2024 1st and 2nd
November

EFFECTIVENESS OF INQUIRY-BASED LEARNING STRATEGIES IN
TEACHING SCIENCE CONCEPTS TO SECONDARY SCHOOL
SCIENCE STUDENTS IN SRI

LANKA K. Balasritharan®™ and W.D.
Chandrasena?

Proceedings of the Postgraduate Institute of
Science Research Congress 2024 1st and 2nd
November

SOCIAL AND CULTURAL BARRIERS IN IMPLEMENTING 21ST
CENTURY SKILLS IN EDUCATION SYSTEMS IN ASIAN COUNTRIES

P.L.A.K. Gunarathna'™ and W.A.P. De Silva?

Proceedings of the Postgraduate Institute of
Science Research Congress 2024 1st and 2nd
November

PROBING STUDENTS’ HIGHER-ORDER THINKING SKILLS IN
GRADE 13 CHEMISTRY: A CASE STUDY FROM KANDY
EDUCATION ZONE, SRI LANKA

S. Visvanathan*, H.M.S.P. Madawala?
A.M.R.S. Bandara® and A.P. Welegedara*

Proceedings of the Postgraduate Institute of
Science Research Congress 2024 1st and 2nd
November

MENSTRUAL HYGIENE AMONG SCHOOL CHILDREN IN SOUTH
ASIA: AWARENESS, PRACTICES AND CONSTRAINTS

A.AD. Jayasundaral” and H.M.S.P.
Madawala?

Proceedings of the Postgraduate Institute of
Science Research Congress 2024 1st and 2nd
November
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TEACHERS’ ROLE IN ENHANCING STUDENTS” ACADEMIC
PERFORMANCE AND BEHAVIOURS

M.A.A. Hakeem!" and K.M.G.G. Jayasuriya?

Proceedings of the Postgraduate Institute of
Science Research Congress 2024 1st and 2nd
November

OVEL DRUG COMBINATIONS AGAINST METHICILLIN RESISTANT
Staphylococcus aureus

J.P.P.S. Rasangani'?and W.R.P.
Wijesinghe!3*

Proceedings of the Postgraduate Institute of
Science Research Congress 2024 1st and 2nd
November

RUG REPURPOSING FOR STREPTOCOCCUS TOXIC SHOCK
SYNDROME (STSS), THE “FLESH-EATING BACTERIA” SPREADING
IN JAPAN

J.P.P.S. Rasangani'?and W.R.P.
Wijesinghe!®*

Proceedings of the Postgraduate Institute of
Science Research Congress 2024 1st and 2nd
November

LEVERAGING LARGE LANGUAGE MODELS FOR REGION-SPECIFIC
FOCUS IN PULMONARY EMBOLISM DETECTION

H.M.S.K.B. Herath!" , P.M.P.C. Gunathilake!
and Roshan G. Ragel®

Proceedings of the Postgraduate Institute of
Science Research Congress 2024 1st and 2nd
November

PREDICTION OF POTENTIAL SULFONAMIDE-LIKE
ANTIMICROBIAL PHYTOCHEMICALS USING KNIME AND
MACHINE LEARNING-BASED APPROACH

B. Swetha'? and W.R.P. Wijesinghel.?"

Proceedings of the Postgraduate Institute of
Science Research Congress 2024 1st and 2nd
November

SUSTAINABLE SYNTHESIS OF RICE STRAW-DERIVED CELLULOSE
NANOCRYSTALS FOR BREAKING THE BARRIERS IN
BIODEGRADABLE PLASTICS

C.P. Chen?, T.N. Dharmapriyal234 Q.T.
Huynh® and K.L. Chang5¢*

Proceedings of the Postgraduate Institute of
Science Research Congress 2024 1st and 2nd
November

MICROPLASTICS DISTRIBUTION IN FLOODPLAINS OF THE
MAHAWELI RIVER IN SRI LANKA

I.M. Wijekoon®" and N.H. Koralegedara®

1%t International Symposium on Microplastics
Pollution — SYMP 2024

BIOMIMICRY OF EPPAWALA ROCK PHOSPHATE SOLUBILIZATION
FOR
SUSTAINABLE FERTILIZER PRODUCTION

W.M.R.W. Weerakoon®*, L.D.B.
Suriyagoda?, H.M.T.G.A. Pitawala®

Abstract Proceedings of 1st International
Conference on Biomimicry for Sustainability
(ICBS 2024)

APPLICATIONS OF DIFFERENT MICROORGANISMS TO IMPROVE
THE SOLUBILITY OF EPPAWALA ROCK PHOSPHATE

W.M.R.W. Weerakoon!”, L.D.B.
Suriyagoda?, R.G.S.C. Rajapakse® and
H.M.T.G.A. Pitawala*

Proceedings of the 2nd International
Conference on Frontiers in Chemical
Technology

Comparison of the Eppawala Rock Phosphate (ERP) solubilizing efficiencies
by fungi in selected agricultural soils

W.M.R.W. Weerakoon!”, L.D.B.
Suriyagoda?, S. Rajapakse?, H.M.T.G.A.
Pitawala4, and K.K.K. Nawarathne®

International Symposium on Agriculture and
Environment 2024

BIODYNAMIC AGRICULTURE FOR MAINTAINING SUSTAINABLE SOIL
FERTILITY AND CROP PRODUCTION IN SRI LANKA: A REVIEW

W.M.R.W. Weerakoon® , L.D.B. Suriyagoda?

8th International Research Conference of Uva
Wellassa University of Sri Lanka

BIOSORPTION OF LEAD (1) FROM AQUEOUS SOLUTION BY
BANANA PEEL: OPTIMIZATION AND ADSORPTION ISOTHERM
STUDY

S.M. Keerthisinghe'?, T.P. Gamagedara??
and N. Priyantha®?*

Proceedings of the 2nd International
Conference on Frontiers in Chemical
Technology

ANALYSIS OF DEMAGNETIZATION ENERGY IN FERROMAGNETIC
THIN FILMS USING THE FOURTH ORDER PERTURBED
HEISENBERG HAMILTONIAN WITH ALL SEVEN MAGNETIC
ENERGY PARAMETERS

M.S.M. Farhan'2*and P. Samarasekara3

Proceedings of the 2nd International
Conference on Frontiers in Chemical
Technology
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TAILORING CRYSTALLINE MORPHOLOGY IN POLY(ETHYLENE
OXIDE)-POLY(ETHYLENE GLYCOL) BLENDS FOR ENHANCED
PERFORMANCE IN QUASI-SOLID DYE-SENSITIZED SOLAR CELLS

R.D.M.A.C.B. Rajakarunarathnel-?*, S.C.
Dissanayake?, I.D. Maithripala® and
T.M.W.J. Bandara'?

Proceedings of the 2™ International
Conference on Frontiers in Chemical
Technology

EXPLORING THE ELECTRONIC/SEMICONDUCTING PROPERTIES
OF Co, Ni, Mg, Zn-MOF-74s UPON ANILINE AND ANILINE
DERIVATIVE ENCAPSULATION

P.D.T.S.N. Jayasundara'®, C.V.
Hettiarachchil2and H.A.I.R. Pereral2

Proceedings of the 2™ International
Conference on Frontiers in Chemical
Technology

BIOSORPTION OF LEAD (II) FROM AQUEOUS SOLUTION BY
BANANA PEEL: OPTIMIZATION AND ADSORPTION ISOTHERM
STUDY

S.M. Keerthisinghe?, T.P. Gamagedara??
and N. Priyantha'?*

Proceedings of the 2" International
Conference on Frontiers in Chemical
Technology

DEVELOPING WATER-SOLUBLE CURCUMIN-LOADED
CARRAGEENAN NANOPARTICLES FOR INTEGRATION INTO
FUNCTIONAL FOOD

W.A.D.K.V. Wijesinghe!, M.HM.A K.
Bandara?, A.D.L.C. Pereral” and J.M.S.
Jayasinghe!

Proceedings of the 2™ International
Conference on Frontiers in Chemical
Technology

ANTIOXIDANT, ANTI-DIABETIC AND ANTI-OBESITY PROPERTIES
OF LATEX OF Garcinia quaesita

V.M.M.K. Jagoda?, T.M.T.D. Thennakoon?
and J.M.S. Jayasinghe!”

Proceedings of the 2nd International
Conference on Frontiers in Chemical
Technology

SYNTHESIS OF ETHERIFIED DERIVATIVES OF GARCINOL AS a-
AMYLASE AND a-GLUCOSIDASE INHIBITORS

T.M.T.D. Thennakoon?, J.M.S. Jayasinghe®*
and N.LV.V. Karunaratne?

Proceedings of the 2nd International
Conference on Frontiers in Chemical
Technology

ANTI-DIABETIC AND ANTI-OBESITY ACTIVITIES COMPARISON OF
COMMON DIFFERENT CURRY LEAVES VARIETIES IN SRI LANKA

Y B.A.S.U. Wanigasekara!, D.M.D.B.
Dasanayake?, J.M.S.J. Jayasinghe®" and
N.L.V.V. Karunaratne?

Proceedings of the 2nd International
Conference on Frontiers in Chemical
Technology

ASSESSMENT OF THE VIABILITY OF Tithonia diversifolia SEED OIL
AS A BIODIESEL FEEDSTOCK VIA TRANSESTERIFICATION

P.A.W. Keshiya*?and M.Y.U.
Ganahenege-?"

Proceedings of the 2nd International
Conference on Frontiers in Chemical
Technology

GENETIC ALGORITHM WITH MULTIPLE MUTATION STRATEGIES TO
SOLVE THE VEHICLE ROUTING PROBLEM WITH CROSS-DOCKING

S.R. Gnanapragasam?, W.B. Daundasekera®

8th International Research Conference of Uva
Wellassa University of Sri Lanka

THE IMPACT OF SUCCESSIONAL CHANGES ON EPIPHYTIC CRYPTOGAMIC
DIVERSITY IN THE KOTTAWA RAINFOREST, SRI LANKA

H.A.C. Dilrukshi!, N.C.S. Ruklani?, S.C.K.
Rubasinghe?

8th International Research Conference of Uva
Wellassa University of Sri Lanka

COCONUT WATER ELECTROLYTE FOR BIOMASS DERIVED ACTIVATED
CARBON SUPERCAPACITORS

P.T. Rathnayaka?, A.D.T. Medagedara??,
E.G.D.K. Chandrarathnel?, G.D.K.
Mahanama!, G.R.A. Kumara?

iPURSE Proceedings, 2024

FABRICATION OF DYE-SENSITIZED SOLAR CELLS BASED ON NATURAL
PIGMENTS EXTRACTED FROM THE MIXTURE OF BETEL, ARECA NUT, AND
CALCIUM CARBONATE

E.G.D.K. Chandrarathne!?2, M.1.U.
Weerasinghel?, P.T. Rathnayake'?, G.D.K.
Mahanama? , G.R.A. Kumaral*

iPURSE Proceedings, 2024

IDENTIFICATION OF FORAGE ENSILING LACTIC ACID BACTERIA FROM
SILAGE

K. Mithila Devindi' , Pradeepa C.G.
Bandaranayake?, C.H.W.M.R. Bhagya
Chandrasekara? , R. Priyantha® , R.G. Sanath
Rajapakse! , W.M.P.B. Weerasinghe? ,
M.B.P. Kumara Mahipala®

iPURSE Proceedings, 2024
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INVESTIGATION AND OPTIMIZATION OF THERMOELECTRIC PROPERTIES
OF HYDROCHLORIC ACID DOPED POLYANILINE

W.G.T.L. Weerasinghe!*, P. Samarasekara'?,

T.M.W.J, Bandara®?, L.K. Narangammana-?
1

iPURSE Proceedings, 2024

LARVICIDAL EFFECT OF PSEUDOMONAS MOSSELII AGAINST LARVAE OF
DENGUE VECTOR MOSQUITO AEDES AEGYPTI

W.M.S.H. Wijesundara'? , G.D.S.R. Piumali!
, T.C. Weeraratne! and W.A.P.P. de Silval®

iPURSE Proceedings, 2024

POTENTIAL FOR PRODUCING LEAF MEAL PELLETS FOR RUMINANT
RATIONS FROM WASTED GLIRICIDEA (GLIRICIDIA SEPIUM) LEAVES

T. Kanagavelrajan! , K. Mithila Devindi? ,
W.M.P.B. Weerasinghe® , M.B.P. Kumara
Mahipala”*

iPURSE Proceedings, 2024

SYNTHESIS AND CHARACTERISATION OF COCONUT SHELLBASED
ACTIVATED CARBON BLACK THROUGH KOH ACTIVATION

G.D.M.H. Wijewardhana'” , M.M.M.G.P.G.
Mantilaka® , T.B.N.S. Madugalla? , W.P.S.L.
Wijesinghe® , W.S.S. Gunathilake* , H.C.S.
Perera*

iPURSE Proceedings, 2024

SYNTHESIS OF O-ALKYLATED GARCINOL DERIVATIVES AS A-AMYLASE
AND A-GLUCOSIDASE INHIBITORS

T.M.T.D. Thennakoon! , J.M.S. Jayasinghe?",
N.L.V.V. Karunaratne?

iPURSE Proceedings, 2024

COMPARISON OF YIELD AND PHYSICOCHEMICAL PROPERTIES OF VIRGIN
COCONUT OIL EXTRACTED BY DIFFERENT

Methods G.H. Weeraddanal*, W.M.A.P.
Wanigasekara?

iPURSE Proceedings, 2024

EXAMINATION TIMETABLE SCHEDULING BASED ON QUADRATIC
ASSIGNMENT PROBLEM

P.A.I.M. Priyanka'*, Dr.G.W.R.M.R.
Palamakumbura?

iPURSE Proceedings, 2024

PHYSICAL ACTIVITY LEVEL AND ASSOCIATED FACTORS AMONG
PREGNANT WOMEN ATTENDING TWO ANTENATAL CLINICS IN KANDY
DISTRICT, SRI LANKA: FACILITY BASED CROSS SECTIONAL STUDY

P.C. Ubhayasiri'*, N.P. Kaluarachchit, S.
Kalhari? , R.M. Wijesuriya?

iPURSE Proceedings, 2024

ANTI-DIABETIC AND ANTI-OBESITY PROPERTIES OF LOCALLY
AVAILABLE FOUR DUCKWEED VARIETIES IN SRI LANKA

H.R.P. Prasadinil?, W.A.S.H. Senavirathne?,
T. Madhujith* , B.C. Jayawardena®, S.
Wijesundara? , R. Liyanage'”

iPURSE Proceedings, 2024

INTRASPECIFIC DIVERSITY OF ELAEOCARPUS MONTANUS THWAITES IN
SRI LANKA, BASED ON MOLECULAR DATA

S.I. Hapuarachchi' , G.G.N.D. Silva? , K.
Yakandawala® and D.M.D. Yakandawalal*

iPURSE Proceedings, 2024

THE EFFECT OF IMPROVED RATION ON BODY CONDITION, METABOLIC
PROFILE, AND REPRODUCTIVE PERFORMANCE IN SEVERELY EMACIATED
CROSSBRED DAIRY COWS

A.S. Lenagalal, K. Nizanantha?, Basil D.
Alexander? , W.M.P.B. Weerasinghe? ,
M.B.P. Kumara Mahipala**

iPURSE Proceedings, 2024

THE EFFECT OF IMPROVED RATION ON BODY CONDITION, METABOLIC
PROFILE, AND REPRODUCTIVE PERFORMANCE IN SEVERELY EMACIATED
CROSSBRED DAIRY COWS

A.S. Lenagalal, K. Nizanantha? , Basil D.
Alexander? , W.M.P.B. Weerasinghe? ,
M.B.P. Kumara Mahipala**

iPURSE Proceedings, 2024

A PRELIMINARY TAXONOMIC SURVEY OF EPIPHYTIC CRYPTOGAMS IN
SELECTED SOUTHERN LOWLAND RAINFORESTS OF SRI LANKA

Dilrukshi H.A.C.**, Rubasinghe S.C.K.2 and
Ruklani N.C.S.2

RISTCON, 2024
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AN OPTIMIZATION MODEL FOR INTEGRATED VEHICLE ROUTING
PROBLEM AND VEHICLE SEQUENCING PROBLEM WITH CROSS-DOCKING
SYSTEM

Gnanapragasam S.R.12* and Daundasekera
W.B.2

RISTCON, 2024

A MULTIVARIATE MEASUREMENT ERROR MODEL FOR METHOD
COMPARISON DATA UNDER SKEWED AND HEAVY-TAILED
DISTRIBUTIONS

Duwarahan J.2?" and Nawarathna L.S.3

RISTCON, 2024

NUMERICAL STUDY OF AGE-STRUCTURED TWO-SEX POPULATION
DYNAMICS MODEL FOR TRANSMISSION OF THALASSEMIA DISEASE

Chandrasiri A.M.P 12" and De Silva
T.HKR.2

RISTCON, 2024

AN INTEGRATED VEHICLE ROUTING AND VEHICLE
SEQUENCING PROBLEM AT THE CROSS-DOCKING CENTER:A META-
HEURISTIC APPROACH

S.R. Gnanapragasam?* and W.B.
Daundasekera®

Proceedings of the International Research
Conference of the Open University of Sri
Lanka (IRC-OUSL 2024)

EFFECT OF GROWING ENVIRONMENT ON THE QUALITY AND QUANTITY
OF KAPPAPHYCUS ALVAREZII (DOTY) DOTY YIELD

G.D.S.P. Rajapakshal, P.M.P.C. Gunathilake!
, J.K. Vidanarachchi? , B.C. Jayawardana? ,
B. Nirooparaj ¢, M.D.S.T. De Croos*, I.
Wijesekara® , and P.C.G. Bandaranayake*

Thirty-sixth Annual Congress of the PGIA, 22
November 2024

EFFECT OF GROWING ENVIRONMENT ON LEAF, STEM, AND ROOT
ANATOMY OF TOMATO (SOLANUM LYCOPERSICUM L.) IN VEGETATIVE
AND REPRODUCTIVE STAGE

I.N.S. Dewapriya! , W.A.P. Weerakoddy? ,
and P.C.G. Bandaranayake:

Thirty-sixth Annual Congress of the PGIA, 22
November 2024

EFFECT OF STIRRING TIME ON MORPHOLOGICAL OPTIMISATION OF WS,
FOR HYDROGEN EVOLUTION REACTION

K.P.S.C.Silval, N.Gunawardhana? and
M.Wijeysinghe®

Abstract of the Annual Research Conference
on Sustainable Future through
Multidisciplinary Research
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5.2.1 Ph.D. DEGREES AWARDED

No.

5.2 Ph.D., M.Phil. and M.Sc. Degrees Awarded During the Year

Degree Awardees

W A Gunarathna

H A B M Hathurusinghe

P S Jayatilaka

R M R Nilanthi

W M D S Weerasekara

C W Sahabandu

S Saseevan

Titles of Theses

COMPUTATIONAL TECHNIQUES FOR
HIGHER ORDER APPROXIMATIONS OF
FRACTIONAL DERIVATIVES WITH
APPLICATIONS

TRANSCRIPTIONS, MICROSCOPY  AND
MOLECULAR INTERACTIONS: A
MULTIFACETED EXPLORATION OF FLORAL
AND BARK DEVELOPMENT OF CEYLON
CINNAMON, CINNAMOMUM VERUM BLUME
(SRI LANKA)

CANINE VECTOR BONE DISEASEA:DIVERSITY
DISTRIBUTION AND PHYLOGENETICS OF
HAEMOPARASITES IN DOGS ,SRI LANKA

AN INTEGRATIVE TAXONOMIC STUDY OF
GENUSSTROBILANTHES IN SRI LANKA

ECOLOGY OF SAMBAR DEER (RUSA UNICOLOR
UNICOLOR )IN HORTON PLAINS NATIONAL
PARK, SRI LANKA

AN EXTENSION TO METHOD OF DIRECTLY
DEFINING THE INVERSE MAPPING FOR
SYSTEMS OF COUPLED PARTIAL
DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS ARISE IN OIL
INDUSTRY

STUDY ON URINARY BIOMARKERS AND URINE
MICROBIOME IN A COHORT OF DIABETIC AND
HYPERTENSIVE CHRONIC KIDNEY DISEASE
PATIENTS IN SRI LANKA

28

Supervisors

Dr.HM Nasir

Prof. WB Daundasekera

Dr. PCG Bandaranayake

Prof.DKNG

Pushpakumara

Prof Rupika Rajakaruna

Prof A Dangolla

Prof. P C G Bandaranayake

Prof. D S A Wijesundara

Prof. K B Ranawana

Dr.Z AM S Juman

Dr. M T M Dewasurendra

Prof D Magana-Arachchi
Prof. R G S C Rajapakse

Dr. W A A G N Nishanthi



5.2.2 M.Phil. DEGREES AWARDED

No.

1.

10

12

Degree Awardees

S M Ranasinghe

S W Meepegamage

DSD
Heiyanthuduwage

KM N T K Bandara

S A Panamaldeniya

J C Kalinga.

K D P U Siriwardhane

P M CJ B Bandara

T C M F Karunarathna

K A G Sameera

Kumarasinghe R K K
GRG

Titles of Theses

UNDERSTANDING THE LONG TERM INFLUENCE OF INDIAN
OCEAN WARM POOL AND INDIAN OCEAN DIPOLE ON THE
MONSOON VARIABILITY OF SRI LANKA

EFFECT OF BIOFILM BIOFERTILIZER ON SOIL NUTRIENTS,
MICROBES, ENDOPHYTES AND PADDY YIELDS

DETEMINATIONS FOR CONSUMING AN UNBALANCED DIET
AMONG 2 TO 5 YEARS OLD CHILDERN AND
CREATON,ADMINISTRATION AND ASSESSING THE PREVALENCE
AND EFFECTIVENESS OF ONE YEAR COMMUNITY BASED
HEALTH PROMOTION INTERVENTION IN IMPROVING DIET IN
SELECTED MOH ARER

IMPACT OF TEACHER STUDENT INTERACTIONAS ON SCIENCE
LEARNING:

A CASE STUDY IN BADULLA EDUCATIONAL ZONE.

NOVEL TIO2/GRAPHENE AND NB205/GRAPHENE COMPOSITE
ANODES FOR LITHIUM ION BATTERIES

CHEMISTRY AND BIOACTIVITIES OF MICROBIAL METABOLITES
PRODUCED BY ENDOPHYTIC FUNGI IN ACALYPHA INDICA AND
CURCUMA LONGA

CHEMISTRY AND BIOACTIVITY OF SECONDARY METABOLITES
PRODUCED BY ENDOPHYTIC FUNGI ISOLATED FROM
CARDIOSPERMUM HALICACABUM AND ZINGIBER OFFICINALE

DEVELOPMENT OF A NEW UNIT PROCESS USING SURFACE-
ENHANCED SAND COMPOSITES FOR SIMULTANEOUS REMOVAL
OF TURBIDITY AND FLUORIDE IN WATER

SCREENING SELECTED INAVASIVE PLANT
EXTRACTS/COMPOUNDS FOR ANTIFUNGAL ACTION AGAINTS
PATHOGENS OF ORNAMENTAL FOLIAGE PLANTS

PRESSURE-TEMPERATURE-TIME-FLUID EVOLUTION OF CALC-
SILCATE GRANULITES IN THE SOUTHWESTERN,SOUTHERN AND
SOUTHEASTERN HIGHLAND COMPLEX OF
SRI LANKA AND EKANITE PETROGENESIS

DEVELOPMENT OF CdS AND CdTe THIN FILMS FOR THIN FILMS
SOLAR CELL APPLICATIONS

29

Supervisors

Dr.P N Ranasinghe
Prof.A L THewawasam

Prof. PRG Seneviratne
Prof. RGSC Rajapakse

Prof Sampath Tennakoon

Prof Thushara
Kudagammana

Prof Madawa
Chandrathilake

Dr. Ashoka
Menike

Abeykoon

Dr.Nanda Gunawardhana

Dr. B S Dassanayake

Prof. U L B Jayasinghe

Prof. N K B Adikaram

Prof. Ulb Jayasinghe

Prof. NKB Adikaram

Prof. Svr Weerasooriya
Prof. Nwb Balasooriya

Prof. J W Damunupola
Prof. B M R Bandara

Prof. G W A R Fernando
Dr.D L Dharmapriya

Dr. B. S. Dassanayake
Prof. L. D. B. R. P.

Wijesundara



13

Gunathilake SM S

DYE-SENSITIZED SOLAR CELL EFFICIENCY ENHANCEMENT
THROUGH THE  OPTIMIZATION OF MULTI-LAYERED
PHOTOANODE AND GRAPHENE-INCORPORATED PHOTOANODE
AND ELECTROLYTE

Dr. T M W J Bandara
Dr. B M K Premasiri

INVESTIGATION OF MAGNETIC PROPERTIES OF

Prof. P. Samarasekara

14
FERROMAGNETIC THIN FILMS USING THE FOURTH ORDER
Farhan M S M
PERTURBED HEISENBERG HAMILTONIAN
15 LOW COST AND HIGH EFFICIENT ENERGY STORAGE AND Prof. G R A Kumara
Medagedara AD T CONVERSION DEVICES USING ACTIVATED CARBON Prof. T. M. W. J. Bandara
16 GENETIC CHARACTERIZATION OF DRUG RESISTANT Prof.D N Magana-Arachchi
J M P MYCOBACTERUM TUBERCULOSIS ISOLATES FROM PULMONARY

Madamarandawala

TUBERCULOSIS PATIENTS AND ASSOCIATED HOST LOOD
TRANSCRIPTOMICS

Prof. R G S C Rajapakse
Dr. Dushantha Madegedara

30




5.2.3 M.Sc. DEGREES AWARDED

No. Degree Awardee

Disaster Manegment
1. N K Weerasekara

2. B AD S Jayarathne

3. A Balasubramaniyam

4. SMKT Samarakoon
GIS & Remote Sensing

5 W KK Chathuranga

6 P W Sudarshani

Water Resources Management
7 WMY R Bandaranayake

H M B N Jayasinghe,

Analytical Chemistry
9 MW M P Nawarathne

Computer Science
10. S Gopinath

Title of Thesis

DEVOLOPMENT INDUCED CATCHMENT DEGRADATION
AND DISASTER CHAIN A CASE STUDY FROM BADULLA
OYA BASIN SRI LANKA

SUCCESS AND WEAKNESS OF THE DISASTER INDUCED
RESETTLMENT IN SRI LANKA

IMPACT OF COVID 19 ON SECONDARY SCHOOL EDUCATION
LESSON LEARNED FROM KARAVEDDY EDUCATION
DIVISION JAFFNA

BIOACTIVITY STUDIES OF AN ENDOPHYTIC FUNGUS
ASSOCIATED WITH CENTEAL ASIATICA

ARIFICIAL NEURAL NETWORK BASED LANDUSE
MODELLING FOR PREDICTING CITY FORMATIONS, A CASE
OF KANDY
SRI LANKA
SELECTION OF SUITABLE LANDS FOR FOREST PLANTATION

USING GIS CASE STUDY FROM HAMBANTHOTA

SAND MINING IN THE POTAWA OYA STREAM BED AT
GALEWELA IN MATALE DISTRIC AND ITS EFFECTS ON THE
LOCAL ENVIRONMENT

REMOVAL OF WATER HARDNESS USING STRAW ASH AND

MONTMORILLONITE CLAY

DEVELOPMENT OF NOVEL LARVICIDAL AGENT FROM
ENCAPSULATED
CHITOSAN NANOPARTICLES TO CONTROL LARVAE OF

COMBINED  PLANT  EXTRACTS

DENGUE MOSQUITOES

TWO FACTOR COMMISSIONING FOR THE THREAD
PROTOCOL
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Supervisor(s)

Prof. K W Nandalal

Dr. J Gunathilake

Prof. R Niyanthi

Prof. U L B Ranasinghe

Dr. Jagath Gunathilake

Dr. ] Gunathilake
Mr. Malika
Gunawardena

Prof. N W B Balasooriya
Dr. H A
Dharmagunawardena
Ms. I Surangi

Dr. S Jayasinghe

Prof. W A P De Silva

Prof. R Ragel

Prof. GSN
Karunarathne



Medical Physics
11 WMNMB

Wanninayake

RADIATION DOSE AUDITING FOR SELECTED X-RAY
EXAMINATIONS; A CASE STUDY IN TWO HOSPITALS IN
COLOMBO DISTRICT

Biodiversity, Ecotourism and Environment Management

12. BHSM Gunawardana,

13. U G M S Medawala,

Science Education

CONSERVATION STATUS AND AN ASSESSMENT OF THE
CROP DAMAGE CAUSED BY THE HOG DEAR (AXIS
PORCINUS) IN GALLE DISTRICT, SRI LANKA

APPLICATION OF FOUR BODY CONDITION SCORING
INDICES TO ASSET THE WELLBEING OF ASIAN ELEPHANTS
AT THE PINNAWALA ELEPHANT ORPHANAGE, SRI LANKA

Dr. V. Sivakumar

Prof. K B Ranawana

Prof. K B Ranawana

A STATISTICAL MODEL TO PREDICT THE PASSING RATE Prof W B
14 LPKL Kumara OF GCE (O/L) MATHEMATICS IN THE GIRIULLA Daundasekara
EDUCATION ZONE )
Dr Sachith P
Abeyasundara
15 A Suman SIGNIFICANCE OF USING PRACTICAL ON STUDENT DrACA
PERFORMANCE IN ELECTROCHEMISTRY UNIT:A CASE Jayasundara
STUDY IN GRADE 11 OF SELECTED SCHOOL IN
THIRUKKOVIL EDUCATION ZONE,AMPARA SRI LANKA
16 M Shritharan THE IMPACT OF SCHOOL RESOURCES ON PERFORMANCE DrUGIGK
OF STUDENTS GCE (ORDINARY LEVEL )MATHEMATICS A Udagedara
CASE STUDY IN VADAMARADCHY EDUCATION ZONE
17 K K T Dilrukshi INVESTIGATION ON CURRENT PRACTICES OF SCHOOL Prof. PR K A
BASED ASSESSMENT FOR SCIENCE IN GCE (ORDINARY Vitharana
LEVEL) A CASE STUDY IN MATARA EDUCATION ZONE
18 M MT C Thilakarathne FACTORS AFFECTING STUDENTS LOW PERFORMANCE IN Dr. AK

COORDINATE GEOMETRY :A CASE STUDY IN COLOMBO
EDUCATION ZONE

Amarasinghe

Applied Epidemiology

19 T AP Perera

SURVEILLANCE OF NOTIFIABLE COMMUNICABLE
DISEASES FOOD SANITATION AND WATER QUALITY AT
MEDICAL OFFICER OF HEALTH AREAS OF GAMPAHA
DISTRICT,SRI LANKA

Dr. Charitha
Jayasinghe
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5.3 Postgraduate Output During the Year 2024
5.3.1Graduates (01.01.2024 - 31.12.2024)

189 grandaunts from Postgraduate Institute of Science received their postgraduate degrees of PhD/

MPhil/Masters and MSc while 4 students obtain postgraduate diploma.

Degree No. of Students
Ph.D. 7
M. Phil. 16
M.Sc. 45
Masters 117
Diploma 4
Total 189

Number of Postgraduate Degree Holders - 2024
120} 117

100

80

60

45

Number of Students

40

20 16

[ 1 ——
0 Ph.D. M.Phil. M.Sc. Other Masters Diploma
Type of Degree
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5.3.2 Output of Postgraduate Degree Programmes 2024 (from January to December 2024)

Programme of Study

Mphil In Biochemistry & Molecular Biology
‘ Mphil In Environmental Science
Mphil In Physics
‘ Mphil in Chemical Sciences
Mphil in Statistics And Computer Science
‘ M.Phil in Earth Sciences
Mphil In Plant Science
‘ Mphil In Zoological Sciences
M.Phil In Science Education
‘ PhD in Chemical Sciences
PhD in Computer Sciences
‘ PhD in Earth Sciences
PhD in Physics
‘ PhD in Biochemistry & Molecular Biology
PhD in Mathematics

PhD in Zoological Sciences

Information Technology
Experimental Biotechnology
Analytical Chemistry

Nanoscience And Nanotechnology
Clinical Biochemistry

Gemmology and Industrial Minerals
GiS and Remote Sensing

Industrial Mathematics

Applied Statistics

Engineering Geology & Hydrogeology

Biodiversity,Ecotourism And Environment Management

34

Degree

(PD/Master’'s/MPh

il/ PhD)

MPhil
MPhil
MPhil
MPhil
MPhil
MPhil
MPhil
MPhil
MPhil
Ph.D
Ph.D
Ph.D
Ph.D
Ph.D
Ph.D
Ph.D

Master of science
Master of science
Master of science
Master of science
Master of science
Master of science
Master of science
Master of science
Master of science
Master of science

Master of science

No.
Graduat
ed
Total
1

R ] m m m m] m m] m | s R s N e

13




Environmental Science

Computer Science

Physics Of Materials

Disaster Management

Applied Epidemiology

Medical Physics

Science Education

Experimental Biotechnology
Analytical Chemistry

Gis and Remote Sensing
Biodiversity,Ecotourism And Environment Management
Science Education

Medical Microbiology

Water Resources Management
Engineering Geology & Hydrogeology
Medical Physics

Computer Science

Nanoscience And Nanotechnology
Disaster Management

Physics Of Materials

Environmental Science

Nanoscience And Nanotechnology

Biodiversity,Ecotourism And Environment Management

Computer Science
‘ Applied Epidemiology
Total

35

Master of science
Master of science
Master of science
Master of science
Master of science
Master of science
Master of science
Master of science in
Master of science in
Master of science in
Master of science in
Master of science in
Master of science in
Master of science in
Master of science in
Master of science in
Master of science in
Master of science in
Master of science in
Master of science in
Master of science in

PG Diploma
PG Diploma
PG Diploma
PG Diploma

189

17
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5.3.3 Local Students New Entrants and Enrolment (Total No. of Students) in Postgraduate

Degree Programmes 2024

Programme of Study

PG Dip in Science Education
‘ Total
Masters In Analytical Chemistry
‘ Masters In Applied Statistics(SLQF 9/10)

Masters In Biodiversity, Ecotourisam & Environment
Management(SLQF 9/10)
‘ Masters In Computer Science(SLQF 9/10)

M.Sc. In Clinical Biochemistry (SLQF 9/10)
‘ Masters In Clinical Biochemistry(SLQF 9/10 )
M.Sc. In Disaster Management (SLQF 9/10)
‘ Masters In Disaster Management(SLQF 9/10)
Masters In Engineering Geology & Hydrogeology(SLQF 9/10)
‘ Masters In Environmental Science(SLQF 9/10 )
Masters In Experimental Biotechnology(SLQF 9/10)
‘ Masters In GIS & Remote Sensing(SLQF 9/10 )
Masters In Industrial Chemistry(SLQF 9/10)
‘ M.Sc. In Industrial Mathematics (SLQF 9/10 )
Masters In Industrial Mathematics(SLQF 9/10 )
‘ Masters In Information Technology(SLQF 9/10)
Masters In Medical Physics(SLQF 9/10)
‘ Masters In Nanoscience & Nanotechnology(SLQF 9/10 )
Masters In Pharmaceutical Botany(SLQF 9/10)
‘ Masters In Physics of Materials(SLQF 9/10)

New Entrants
(January -
December

2024)

3
3

Not advertised

24

Not advertised
60
Not advertised

do
do

do
do
do
do
34
Not advertised
do
14
Not advertised
16
Not advertised
do
17

Student Enrolment
(Total no. of registered
students -

academic work in
progress
(as at 31st December 2024)
10
10
119
87

50
224

35
13
27
34
72
27
153
49
11
81
82
15
122
28
57
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Masters In Science Education(SLQF 9/10 )
‘ M.Sc. In Medical Microbiology
Masters In Medical Microbiology(SLQF 9/10)
‘ Masters In Gemmology & Industrial Minerals(SLQF 9/10 )
Masters In Water Resources Management(SLQF 9/10 )
‘ Masters In Applied Epidemiology(SLQF 9/10)
Masters in Data Science(SLQF 9/10 )
‘ Masters in Molecular Biology And Biotechnology (SLQF 9/10)
Total
‘ Mphil in Biomedical Sciences
Mphil in Biochemistry & Molecular Biology
‘ Mphil in Chemical Sciences
Mphil in Environmental Science
‘ Mphil in Earth Sciences
Mphil in Mathematics
‘ Mphil in Physics
Mphil in Plant Sciences
‘MpMHnSmﬁﬁks&CompuwrSdmme
Mphil in Science Education
‘ Mphil in Zoological Sciences
Total
‘ Ph.D.
PhD in Biochemistry & Molecular Biology
‘ PhD in Chemical Sciences
PhD in Environmental Science
‘PhDinEathdames
PhD in Mathematics
‘PhDinPhyﬁcs
PhD in Plant Sciences
‘HﬂHnSmﬁﬂks&CompumrSdmme
PhD in Science Education
‘ PhD in Zoological Sciences
Total
‘ Grand Total

Not advertised
do

do
do

do
do
49
Not advertised
223

i © R o Rl o R N o o o N o w N e o w| N o N e

N
N
w

75
19
52
23
36
54
121
20
1673

15
52
21
34
10
17
19
15

14
139

Nov s A R W e ] s e

w
92

1857
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5.3.4 Foreign Students in Postgraduate Degree Programmes

Programme of Study

Master's Degree

Disaster Management

GIS and Remote Sensing

Science Education
Sub Total

M.Phil.

Environmental Science

Sub Total

Grand Total

Country

Canada
Congo

Chinese

China

Student Enrolment
(total no. of registered students)
(as at 31st December 2024)

Male | Female Total
1
1 0
9 12
14 12
1
1 0
13 13

38

21
27

26

Recived Course Fee
(Rs.)

250,000.00
60000.00
11,558,760.00
11,868,760.00

59346.00

59346.00



5.4 Research Facilities and Activities

5.4.1 Research facilities and laboratory functioning

Laboratories were prepared for students to conduct their research projects conveniently by

providing facilities including needy equipments, chemical & consumable stores and storage areas.

)
%
e
%
'y
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5.4.2 PGIS research Grants programme 2024

The PGIS administered 26 local and foreign research grants in year 2024. A scheme for awarding
research grants from earned funds was established in year 2021. PGIS funded eleven new PGIS
Research Grants in year 2023 grants through generated funds. Application are called in 2024 to

award research grants for the next year.

6. CONFERENCES AND SHORT-TERM PROGRAMMES

The PGIS annually conducts many short-term programmes including conferences and in-service
training programmes; some of those programmes are conducted on a regular basis. The regular
short-term programmes conducted in 2024 include Certificate course in ‘Bioinformatics Introduction
and Methods’, ‘Workshops on Scientific Writing’ and ‘Advanced Organic Chemistry ’. The PGIS also
offers consultancy services to local industries and state- and private-sector institutions. The

Information with related to the Conferences and other events are given below.

Sri Lanka

-~ Woa(cs%gon Algal Bl@ﬁ)ﬂﬂg}’

19" and 20'" of October 2024, %

OrgamA by the ¢
Board of Study i Plant \uoncc . 5
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6.1PGIS Research Congress (RESCON) — 2024

\ B S R S

é a1 eeseon b

RESEARCH CONGRESS
Breaking Boundaries:
Collaborative Science for Global Challenges

\ I strongly recommend the
1 Tcti tgraduate Instil
®. ICT, Mathematics, & Statistics N
A Lanka. Discourse is vital for
good science and this
Congress will expose you to

¢ Physical Sciences awide range o esearch.

¥ Science Education Sir Paul M. Nurse
The Nobel Prize in Physiology or

9, Life Sciences

Al in Biomedical Sciences

¢ Call for Abstracts 30" April 2024
¢ Abstract Submission Deadline 31% July 2024 ==

¢ Notification of Acceptance 15™ August 2024
 Submission of Revised Abstracts 30" August 2024

The PGIS Research Congress is the major annual research conference of the Postgraduate Institute of
Science. The congress provides an excellent platform to share knowledge and network with scientists
across the country and abroad through the presentation of cutting-edge research. This event, the
largest in the PGIS calendar, has evolved into a vital platform for knowledge exchange, uniting both
local and international research. Scheduled on the 1st and 2nd of November 2024, 289 abstracts
spanning under five major themes; Life Sciences, Physical Sciences, ICT, Mathematics, and Statistics,
Science Education,and Earth and Environmental Sciences, were presented.

The Inauguration Ceremony, together with the keynote speech by Professor Jennifer Perera Emeritus
Professor in Medical Microbiology and former Dean of the Faculty of Medicine, University of
Colombo, was held on the 02nd November. Technical Sessions of the RESCON 2024 was successfully
completed with Prof. NK Anjana Silva Department of Parasitology, Faculty of Medicine, Rajarata
University of Sri Lanka, Prof. Nalini Ravishanker Department of Statistics, University of Connecticut,
Prof. SY Ekanayake, Department of Education, Faculty of Arts, University of Peradaeniya as plenary
speakers.
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6.2.1 Workshops, Conferences ,Webinars Held in 2024

Programme/Theme Organized by

Fac./Dep./Center/Unit Dates

1 Board of Study in Earth

Water Day Celebrations 22.03.2024

Science

2 School linkage programme O/L examination
March to April

2024

based seminar series Young Research Forum PGIS

Organized by YRF PGIS

3 first pre RESCON workshop on “Computer
Programming with Al: Application in Biological

Sciences”

The resource person, Prof.  Dayanjan S. | PGIS/Board of Study in 31.07.2024
I Biomedical Science
Wijesinghe, Department Pharmacotherapy &

Outcomes Science, Virginia Commonwealth
University, VA, USA.

4 | The conference on International Water Board of Study in 239 and 24"

Symposium and Water Quality Environmental Science August, 2024.

pre RESCON workshop “Mastering the art of
Scientific Review: Techniques and best

practices”
PGIS/ Board of Study in 28.08.2024
the resource person, Prof. Mattew Allen, the | Biomedical Science

Chair of the Department of Chemistry, Wayne
University, USA.

6 Pre-RESCON  workshop on “Encouraging .
PGIS/ Board of Study in 26.10.2024.

International Collaborative Research” Biomedical Science
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Two (2) day workshop on  “Algal
Biotechnology” by the Board of Study (BoS) in
Plant Sciences.

Board of Study in Plant

19" and 20

_ Science Sciences October 2024
Dr. Sarangi Athukorala, the workshop
Coordinator,
8 1 and 2™
The PGIS RESCON 2024 PGIS/ Board of Study in November,
Biomedical Science 2024
10 | A Stake Holder meeting to discuss on the
curricula of the BSc program and the Master of
Financial Mathematics (SLQF 9) and Master of | Board of Study in
04.12.2024

Science in Financial Mathematics (SLQF 10).

Resource Person:Prof. Kamala Ragavan from

Housten University, USA .

Mathematics




7. DEVELOPMENT OF HUMAN AND PHYSICAL RESOURCES

7.1 Human Resources

During the year both faculty as well as non-academic staff of PGIS rendered valuable service to the

achievement of institutional goals

7.1.1 Academic staff (Visiting)

Senior Senior
Board of Subject Medium Professor/ Lecturer/ | Instructor
Study Professor/Assoc | Lecturer
. Professor
Biochemistry | Clinical Biochemistry 10 13 5
of Molecular
Biology Molecular Biology and 04 07 10
Biotechnology
Analytical Chemistry 05 11 16
Industrial Chemistry - - -
Chemical Nanoscience & 20 27 05
Sciences Nanotechnology
GIS & Remote Sensing
Earth Sciences English
02 07 02
Water Resources Management 06 09 -
Biodiversity, Ecotourism & 10 07 04
Environmenta | Environment Management
| Science Environmental Science 12 10 03
Mathematics | Industrial Mathematics 01 11 -
Physics Physics of Materials - - -
Medical Physics 05 15 -
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Plant Sciences

Medical Microbiology

Pharmaceutical Botany

Science Diploma in Science Education 02 12
Education  ['Science Education (Chinese 06 16 -
Students)
Science Education 10 - 04
Statistics & | Applied Statistics 02 12 -
Computer | Computer Science 06 10 -
Science Data Science 05 15 -
Information Technology - - -
Zoological | Applied Epidemiology - - -
Sciences
TOTAL 106 182 49
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7.1.2 Approved Cadre and Present Staff 2024 - All Staff

*) This vacancy of Management Assistant is in personal to holder basis.

Senior Level | Director
Professor U-AC5 05 00 00 05
Associate Professor U-AC4 00 00
Senior Lecturer/Lecturer/Lecturer U-AC3 00 00
(Probationary)
Senior  Assistant  Registrar/Deputy U-EX2 01 01 00 00
Registrar
Senior Assistant Bursar/Deputy Bursar U-EX2 01 01 00 00
Tertiary Assistant Registrar U-EX1 01 01 00 00
Level
Electronics Engineer U-EX1 01 01 00 00
Scientific Assistant U-AS1 01 01 00 00
Secondary Technical Officer (Audio Visual) U-MT1 01 00 00 01
Level Technical Officer U-MT1 03 01 01 01
(Contract Basis)
Management Assistant U-MNI 08 11 00 1%)
04
Management Assistant (Store U-MNI 01 01 00 00
Keeping)
Management Assistant (Book U-MNI 01 01 00 00
Keeping)
Primary Driver U-PL3 03 02 00 01
Level Electrician U-PL3 01 00 00 01
Lab Attendant U-PL2 01 00 00 01
Works Aide U-PL1 04 03 00 01
Office Machine Operator U-PL1 01 00 00 01
*)Temporary Research Assistant Fixed 02 00 00 02
*)Temporary Instructor Fixed 02 00 02 00

**) Cadre positions of Temporary Research Assistant and Temporary Instructor are not permanently categorized
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7.2 Physical Resources
7.2.1 Information on IT Utilization

Table 1: IT Infrastructure/ Labs/Internet

Number of labs  Number of computers ~ Number of labs
for Students for Students for Education
(Academics)

Number of
computers
for Education
(Academics)

5 192 5 3
Table 2: IT Peripherals (as at 31st December 2021)
No.
Number of Computers for students
Desktop computers 137
Laptops/tabs 55
Number of Computers for Administrative Staff
Desktop computers 4
Laptops/tabs 4
Number of Computers for Academic and Academic Support Staff
Desktop computers 3
Laptops/tabs 1
Number of Computers for Non Academic Staff
Desktop computers 20
Number of servers 11
Number of printers (heavy duty) 2
Number laser printers 15
Number of scanners 1
Other IT equipment - Digital cameras, etc.
Smart Board 6
Web Cameras 3]
Digital camera 1
Number of computer labs 5
Computers in each lab 56,68,55,5,8
Number of student computers for internet accessing 192
Number of staff Computers for internet accessing 24
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8. ADMINISTRATIVE AND FINANCIAL ACHIEVEMENT

8.1.1 Total Income in 2023 and 2024

2024 (Rs.) 2023 (Rs.)
Recurrent Grant - -
Self-Financing Activities 63,363,575 58,973,310
All other Internal Income 66,445,300 109,917,822
Total 129,808,875 168,891,132

8.1.2 Capital Payments in 2023 and 2024

27%

ibrary Books
LKR 219,388
6%,

B Lab & Teaching
Equipment

O Library Books

O Office Equipment

Capital Payments Government Generated Income Total Payments
Grant

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

(Rs) (Rs) (Rs) (Rs) (Rs) (Rs)
Building - - 373,958 373,958
Lab & Teaching - - 2,304,060 624,250 2,304,060 624,250
Equipment
Office Equipment - - 1,056,926 1,679,120 1,056,926 1,679,120
Library Books - - 219,388 142,302 219,388 142,302
Telephone - - - 5,490 5,490

Total - 3,954,332 2,451,162 3,954,332 | 2,451,162
Capital Expenditures - 2024
Postgraduate Institute of Science
Office Equipment
LKR 1,056,926 @ Buildings




8.1.3 Recurrent Expenditure

Programme Expenditure (Rs.)
Personal Emoluments -Academic 22,823,911
Personal Emoluments -Non Academic 33,166,594
Travelling Expenses 162,017
Supplies 5,159,113
Maintenance Expenses 5,838,046
Contractual Services 10,682,188
Other Recurrent Expenses 26,622,255
Exchange Loss 36,039,585
Depreciation 49,024,997
Grand Total 194,518,706
Recurrent Expenditure - 2024
Postgraduate Institute of Science
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8.1.4 Financial Progress
(Expenditure)

Subject 2024
Recurrent 92%
Capital 77%

8.1.5 Financial Performance Analysis

Subject

Exp. Per Student Rs.

Recurrent Expenditure per student (RE)

To be Calculated based on above mentioned
recurrent expenditure

8.1.6 Fund Allocation, Utilization and Management

Allocation (Mn)

Received and Utilized (Mn)

Capital Grants

Recurrent Grants

8.1.7 Research Grants Received (External Funds, 2018-2024)

Year No. of Research Grants Value (Rs.)

2018 4 14,001,100.00
2019 6 10,288,860.00
2020 4 995,000.00
2021 2 341,898.00
2022 - -
2023 02 9,259,199.51
2024 - -
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8.1.8 Details of Research Grant Expenditure (Foreign Funded) Year 2024

Name of The Grantee Title of the project Total Grant Receiptsin | Expenditure in
Amount 2024 2024
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Prof. D Yakandawala Biogeography and | Rs.2,793,776.96 - 319,781.55
Department of Botany Phylogenetics of Genus €192,310
Faculty of Science Piper
Prof BanadaraTM W | Novel Nano-structures for SEK 105,000
Department of Physics | Periormance Rs.3,155,080.80 | 434781 29 1,214,784.29
) enhancement of low-cost
Faculty of Science
solar cells
Prof. D Yakandawala Conservation of Bogner’s USD 20,000 - -
Department of Botany water- Rs.6,538,400.00 1,738,510.69
Faculty of Science trumpet(Cryptocoryn
e bogneri) in Sri Lanka
TOTAL 434,281.29 3,273,076.53
8.1.9 Details of Research Grant Expenditure (Local Funded) Year 2024
Name of The Grantee Title of the project Total Grant | Receiptsin | Expenditure
Amount 2024 in 2024
(Rs.) (Rs.)
None
TOTAL i .
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8.1.10 Details of Research Grant awarded by PGIS Year 2024

Name of the Title of the project Grant Amount Receipts in Expenditure
Grantee 2024 in 2024
Year 1 Year 2 (Rs.) (Rs.)
Dr.PA Dharmapriya | Micro paleontological and 499,750.00 | 620,000.00 208,045.00 229,200.00
Department of Litho-chemo Stratingraphical
Geology, Faculty of | Characteristics of Sedimentary
Science Sequence in the Manner Basin:
probing the Potential of
PG1S/2020/03 hydrocarbpps and Co_nstraints
the Depositional Environments
and Paleo climate during the
Basin Filling
Prof. N\WB Sri Lanka Vein Graphite: 500,000.00 | 500,000.00 - -
Balasooriya Purification and Utilization for
Department of Advanced Application
Geology, Faculty o f
Science
PGIS/2020/18
Dr.TMWJ Bandara, | Optimizing quasi solid-state 485,000.00 | 610,000.00 - 113,476.00
Department of photo electrochemical solar
Physics, Faculty of cells by improving charge
Science transport in electrolytes by
utilizing mixed cations and
PGI1S/2020/05 electrodes by graphite/grapheme
quantum dots.
Dr.BMK Pemasiri Development of efficiency and 495,000.00 | 480,000.00 - 259,445.00
Department of stability of photo
Physics, Faculty of electrochemical solar cell by
Science improving appropriate gel
polymer electrolytes
PGIS/2020/10
Dr.WRP Wijesinghe | Genomic elucidation of 500,000.00 | 500,000.00 64,085.48 79,724.00
Department of antibiotic resistant
Botny, Faculty of Pseudomonas aeruginosa and
Science Acinetobacter baumannii in
livestock waste of Sri Lanka
PGIS/2020/17
Dr. HACK Diversity and distribution of 500,000.00 | 620,000.00 87,079.00 173,500.00
Avriyarathna fungal-borne, pathogens
Department of associated with prevailing
Botany, Faculty of diseases in finger millet and
Science other major cereal crops in Sri
Lanka
PGIS/2020/23
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Prof. Deepthi Biogeography and 500,000.00 | 500,000.00 350,142.19 466,691.94
Yakandawala, Phylogenetics of Genus Piper
Department of
Botny, Faculty of
Science
PGIS/2020/21
Prof.KB Ranawana, | Population Structure and herb 490,000.00 | 490,000.00 - 1,432.50
Department of ivory of sambar deer (Rusa
Zoology, Faculty of | unicolor unicolor) in Horton
Science plains National Park, Sri Lanka
PGI1S/2020/22
Dr.TC Weerarathne, | Insecticide resistant levels and 495,000.00 | 498,000.00 14,970.00 14,970.00
Department of resistant mechanisms in insect
Zoology, Faculty of | pests of stored grains in Sri
Science Lanka
PGIS/2020/12
Prof.WB Multi-Vendor Multi-Buyer 410,000.00 | 410,000.00 - 100,000.00
Daundasekara Integrated Inventory Supply
Department of Chain by incorporating some
Mathematics, realistic factors with a better
Faculty of Science Synchronization: development
of a realistic model and an
PGIS/2020/24 efficient solution technique
Dr.THKR De Silva, | Mathematical Modeling of 500,000.00 | 497,000.00 - 122,700.00
Department of spread of Covid-19 with the
Mathematics, Environmental Transmission of
Faculty of Science Corona virus and the Optimal
PGIS/2020/04
Dr. Amalka Identification and classification 500,000.00 | 500,000.00 - 118,100.00
Pinidiyaarachchi , of brain disease using deep
Department of learning on neuroimaging data
Statistics & Science,
Faculty of Science
PGIS/2020/06
Prof. SHPP URC Research Grant 265 600,000.00 | 600,000.00 - 300,000.00
Karunarathne,

Department of
Zoology, Faculty of
Science
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Dr. PK Perera Epidemiological investigations 620,000.00 | 620,000.00 485,697.70 485,697.70
DTS of ovine and bovine theileriosis
Zoology, Faculty of
Science in Jaffna, Sri Lanka
PGIS/2022/01
Prof. WA Priyanka Epidemiology and vector 424,000.00 | 610,000.00 759,902.42 759,902.42
De Silva, Surveillance of Leishmaniasis
Department of
Zoology in Central Sri Lanka
PGIS/2022/02
Dr. MPCS Identification and 620,000.00 | 620,000.00 - -
DR characterization of mode of
Department of
Biochemistry and inheritance of dwarfism and
@ B (07T type of mutation present in three
PGIS/2022/03 different dwarf rice Sri Lanka
Dr. LK Development and investigation 620,000.00 | 620,000.00 606,000.00 606,000.00
Narangammana, of non-toxic, low-cost,
Department of
Physics thermoelectric materials using
PG1S/2022/04 organic and inorganic
semiconductors
Dr. BS Nanayakkara, | Development of a novel 620,000.00 | 620,000.00 61,411.08 61,411.08
DU O chromatographic stationar
Botany grap y
phase from a natural substance
PGIS/2022/06
Dr. JATC Ariyasena, | Seed dormancy, storage 620,000.00 | 620,000.00 406,000.00 406,000.00
Department of .
. behavior and some morpho-
Chemistry
chemical properties of the
PGIS/2022/07 . . .
dispersal units in species of the
family Dilleniaceae
Prof. KMGG Enhanced photocatalytic 603,530.00 | 616,310.00 34,111.04 34,111.04
Jayasuriya, . . .
Department of degradation of microplastics in
Botany soil using Sri Lankan red earth

PGI1S/2022/08
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Dr. HMKNH Effects of conversion to organic 620,000.00 | 620,000.00 686,377.85 686,377.85
Koralegedara, . o
Department of agriculture on biodiversity
Geology
PGIS/2022/09
Dr. WMKBN All-solid-state dye-sensitized 620,000.00 | 620,000.00 480,000.00 480,000.00
UL solar cells using
Department of
Physics organic/inorganic hole
PGIS/2022/12 conductors, enhanced with

locally found biological

micro/nano-structures
Prof.SH Boyagoda Effects of conversion to | 620,000.00 | 620,000.00 551,367.00 551,367.00
Department of organic  agriculture  on
Zoology & &
Faculty of Science biodiversity
PGIS/2022/10

TOTAL 4,795,188.76 | 6,050,106.53
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9. FAILURES AND JUSTIFICATIONS

The Institute is facing several significant challenges in 2024. Financial limitations, primarily due
to not providing government funding, hindered expected procurement and construction projects,
thereby restricting the development and expansion of academic and research activities. The PGIS
could not introduce demanding MSc programmes due to the prolonged approval process, delaying
the introduction of relevant and contemporary curricula. Additionally, some programmes could
not complete within the expected timeframe due to various reasons. Due to the issuance of

government circulars restricting new recruitments, the expected recruitment were on hold.
10. FUTURE PLANS OF PGIS

FUTURE PLANS OF PGIS

e Development and Installation of a Management Information System (MIS) for:

Registration process
Document handling
Data management

e 2 Purchasing sophisticated major instruments/equipment to develop PGIS as a high-
quality, well- equipped research center.

e Development of a research material storage facility for laboratories to promote good
research practices and research culture.

e Mechanisms to promote degree programs and other PGIS events:
Social media
PGIS YouTube channel
Setting up career guidance and counseling mechanisms.
Awarding PGIS research grants.

e Introducing new M.Sc. programs, conferences, workshops, and awareness programmes
on the latest topics in the world to meet current demands.

e Appropriate strategies to be further implemented to protect and minimize damage to the
environment, adhering to sustainable development policies.

e Attraction and registration of more international students to improve university ranking.
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11. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

11.1 Sustainable Development Programmes Implemented at the Postgraduate Institute of Science in
2024

(Due to financial constraints experienced in past years, resulting in a decrease in student registrations and
consequently a decline in institute income, the scope of expected Sustainable Development Programmes
has been reduced.)

e Improved the garbage segregation process currently being practiced at the PGIS.

Conducted awareness programs regularly on waste management.
® Regularly maintained laboratories to minimize risk hazards.

e Postgraduate students are educate on using the chemical and instrument laboratories to reduce

possible risks and maintain laboratories properly.
e Introduced guidelines for the disposal of hazardous chemicals and biohazardous waste.

e Landscaped the surrounding area of the PGIS and conducted interior renovations and

reorganization.

e Launched the PGIS journal (International Journal on Environmental Issues) and published the
PGIS-RESCON abstracts on Google Scholar.

e Properly maintained chemical storage areas under standard conditions and locations.
e Implemented proper guidelines to minimize paper usage.

e Introducing Management Information System (MIS) to enhance the quality of academic and

administrative work and develop a paperless, effective communication system.
e |dentified effective measures to minimize energy usage
e Provided financial support to the University of Peradeniya for the Convocation.

e Provided financial assistance to the Faculty of Science, University of Peradeniya to improve

academic programmes.
e Provided financial support for research grants and international conferences held at PGIS

® Aligned with policies and guidelines of the University of Peradeniya regarding sustainable

Mmanagement.
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11

12

13

14

Name of the Student

V G A U Samarasinghe

H A B M Hathurusinghe

S Kayanan

S W Meepegamage

RWMGK Kapukotuwa

K Theivendrarajah

N K Weerasekara

B A D S Jayarathne

W K K Chathuranga

P W Sudarshani

WMYR
Bandaranayake

H M B N Jayasinghe,

BHSM Gunawardana,

T A P Perera

Title

INVASIVE ALIEN PLANTS FOR CONTROL OF PESTS IN
AGRICULTURE: FUNGICIDAL AND INSECTICIDAL PROPERTIES
OF SELECTED INVASIVE PLANTS AND MONTMORILLONITE
COMPOSITES OF THEIR PESTICIDAL EXTRACTS

TRANSCRIPTIONS, MICROSCOPY AND MOLECULAR
INTERACTIONS: A MULTIFACETED EXPLORATION OF FLORAL
AND BARK DEVELOPMENT OF CEYLON CINNAMON,
CINNAMOMUM VERUM BLUME (SRI LANKA)

DEVELOPMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INTEGRATED SOLID
WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN (ISWNP) FOR VAVUNIYA DISTRICT

EFFECT OF BIOFILM BIOFERTILIZER ON SOIL NUTRIENTS,
MICROBES, ENDOPHYTES AND PADDY YIELDS

EFFECT OF NATURAL AND ANTHROPOGENIC ACTIVITIES ON
BIOTIC AND ABIOTIC FACTORS OF RAWAN-OYA TRIBUTARY OF
MAHAWELI RIVER IN KANDY DISTRICT, SRI LANKA

REMOVAL OF PHOSPHATE FROM CATTLE FARM EFFLUENT AND
PRODUCE A SUSTAINABLE SOURCE OF PHOSPHATE FERTILIZER

DEVOLOPMENT INDUCED CATCHMENT DEGRADATION AND
DISASTER CHAIN A CASE STUDY FROM BADULLA OYA BASIN
SRI LANKA

SUCCESS AND WEAKNESS OF THE DISASTER
RESETTLMENT IN SRI LANKA

ARIFICIAL NEURAL NETWORK BASED LANDUSE MODELLING

FOR PREDICTING CITY FORMATIONS, A CASE OF KANDY SRI
LANKA

SELECTION OF SUITABLE LANDS FOR FOREST PLANTATION
USING GIS CASE STUDY FROM HAMBANTHOTA

INDUCED

SAND MINING IN THE POTAWA OYA STREAM BED AT
GALEWELA IN MATALE DISTRIC AND ITS EFFECTS ON THE
LOCAL ENVIRONMENT

REMOVAL OF WATER HARDNESS USING STRAW ASH AND
MONTMORILLONITE CLAY
CONSERVATION STATUS AND AN ASSESSMENT OF THE CROP

DAMAGE CAUSED BY THE HOG DEAR (AXIS PORCINUS) IN
GALLE DISTRICT, SRI LANKA

SURVEILLANCE OF NOTIFIABLE COMMUNICABLE DISEASES
FOOD SANITATION AND WATER QUALITY AT MEDICAL OFFICER
OF HEALTH AREAS OF GAMPAHA DISTRICT,SRI LANKA

58

11.2 Sustainability Development Related Research Conducted During 2024 by PGIS
Students

Supervisor (s)

Prof. B M R Bandara
Dr. N C Bandara

Dr. J W Damunupola
Prof. D A S Wijesundara

Dr PCG Bandaranayake

Prof. DKNG
Pushpakumara

Prof. B F A Basnayake

Prof. PRG Seneviratne
Prof. RGSC Rajapakse

Dr. K C Weerakoon
Prof. R S Rajakaruna
Dr. C L Abayasekara

Prof. Mcm Igbal
Prof. Hmdn Priyantha
Prof. K W Nandalal

Dr. J Gunathilake

Dr. Jagath Gunathilake

Dr. J Gunathilake
Mr. Malika Gunawardena

Prof. N W B Balasooriya
Dr.HA
Dharmagunawardena
Ms. | Surangi

Prof. K B Ranawana

Dr. Charitha Jayasinghe



12. FINANCIAL STATEMENT - 2024



Postgraduate Institute of Science
University of Peradeniya

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
D024

Postgraduate Institute of Science
University of Peradeniya

P.O. Box 25

Peradeniya



POSTGRADUATE INSTITUTE OF SCIENCE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31°" DECEMBER 2024

Note As at 31/12/2024  As at 31/12/2023
Current assets
Cash & cash equivalents 1 17,129,780 17,694,223
Investments 2 705,761,026 681,161,373
Receivables & deposit 3 35,730,531 78,841,617
Loans & advances to staff 4 1,258,606 1,195,193
Inventories 5 3,685,431 5,012,586
Total current assets 763,565,374 783,904,992
Non current assets
Loans & advances to staff 4 2,960,378 3,089,714
Financial misappropriation - (2008-2016) 50,119,123 50,119,123
Intangible assets 6 1,137,746 755,232
Property, plant & equipment 7 313,048,687 358,119,353
Total non current assets 367,265,934 412,083,422
Total assets 1,130,831,308 1,195,988,414
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accrued expenses 8 22,341,630 24,639,509
Other payables 9 7,235,350 7,715,257
Refundable deposits 10 6,796,509 6,484,512
Deferred income 11,639,151 9,980,892
Provisions 11 1,455,250 625,250
Total current liabilities 49,467,889 49,445,420
Non current liabilities
Provision for gratuity 12 10,616,224 7,791,951
Funds 13 11,185,518 9,669,126
Refundable deposits 10 1,970,500 2,353,500
Total non current liabilities 23,772,242 19,814,577
TOTAL LIABILITIES 73,240,131 69,259,997
NET ASSETS 1,057,591,177 1,126,728,417
EQUITY
General reserves 921,549,015 967,212,281
Restricted funds 14 5,514,571 9,658,424
Revaluation reserve 130,527,591 149,857,712
TOTAL EQUITY 1,057,591,177 1,126,728,417

These financial statements are in compliance with the requirements of the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978
and other statutory provisions.
% Senior Assistant Registrar
""""" Postgraduate Institute of Science
Mrs.A.A.S.PuijwataishahPeradeniya
i Senior AssisPateRepi¥frarti Lanka.
eracentya—5riLar

verauenlyd, = of e . " "
The Board of Management is responsible for the ‘preparation and presentation of these financial statements
signed for and pn behalf of the Board of Management

......... S Deputy Bursar

MrB.G< kody Postgraduate Institute of Science
I linivars: ~F e 3

Deputy Bursar/ J..,,._r_.._:y ar s

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 6t0 13 form an integral part'of these Financial Statements.
25 February 2025



POSTGRADUATE INSTITUTE OF SCIENCE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°* DECEMBER 2024

Note 2024 2023

Revenue Rs. Rs.
Current
Revenue from non Exchange Transaction-Current
Government grant (Recurrent ) .
Research grant income 3,625,077 4,712,140
Total Revenue from non Exchange Transaction-Current 3,625,077 4.712,140
Revene from Exchange Transaction-Current
Interest income 15 58,247,533 99,402,843
Internal Generated Income 16 63,363,575 58,973,310
Other Income 16.1 4,572,690 5,802,839
Exchange gain
Total Revene from Exchange Transaction-Current 126,183,798 164,178,992
Total Revene -Current 129,808,875 168,891,132
Capital
Revenue from non Exchange Transaction-Capital . -
Total Revenue 129,808,875 168,891,132
Expenses
Current
Personal emoluments 17 60,990,505 54,115,023
Travelling 18 162,017 128,280
Supplies & consumables 19 5,159,113 4,440,122
Maintenance 20 5,838,046 4,313,088
Contractual services 21 10,682,188 12,568,583
Other expenses 22 26,622,255 18,552,163
Exchange loss 36,039,585 41,494,616
Total Expense(Non Capital ) 145,493,709 135,611,875
Capital
Depreciation 23 49,024,997 48,404,715
Amortization of intangible assets 283,556 342,504
Total Expense-Non Capital 49,308,553 48,747,220
Current surplus / deficit for the year (15,684,834) 33,279,257
Capital surplus / deficit for the year (49,308,553) (48,747,220)

(64,993,387) (15,467,962)




POSTGRADUATE INSTITUTE OF SCIENCE

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" DECEMBER 2024

2024 2023
Cash flows from operating activities
Surplus from ordinary activities (64,993,387) (15,467,962)
Non - cash movements
Depreciation & amortization 49,308,553 48,747,220
Interest income (58,247,533) (99,402,843)
Increase / decrease in provision for audit fees 700,000 80,750
Increase / decrease in provision for gratuity 2,824,273 587,883
Increase / decrease in provision for security charges 130,000 -
Increase / decrease in provision for visiting lecture fees - (11,467,691)
LosseswWrite -offs 3,875,000 -
Operating surplus before the working capital changes (66,403,094) (76,922,643)
Increase / decrease receivables (127,549) 4,025,358
Increase / decrease loans & advances 65,923 (63,772)
Increase / decrease inventories 1,327,156 (475,120)
Increase / decrease accrued expenses (2,297,879) 7,918,657
Increase / decrease payables 172,075 (3,434,619)
Increase / decrease refundable deposits (71,003) (206,421)
Increase / decrease deferred income 1,658,259 4,108,946
Net cash flow from operating activities (65,676,112) (65,049,614)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant & equipment (3,954,331) (2,451,162)
Purchase of intangible assets (666,070) -
Investment in fixed deposits (877,135,491) (476,182,524)
Withdrawal of fixed deposits 852,535,837 468,920,696
Interest income 97,613,058 74,296,993
Net cash flow from investing activities 68,393,003 64,584,003
Cash flows from financing activities
Scholarship fund 95,462 (183,718)
Receipts for research grants 434,281 9,898,763
Payments for research grants (3,811,076) (8,903,225)
Net cash flows from financing activities (3,281,333) 811,819
Increase / decrease in cash & cash equivalents (564,443) 346,208
Cash & cash equivalent at the beginning of the year 17,694,223 17,348,015
Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the year 17,129,780 17,694,223




POSTGRADUATE INSTITUTE OF SCIENCE

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON BUDGET & ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" DECEMBER 2024

2024 Actual 2024 Budget
Note Rs. Rs.

Revenue
Government grant (recurrent ) - -
Programme fees 54,314,979 59,000,000
Registration fees 2,564,900 3,000,000
Examination fees 1,748,546 2,300,000
Miscellaneous income 16.1 4,572,690 2,172,000
Research congress income 776,500 600,000
Medical fees 129,250 63,000
Vehicle hiring charges 1,146,400 900,000
Library tickets 475,500 596,000
Supervision fees 1,330,000 1,000,000
Interest income 15 58,247,533 56,175,000
Bench fees 877,500 1,000,000
Research grant income 3,625,077 -

129,808,875 126,806,000
Expenses
Personal emoluments 17 60,990,505 72,440,000
Travelling 18 162,017 1,100,000
Supplies & consumables used 19 5,159,113 8,780,000
Maintenance 20 5,838,046 6,310,000
Contractual services 21 10,682,188 13,023,000
Other expenses 22 26,622,255 25,153,000
Depreciation & Amortization of Intangible Ass 23 & 6 49,308,553 -
Exchange Loss 36,039,585 =

194,802,262 126,806,000
Net surplus/deficit for the year (64,993,387) -




POSTGRADUATE INSTITUTE OF SCIENCE

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSET/EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" DECEMBER 2024

Capital grant | Revaluation | Retained earnings Total
reserve
Balance as at 01.01.2024 - 149,857,712 967,212,281 1,117,069,993
surplus/ deficit for the period - - (64,993,387) (64,993,387)
Transfer to general reserve - (19,330,120) 19,330,120 -
remaining balance of revaluation
reserve as at 01.01.2024)
Balance as at 31 December 2024 - 130,527,591 921,549,015 1,052,076,606




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General information

1.1 Reporting entity

The Postgraduate Institute of Science (PGIS) was established in 1996 by an ordinance made by the

University Grants Commission under section 18 with section 24 of the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978.

1.2 Principal activities and nature of operations

The purpose of the PGIS is providing, promoting and developing higher education in science. The

principle objective of the Institute is to provide postgraduate instructions and training and facilitate

research in different disciplines of science.

1.3 Going concern

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Board of Management of the

Institute has assessed the ability to continue as a going concern and has a reasonable expectation that the

Institute has adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future. The Board of

Management does not foresee a need for liquidation or cessation of operations, taking into account all

available information about the future. Therefore, the Institute continues to adopt the going concern basis

in preparing the financial statements.

1.4 Reporting period

The financial period of the Institute represents a twelve-month period from 1% January 2024 to 31% December 2024.

1.5 Basis of preparation of financial statements

1.5.1

1.5.2

1.5.3

Statement of compliance

The Financial Statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Financial
Performance, Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statement, Notes to the financial

statements and Statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.

The Financial Statements of the PGIS are prepared in conformity with Sri Lanka Public Sector
Accounting Standards (SLPSAS). All accounting policies adopted by the PGIS are applied
consistently with those of the previous year. Change in accounting policies have been disclosed

separately.

Basis of measurement

The Financial Statements of PGIS have been prepared on accrual basis and under the historical cost

convention except where appropriate disclosures are made under relevant notes.

Comparative information

Comparative information including quantitative, narrative and descriptive information is disclosed
in respect of the previous period for all amounts reported in the financial statements, in order to

enhance the understanding of the financial statements of the current period and to improve
-6-



comparability. Where necessary, comparative figures have been re-arranged to conform to the

current year’s presentation.

1.5.4 Approval of financial statements
The Financial Statements of the PGIS were authorized for issue by the Board of Management of the
Institute at its 184™ meeting held on 14" February 2025.

1.5.5 Materiality and aggregation
Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the financial statements. Items of a
dissimilar nature or function are presented separately, unless they are immaterial.

1.5.6 Functional and presentation currency

The Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees, which is the Institute’s functional and
presentation currency. All financial information presented in Sri Lankan Rupees have been rounded

to the nearest thousand, unless stated otherwise.

1.5.7 Offsetting

Assets & liabilities and income and expense accounts have not been offset unless required by or
permitted by SLPSAS.

1.6 Significant accounting estimates and judgements

2.

The preparation and presentation of financial statements, in conformity with SLPSAS, requires
Management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Information about
significant areas of estimates, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have

the most significant effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is as follows.

Any changes in accounting estimates and critical judgements are disclosed in the relevant notes to the

financial statements.

Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1 Assets and the basis of their valuation

2.1.1 Property, plant & equipment (PPE)

Lands, Buildings, Laboratory and Teaching Equipment, Furniture & Fittings, Library Books and
Periodicals, Motor Vehicles, and Other Assets acquired out of government grants, internally

generated funds, research grants and donations are shown under PPE.



a) Basis of recognition and measurement
PPE are recognized, if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the entity and the cost of the items can be measured reliably. PPE are recorded at cost/revaluation
less accumulated depreciation. The cost of PPE is the cost of purchase or construction together with

any incidental capital expenses there on.

An item of PPE that qualifies for recognition as an asset is initially measured at its cost. Cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and subsequent costs.
The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials, direct labour, any other costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use, the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located. Purchased
software which is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as part of that
equipment. The cost of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises its purchase or construction cost

and any directly attributable cost of bringing the assets working condition for its intended use.

The Institute adopts the revaluation model for the entire class of PPE after initial recognition at cost.
If the carrying amount of a class of assets is increased as a result of a revaluation, the increase has

been directly credited to revaluation surplus.

All buildings and motor vehicles belonging to the Institute were revalued as at 01* January 2022 by
the Department of Valuation and other categories of assets except Laboratory and Teaching
Equipment and Office Equipment were re-valued by internally appointed committees and respective
adjustments resulting from the above revaluations have been made in the financial statements of the
Institute in accordance with the SLPSAS 07. The categories of Laboratory & Teaching Equipment
and Office Equipment were revalued by internally appointed committees as at 01.01.2023 and the

revaluation gain has been recognized through the statement of changes in equity.

b) Subsequent expenditure on PPE
Expenditure incurred on tangible fixed assets are charged to the Statement of Financial Performance
in the period it is incurred, unless it meets one or the following criteria, in which case it is

capitalized and depreciated on the relevant basis.

» Fair value of fixed assets has subsequently increased.

= Capacity of the asset increases.

=  Sustainable improvement in the quality of output or reduction in operating cost.

=  Significant extension of the asset useful lifetime beyond that confirmed by repair and

maintenance.



¢) Depreciation

Depreciation is recognized in the Statement of Financial Performance on a Straight-Line method
over the estimated useful life time of PPE from the date that they were made available for use.

Lands are not depreciated.

The estimated useful life periods of each class of assets are as follows:

Description Estimated Useful Life Time
Laboratory and Teaching equipment 5 Years
Motor Vehicles 5 Years
Library Books and Periodicals 5 Years
Telephone 10 Years
Other Equipment 5 Years
Buildings 20 Years
Sport Goods ; 5 Years

d) Land

2.1.2

2.1.3

The value of the lands on which the buildings of the PGIS constructed has not been included in the
financial statements of the Institute as the ownership has not been transferred to the PGIS. Hence
the value of the land has not been taken in to account. However, it is to be noted that PGIS is
attached to the University of Peradeniya (PGIS Ordinance No 01 of 1996 dated 12 February 1996).

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recognized only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that
the expected future economic benefits are attributable to it will flow to the Institute. The cost of the
Blue Lotus 360 Accounting software has been amortized over 5 years period commencing from
year 2019. Amortization of payroll system and the pixdamapper Educational classroom software
has been commenced from 2021 for five years keeping in line with the SLPSAS 19 (Intangible
Assets).

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost is determined on a first
in first out basis and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to

their existing condition and location.

2.1.4 Receivables

Receivables are stated at the amounts estimated to be realized.

2.1.5 Cash & cash equivalents

Cash & cash equivalents comprise cash & savings deposits at bank. The receipts & payments of the
foreign currency of the RFC 2233593 US § account, maintaining at the Bank of Ceylon, Peradeniya
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is converted in to local currency at the exchange rate existing on the dates of receipts and payments.
Exchange gain/loss has been calculated by using the Central Bank year end exchange rate and

recognized through the statement of financial performance.

2.1.6 Financial misappropriation amount of Rs 50,338,160.18

As per the special investigation audit report issued by Auditor General’s Department on
26/07/2018, the Auditor General’s Department has identified a capital loss incurred due to
obtaining money anomalously by cancelling fixed deposits by the former Senior Assistant Bursar,
Mr. WMM.SM Iddawala as Rs 50,338,160.18 (Excluding re-deposited amount of Rs
5,000,000.00). Further, it was identified in their report that interest income of Rs 24,346,723 has
also been lost due to fraudulently withdrawn fixed deposit by Mr. W.M.M.S.M Iddawala from
14/03/2008 to 30/11/2017. Action has already been taken to recover an amount of Rs. 219,037.00
from the gratuity amount payable amount to Mr. W.M.M.S.M Iddawala and action is being taken to
recover the balance amount lying to the credit of University Provident Fund of Mr. W.M.M.S.M

Iddawala.

Criminal case is going on at Kandy Magistrate Court under the Case No: MC/B/43167/17. Further,
Attorney General’s Department has lodged a civil case (No DC/1196/20) against Mr. W.M.M.S.M
Iddawala to recover the losses. Lawyers are of the view that there is a high possibility of recovering
the financial losses. Therefore financial misappropriation amount of Rs. 50,338,160.00 has been

categorized under non-current assets.

2.1.7 Liabilities & provisions

All known liabilities as at the balance sheet date are included in the financial statements and
adequate provisions have been made for liabilities which time and the amounts are uncertain.
Liabilities payable after one year from the balance sheet date are treated as non-current liabilities in

the statement of financial position.

2.1.8 Provision for gratuity

The provision for gratuity as at 31% December 2024 has been calculated by using Actuarial
Valuation method prescribed under SLPSAS 19 (Employee Benefits). Followings disclosures are

made in the accounts keeping in line with the requirements of the standard.

Actuarial Valuation of Gratuity Liabilities as at 31 December 2024

Rs.
Change in the Present Value of The Defined Benefit Obligation (PV-DBO)
Provision for PV-DBO as at 01 January 2024 = 7,791,951
Interest Cost for the period = 1,012,954
Current Service Cost for the period = 685,535
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on PV-DBO = 1,125,784
Provision for PV-DBO as at 31 December 2024 = 10,616,224
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AMOUNTS RECOGNIZED IN THE BALANCE SHEET AND INCOME STATEMENT

Liability recognized in the balance sheet

Provision for Gratuity as at 31 December 2024 = 10,616,224
Unrecognized actuarial Gains/(Losses) as at 31 December 2024 = -
Liability recognized in the balance sheet as at 31 December 2024 = 10,616,224

Expenses recognized in the income statement

Interest Cost = 1,012,954
Current Service Cost = 685,535
Expenses recognized in the Income Statement = 1,698,489

Expenses recognized in other comprehensive income statement

Net Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized immediately = 1,125,784
Expenses recognized in other comprehensive income statement = 1,125,784

Movements in_the Nei Liability Recognized in the balance sheet

Opening Net Liability as at 01 January 2024 = 7,791,951
Expenses recognized in the Income Statement = 1,698,489
Expenses recognized in other comprehensive income statement = 1,125,784
Gratuity paid/payable for those who left during the period = -

Closing Net Liability as at 31 December 2024 = 10,616,224

2.1.9 University Provident Fund (UPF) & University Pension Fund

The PGIS and employees contribute 15% and 10% respectively, on the salary of each employee to
the University provident fund in line with the respective statutes and legislations in Sri Lanka and
University Act. The University also contributes 8% to the University Pension Fund in respect of

pensionable employees in which case the contribution to the UPF from the PGIS is 7%.

2.1.10 Employees’ Trust Fund (ETF)

The PGIS contributes 3% on the salary of each employee to the Employees Trust Fund.

2.1.11 Accounting for grants

Grants that compensate the PGIS for expenses incurred are recognized as revenue in the income
statement in the same period in which the expenses are recognized. Grant that compensate the cost
of assets are recognized in the income statement on a systematic basis over the useful life of the
related asset as per the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard 20. (LKAS 20). The PGIS adopts income
approach of the standard when identifying capital grants.

Where grants /donations are received for use in an identified project or activity, such funds are held
in a restricted fund account and transferred to the statement of financial performance to match with
expenses incurred in respect of that identified project. Unutilized funds are held in their respective
grant accounts and included under restricted funds in the statement of financial position until such

time they are utilized for the intended purposes.

2.1.12 Research and scholarships fund & workshop & event fund

Research and development fund has been established by transferring dormant research grant

balances and workshop & event fund has been established by transferring dormant workshops and
S0 -



short courses balances with the approval of the Finance Committee and the Board of Management

of the Institute to be used for the defined purposes approved by the Board of Management.

3. Statement of financial performance
3.1 Recognition of revenue in the statement of financial performance

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by the
PGIS during the year and represents an increase in net assets/equity. The PGIS recognizes revenue
following the established criteria of SLPSAS 10 (Revenue from Exchange Transactions) and SPSAS 11
(Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions).

A) Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Non-exchange transactions are those where the PGIS receives value from another entity (e.g. cash or
other assets) without giving approximately equal value in exchange. Inflows of resources from non-
exchange transactions, other than services in-kind, that meet the definition of an asset are recognized

as an asset only when;

- It is probable that the PGIS will receive an inflow of economic benefits or service potential

- The fair value can be measured reliably

Inflows of resources from non-exchange transactions that are recognized as assets are recognized as

non- exchange revenue, to the extent that a liability is not recognized in respect to the same inflow.

The following are the specific recognition criteria related to the non-exchange transactions of the

PGIS.

a) Government grant

No recurrent or capital grant has been received by the PGIS during the year under review from the
General Treasury.

b) Gifts, donations and goods received in-kind

Gifts, donations are voluntary transfers of assets including cash or other monetary assets and
goods in-kind that the Institute receives which are free from stipulations. Gifts and donations and
goods in-kind received are recognized as non-exchange revenue when it is probable that the future
economic benefits or service potential will flow to the Institute and the fair value of the assets can
be measured reliably.
B) Revenue from Exchange Transactions
The following are the specific recognition criteria related to the exchange transactions of the PGIS.

a) Interest income

Interest income is recognized on accrual basis.
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b) Programme fees income

Programme fees income is identified under accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, programme
fees which are applicable to the current period are only identified as programme fees income for
the reporting period. Adjustments are made in the accounts for unpaid programme fees
(Receivables) and the excess programme fees paid are recognized as deferred income for the year
ended 31" December 2024.

¢) Recurrent grants
Revenue from recurrent grants is recognized in the period in which grant is received.
d) Research grants income & expenditure

When funds are received to be used in an identified project or activity, such funds are held in a
restricted fund account and transferred to the Statement of Financial Performance to match with
the expenses incurred in respect to that identified project or activity. Unutilized funds are held in
their respective fund accounts and are included in the Statement of Financial Position until such

time they are used for the intended projects or activities.
e) Other income
Other income are recognized on accrual basis.
f) Income from workshops, short courses, seminars ete
The administrative charge from Workshops, Short courses and Seminars are classified under the
miscellaneous income.

3.2 Recognition of expenditure in the statement of financial performance

Expenditure are recognized on accrual basis and are charged to the relevant expenditure heads in

ascertaining the income over expenditure for the year.

4. Cash flow statement

The cash flow statement has been prepared using the “Indirect Method” in accordance with the SLPSAS 2
where the gross cash receipts and gross cash payments of operating activities, financing activities and
investing activities have been recognized. Cash & cash equivalents are comprised of cash & bank

balances and short-term deposits.
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2024 2023
Cash & cash equivalents Note Rs. Rs.
1
Cash at bank (A/C 0001273990) 530,754 2,875,967
Cash at bank (A/C 0001274002) 1,187,590 518,491
Cash at bank (A/C 057100191338034) 731,553 171,443
Cash at bank (A/C 81041788) 13,128,371 1,307,153
Savings A/CUS $ 2233593 530,026 7,868,108
Saving A/C- BOC-84023069 267,434 4,218,228
Saving A/C- 057-2-001-5-0031385 754,051 734,833
17,129,780 17,694,223
Investments 2
Fixed deposits at BOC 311,427,761 111,651,287
Fixed deposits at NSB 13,200,310 184,363,430
Fixed deposits in US $ at BOC 338,600,727 358,769,520
Fixed deposits at People's Bank 28,608,269 26,377,137
Fixed deposits at SMIB 13,923,958 -
705,761,026 681,161,373
Receivables & deposits 3
Receivable-programme fees 26,267,550 30,240,000
Accrued interest 8,209,067 47,572,702
Vehicle hiring charges 268,167 71,808
Prepayments 754,534 705,895
Receivable - deposits - -
Sundry debtors 66,213 66,213
Deposits for services 150,000 150,000
Miscellaneous Advance 15,000 35,000
35,730,531 78,841,617
2024 2023
Note Rs. Rs.
Loans & advances to staff 4
Current Non current Total Total
Distress loan 953,836 2,584,444 3,538,280 3,646,702
Computer loan 63,000 115,000 178,000 203,000
Vehicle loan 229,530 231,354 460,884 403,375
Staff loan 12,240 29,580 41,820 31,830
1,258,606 2,960,378 4,218,984 4,284,907
Inventories 5
Stationery 2,700,240 4,019,380
Chemicals 985,191 993,206
3,685,431 5,012,586
Intangible assets 6
Computer Software
Cost:
Opening balance 1,712.522 1,712,522
Additions 666,070 -
Balance as at end of 2,378,592 1,712,522
Accumulated amortization
Opening balance 957,290 614,786
Amortization charge 283,556 342,504
Balance as at end of 1,240,846 957,290
Net book value 1,137,746 755,232

-14 -




Property,plant & equipment

(Note 7)

Rs.
Buildings Telephone Laboratory & Library Motor Office Sport Total
teaching equip. books vehicle equipment goods
Cost
Opening balance as at 1% January 2024 240,350,000 158,490 148,452,450 5,171,072 17,000,000 11,802,770 34,800 422,969,582
Adjustments/disposals/donation -
During the year additions 373,958 - 2,304,060 219,388 1,056,926 - 3,954,331
Closing Balance as at 31" Dec. 2024 240,723,958 158,490 150,756,510 5,390,460 17,000,000 12,859,696 34,800 426,923,913
Less: Depreciation
Opening balance as at 1% January 2024 24,035,000 30,839 29,683,537 2,011,742 6,800,000 2,271,711 17,400 64,850,229
Adjustments/disposals/donation =
During the year additions 12,017,500 15,849 30,016,327 1,073,884 3,400,000 2,492,736 8,700 49,024,997
Accumulated depreciation 36,052,500 46,688 59,699,864 3,085,626 10,200,000 4,764,447 26,100 113,875,226
as at 31" December 2024
Net book value as at 204,671,458 111,802 91,056,646 2,304,833 6,800,000 8,095,249 8,700 313,048,687

317 December 2024
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Notes 2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
Accrued expenses 8
Accrued expenses - recurrent 22,285,830 24,497,207
Accrued expenses - capital 55,800 142,302
22,341,630 24,639,509
Payables 9
Stamp duty payables 13,050 11,025
Paye tax payables 1,150,418 356,955
Withholding tax 10,750 -
Other payables-boards of study 9.1 2,745,705 1,824,438
Other payables-short courses & workshops 9.2 1,889,502 4,158,711
Security bonds 80,495 18,698
Retention Money 1,345,430 1,345,430
7,235,350 7,715,257
Other payable-boards of study 9.1
Board of study in chemical sciences 74,700 74,700
Board of study in earth sciences 2,288,840 1,484,933
Board of study in enviromental sciences 1,625 1,625
Board of study in physics 11,740 11,740
Board of study in plant sciences 121,706 4,346
Board of study in science education 99,537 99,537
Board of study in zoological sciences 48,957 48,957
Board of study in biomedical sciences 98,600 98,600
2,745,705 1,824,438
Other Payables-short courses,workshops & oth: 9.2
Advance certificate course in org.chemistry 220,822 560,222
ICMME-2021 - 19,995
Consultancy project-GSMB - 439,840
125th S/C on GIS & its application - 340,742
W/S on neuro science - 2022 - 39,585
Consultancy project-Mahaweli Authority - 59,060
128th S/C GIS & application - 803,907
Japanese Green Youth Project 934,404 602,275
Advance certificate course in Biomedical Science 169,075 169,075
Pathegen Genomics Symposium-2023 43,800 61,000
S/C in Bioinformatics 304,135 997,000
W/S on PCPREE - 66,010
125th S/C on GIS & its application 217,265 -
1,889,502 4,158,711

.




2024 2023
Notes Rs. Rs.
10
Deposits Current Non current Total
Library deposits 3,596,000 1,042,000 4,638,000 4,688,000
Science deposits 3,007,500 928,500 3,936,000 3,954,000
Other deposits 193,009 . 193,009 196,012
6,796,509 1,970,500 8,767,009 8,838,012
Provisions 11
Provision for audit fees 1,325,250 625,250
Provision for security 130,000 -
1,455,250 625,250
12
Retiring gratuity
Balance as at 1% January 7,791,951 7,204,069
Charge for the year 12.1 2,824,273 1,893,695
10,616,224 9,097,763
Payvments made during the year - (1,305,812)
Balance as at end of December 10,616,224 7,791,951
Charge for the Year 12.1
Past service cost - 119,538
Interest cost 1,012,954 1,296,732
Current service cost 685,535 477 424
‘et actuarial (gain)/loss recognised immediately 1,125,784 =
Expenses recognized in the income statetment 2,824,273 1,893,695
Funds 13
Scholarship fund-Prof. Amarasinghe 1,638,369 1,542,907
Research & scholarship funds 2,395,265 1,188,367
Workshop & event fund 7,151,884 6,937,852
11,185,518 9,669,126
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Restricted funds Note 2024 2023
G. No. Grantee Name Grant Name 14 Rs. Rs.
6242 Prof. HM.T.G.A Pitawala Value addition to SL laterites - 50,140
5202 Prof: D Yakandawala AustriaP 33148 B 319,782 639,563
6293 DrTMW] Bandara PGIS/2020/05 7 113,476
5224  Dr.H.A.CKAriyarathne PGIS/2020/23 - 86,421
5295  Dr.B.M.K.Pemasiri PGIS/2020/10 - 259,445
5206 DRT.ILKR DeSilva PGIS/2020/04 ; 122,700
2207 DRW.RP.Wijesinghe PGIS/2020/17 . 15,639
2208 Prof.U.A ] Pinidiyaarchchi PGIS/2020/06 . 118,100
62 Dr.N.W.B.Balasuriya PGIS/2020/18 394,900 394,900
630 Prof.D.M.D.Yakandawala PGIS/2020/21 = 116,550
5202 DrP.L Dharmapriya PGIS/2020/03 » 21,155
6303 Prof.W.B.Daundasekara PGIS/2020/24 & 100,000
5304 Prof.K.B.Ranawana PGIS/2020/22 5 1,433
5306 Prof SH.P.P.Karunarame  URCgrant-280 - 300,000
6313 Prof.Bandara Swedish Research Council - 780,503
=317 Prof.D.M.D.Yakandawala Conservation of Water Trumpet 4,799,889 6,538,400
5,514,571 9,658,424
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2024 2023
Notes Rs. Rs.

nterest income 15
Fixed deposit interest 57,962,495 99,151,016
RFC interest 18,928 68,426
=21t loan interest 192,793 177,401
savings interest 73,318 6,000

58,247,533 99,402,843
senerated Income 16
Programme fees 54,314,979 51,265,751
Fegistration fees 2,564,900 2,230,500
“wamination fees 1,748,546 1,819,450
Zesearch congress income 776,500 451,739
Medical fees 129,250 37,550
services & facilities fees - 20,000
“ehicle hiring charges 1,146,400 975,820
Library tickets 475,500 372,000
Supervision fees 1,330,000 787,500
Bench fees 877,500 1,013,000

63,363,575 58,973,310
“Miscellaneous income 16.1
Printing income 52,188 78,868
A dministration charges 672,990 614,440
Certificate fees 1,006,800 1,136,990
Fooftop reservation income 30,000 107,000
Application processing fees 975,000 724,000
*RD analysis income 22,500 334,500
*REF analysis income 565,200 509,500
Other income 1,202,797 2,297,542
Degree verification income 45,215

4,572,690 5,802,839 |
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Personal emoluments 2,024 2,023

Personal emoluments (Academic) 17
salaries and wages 2,651,663 3,806,825
University provident fund 959,206 794,893
“cademic EPF 74,126 80,178
Employee Trust Fund 210,223 179,575
~cademic allowance 3,784,944 4,189,357
Other allowances 297,699 259,836
A dditional allowance - 20% 348,060 348,060
Cost of living 575,812 272,811
Research allowance 609,105 609,105
“cademic monthly allowance 116,220 118,750
Visiting lecture fees 13,196,854 9,569,147
22,823,911 20,228,538

Personal emoluments (non academic) 17
szlaries and wages 13,014,767 13,217,420
University Provident Fund 1,700,954 1,506,702
Pension fund 1,788,493 1,588,121
Employee Trust Fund 714,217 625,989
Orvertime 1,603,626 1,776,495
Holiday payments 253,294 198,338
Jther allowances 93,335 91,981
\Monthly Compensation Allowance - MCA 5,646,214 5,518,215
Gratuity 2,824,273 1,893,695
Research allowance 563,337 363,888
Additional allowance - 20% 2,509,428 2,452,540
Cost of living 5,146,242 2,223,899
\Monthly allowance 1,419,839 1,425,576
EPF 65,309 28,095
Staff benefits 129,264 140,281
37,472,594 33,051,234

Personal Emoluments (Casual) 17
Casual Wages 694,000 383,000
694,000 383,000
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2024 2023
Notes Rs. Rs.
Travelling and subsistence 18
Iravelling expenses (domestic) 162,017 128,280
162,017 128,280
Supplies 19
Stationery & office requisites 2,471,018 1,667,408
Fuel & lubricants 1,588,172 1,684,675
\Mechanical & electrical 223,548 538,807
C“hemicals & glassware 876,374 549,2?_3_
5,159,113 4,440,122
Maintenance 20
Vehicles 1,633,687 1,398,796
Plant, machinery & equipment 3,685,599 2,721,877
Suildings & structure 518,760 192,415
5,838,046 4,313,088
“ontractual services 21
lelecommunications 5,229,171 6,849,440
Postal charges 333,880 363,510
Electricity 2,042,631 2,341,536
security services 1,321,645 1,092,141
ater charges 154,175 164,693
_leaning services 1,600,686 1,757,264
10,682,188 12,568,583
Other recurrent expenditure 22
“rinting and advertising 471,871 617,368
Ludit fees 700,000 650,000
~pecial services, councils & commitees 1,682,452 1,096,026
=pecial services, professional & others 116,445 18,995
" orkshops & seminars 486,370 280,508
~iaif development - 10,000
Holiday warrants 68,175 91,825
Sank charges 392,319 326,705
“wards & indemnities 1,070,000 400,000
“xamination expenses 4,133,002 2,856,740
_ther expenses 1,074,664 735,055
~:atf welfare 452,859 439,825
~tudent welfare 25,000
L =2al & documentation charges 1,178,798 852,270
_onvocation 500,000 -
~cademic research - 311,800
PCIS research congress 1,562,471 804,171
=zamp duty expense 18,375 20,150
_niversity insurance scheme 194,400 135,000
Hesearch grant expenditure 8,620,055 8,903,225
[ osses & write-off 3,875,000 a0
26,622,255 18,552,163
Depreciation 23
Buildings 12,017,500 12,017,500
Telephone 15,849 15,539
Lab & teaching equipment 30,016,327 29,683,537
Zooks and periodicals 1,073,884 1,005,988
Difice equipment 2,492,736 2,271,711
“Motor vehicles 3,400,000 3,400,000
=ports goods 8,700 10,440
49,024,997 48,404,715
158,479,121 142,521,974
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POSTGRADUATE INSTITUTE OF SCIENCE

TRIAL BALANCE AS AT 31°" DECEMBER 2024

%LCCSLI)J];\TT ACCOUNT NAME DR AMOUNT (RS.) | CR AMOUNT (RS.)
10003 CASH BOOK A/C057100191338034 731,553
0002 CASH BOOK A/C 0001274002 1,187,590
10001 CASH BOOK A/C 0001273990 530,754
20007 CASH BOOK A/C NO 81041788 13,128,371
10320 SAVING-BOC NO: 84023069 267,434
13000 ACCRUDE INCOME 8,209,067
13100 RECEIVABLE VEHICLE HIRING CHARGES 268,167
12002 COMPUTER LOAN 178,000
<000 DEPOSIT FOR SERVICES- FUEL 150,000
2000 DISTRESS LOAN 3,538,280
01006 PREPAYMENTS 754,534
13200 RECEIVABLE PROGRAMME FEE 26,267,550
15000 RFC 530,026
310 SAVING-P.AMARASINGHE SCH.FUND 754,051
2003 STAFF LOAN 41,820
004 STOCK AS AT 31ST DECEMBER 3,685,431
001 SUNDRY DEBTORS 66,213
2004 VEHICLE LOAN 460,884
02 MISCELLANEOUES ADVANCE 15,000
30700 SUNDRY CREDITORS 55,800
23110 5% RETENTION ON CAPITAL WORKS 1,345,4304
2162 129TH S/C ON GIS & ITS APPLICATION 217,265
300 ACCRUED EXPENSES 22,285,830
23020 BOARDS OF STUDY CHEMICAL SCIENCE 74,700/
23030 BOARDS OF STUDY EARTH SCIENCE 2,288,8404
23040 BOARDS OF STUDY ENVIRONMENTAL 1,625
13060 BOARDS OF STUDY PHYSICS 11,740
23070 BOARDS OF STUDY PLANT SCIENCE 121,706
23080 BOARDS OF STUDY SCIENCE EDUCATION 99,537
23100 BOARDS OF STUDY ZOOLOGICAL SCIENCE 48,957
23112 BOARD OF STUDY BIOMEDICAL SCIENCE 98,6OOH
20100 DEPOSITS 193,009
23200 DEFFERED INCOME 11,639,151
20004 LIBRARY DEPOSIT 4,638,000
954 PAYETAX 1,150,418
952 WITHHOLDING TAX 10,750
31520 ADVANCE COURSE IN ORGANIC CHEMISTRY 220,822
2082 PROF.P AMARASINGHE SCHOLARSHIP FUND 1,638,369
30005 SCIENCE DEPOSIT 3,936,000
30200 SECURITY BOND 80,495
950 STAMP DUTY 13,050
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POSTGRADUATE INSTITUTE OF SCIENCE

TRIAL BALANCE AS AT 31°T DECEMBER 2024

. __‘:%E“ ACCOUNT NAME DR AMOUNT (RS) | CR AMOUNT (RS.)
. |ADVANCE CERTIFICATE COURSE IN P
BIOMEDICAL SCIENCES /
2135 |JAPANESE GREEN YOUTH PROJECT 934,404
238 |s/C ON BIOINFORMATICS 304,135
2120 |W/S ON PATHEGON GENOMICS SYM-2023 43,800
> GENERAL RESERVES 986,542,402
s RESEARCH & SCHOLARSHIP FUNDS 2,395,265
73 REVALUATION RESERVE 130,527,591
¢ WORKSHOPS & SHORT COURSE FUND 7,151,884
: ACA-ACADEMIC ALLOWANCES 3,784,944
212 |aca-ADDITIONAL ALL. 20% 348,060
52120 JAcA-coL 575,812
s |ACAET.F 210,223
10 |ACA-OTHER ALLOWANCE 297,699
3 |ACA-MONTHLY ALLOWANCE 116,220
4121 |ACA-RESEARCH ALLOWANCE 25% 609,105
e ACA-SALARIES & WAGES 2,651,663
123 |ACA-EPF 74,126
a0 |acaupE 950,206
$11 |AUDIT FEES 700,000J
: BANK CHARGES 392,319
511 |AWARDS & INDEMNITIES 1,070,000
-1 [BUILDING & STRUCTURES 518,760
1219 |CASUAL VAGES 694,000
205 |CHEMICAL & GLASSWARE 876,374
207 |CLEANING SERVICES 1,600,686
50 |DEPRECIATION - BUILDING 12,017,500
253 |DEPRECIATION - LAB & TEACHING EQUIP 30,016,327
25:  |DEPRECIATION - LIBRARY BOOKS 1,073,884
56 |DEPRECIATION - MOTOR VEHICALS 3,400,000
55 |DEPRECIATION - OFFICE EQUIPMENTS 2,492,736
551 |DEPRECIATION - TELEPHONE 15,849
58 |DEPRECIATION - SPORT GOODS s,moA
057 |DEPRECIATION - INTANGIBLE ASSET 283,556
w804 [ELECTRICITY 2,042,631
914 |EXAMINATION EXPENSES 4,133,002
<2 lFuBLL & LUBRICANT 1,588,172
1014 |GRATUITY 2,824,273
208  |HOLIDAY WARRANT &SEASON TICKETS 68,175
812 |LEGAL & DOCUMENTATION CHARGES 1,178,798
2404  |MECHANICAL & ELECTRICAL GOODS 223,548
216 |NON ACA. RESEARCH ALL. 35% 563,337
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POSTGRADUATE INSTITUTE OF SCIENCE

TRIAL BALANCE AS AT 31°" DECEMBER 2024

“:CC?[;‘EE\'T ACCOUNT NAME DR AMOUNT (RS.) | CR AMOUNT (RS.)
=L210 NON- OTHER ALLOWANCE 93,335
21208 NON- OVERTIME 1,603,626
84203 NON-ACA PENTION 1,788,493
=104 NON-ACA- ET.F 714,217
54202 NON-ACA- UPF 1,700,954
2212 NON-ACA-MCA.20% 5,646,214
2201 NON-ACA-SALARIES 13,014,767,

4217 NON-ADDITIONAL ALLOWANCE 2,509,428
L2720 NON-COL 5,146,242
L1209 NON-HOLIDAY PAYMENTS 253,294
122 NON-STAFF BENIFIT 129,264
272 NON ACA-MONTHLY ALLOWANCE 1,419,8391
4205 NON-EPF 65,309
915 OTHER - NEWSPAPER MAGAZINES ECT 1,074,664
926 PGIS INSURENCE SCHEME 194,400
80935 PGIS RESEARCH CONGRESS 1,562,471
702 PLANT , MACHENARY & EQUIPMENT 3,685,599
803 POSTAL CHARGES 333,880
§10 PRINTING ADVERTISING ECT 471,871
805 SECURITY SERVISES 1,321,645
%0903 SPECIAL SERVICES - PROFESSIONAL & 116,445
OTHER FEES !
202 SPECIAL SERVICES COUNCIL & COMMITIES 1,682,452
30 STAFF WELFARE 452,859
275 STAMP DUTY EXPENSE 18,375
o1 STATIONARY & OFFICE REQUISIITES 2,471,018
802 TELECOMMUNICATION 5,229,171
301 TRAVELLING EXPENSES (DOMESTIC) 162,017
701 VEHICLES 1,633,687
916 VISITING LECTURE FEES 12,875,220J
920 FIELD VISIT EXPENSES 321,635
806 WATER CHARGES 154,175
S04 WORKSHOP & SEMINAS 486,370
939 STUDENT WELFARE 25,000
913 CONVERCATION EXPENSE 500,000
241 RESEARCH GRANT EXPENDITURE 8,620,055
945 LOSSES & WRITE OFF 3,875,0001
40 INTANGIBLE ASSET 2,378,592
00 BUILDING 240,723,958
095 FINANCIAL MISAPPROPRIATION A/C 50,119,123
2003 LAB & TEACHING EQUIPMENTS 150,756,510
004 LIBRARY BOOKS 5,390,460]
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POSTGRADUATE INSTITUTE OF SCIENCE

TRIAL BALANCE AS AT 31°" DECEMBER 2024

- _:h:“JE‘}-E\T ACCOUNT NAME DR AMOUNT (RS.) | CR AMOUNT (RS.)

05 MOTOR VEHICLES 17,000,000}

06 OFFICE FURNITURE EQUIPMENTS 12,859,696

SPORTS GOODS 34,800

2 TELEPHONE 158,490*
292 AUSTRIA-PROF: D YAKANDAWALA 319,782
290 PGIS/2020/18-DR.N.W.B.BALASURIYA 394,900F
7 CONSERVATION OF WATER-TRUMPET IN S/L 4,799,889
Ll LA, ADMINISTRATION CHARGES 672,990
05 APPLICATION PROCESSING FEE 975,000|
= BENCH FEE 877,500
0073 CERTIFICATE FEE 1,006,800
N EXAMINATION FEES 1,748,546

06 EXCHANGE GAIN /LOSS 36,039,585
o= INTEREST FROM SAVING A/C 73,318

IN

—, _:DT\]EEEISCTE;NCOME FROM LOANS & 192793
06 INTEREST INCOME ON FD 57,962,495
=005 INTEREST ON RFC 18,928
S LIBRARY TICKET 475,500
70025 M.PHIL & PH.D TUTION FEE 579,000
T0( MEDICAL FEE 129,250}
007 MISCELLANEOUS INCOME 1,202,797
07 PRINTING INCOME 52,188
7 REGISTRATION FEE 2,564,900)
076 RESCON INCOME 776,500
04 ROOFTOP RESERVATION CHARGES- 30,000
TSt SUPERVISION FEE 1,330,000
2 TUTION FEES 53,735,979
BLLE VEHICAL HIRING CHARGES 1,146,400
0077 XRD ANALYSIS INCOME 22,500
078 XRF ANALYSIS INCOME 565,200
079 DEGREE VERIFICATION INCOME 45,215
3103 REASEARCH GRANTS INCOME 3,625,077

0 FIXED DEPOSIT - BOC 311,427,761

200 FIXED DEPOSITS - PEOPLES BANK 23,608,269J

10 FIXED DEPOSIT - BOC - RFC 338,600,727

500 FIXED DEPOSIT- NSB 13,200,310“

700 STATE MORTGAGE & INVESTMENT BANK 13,923,958
5720 PROVISION FOR GRATUITY 10,616,224
3000 PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION - BUILDING 36,052,500I
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POSTGRADUATE INSTITUTE OF SCIENCE

TRIAL BALANCE AS AT 31°" DECEMBER 2024

ACCOUNT NAME

DR AMOUNT (RS.)

CR AMOUNT (RS.)

PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION - LAB
TEACHING EQUIPMENT

PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION - LIBRARY
BOOKS

PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION - OFFICE
EQUIPMENT

PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION -
TELEPHONE

PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION
VEHICLES

PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION-INTANGIBLE
ASSET

PROVISION FOR AUDIT FEES

PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION-SPORT
GOODS

PROVISION FOR SECURITY SERVICE

- MOTOR

59,699,864
3,085,626
4,764,447

46,688

10,200,000}

1,240,846
1,325,250|
26,100

130,000

TOTAL

1,440,749,642

1 g;;!zgg!gzl
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CPCG/KD/D/PGIS/2025/04 19 May 2025

The Director
Postgraduate Institute of Science.

Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements and Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirements of the Postgraduate Institute of Science for the year ended 31 December 2024
in terms of Section 12 of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018.

1.1

1.2

Financial Statements

Opinion

The audit of financial statements of the Postgraduate Institute of Science for the year
ended 31 December 2024 comprising the statement of Financial Position as at 31
December 2024 and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in
equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies was carried out
under my direction in pursuance of provisions in Article 154(1) of the Constitution of
the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka read in conjunction with provisions of
the National Audit Act No. 19 of 2018 and the Finance Act No.38 of 1971. My report
to Parliament in pursuance of provisions in Article 154 (6) of the Constitution will be

tabled in due course.

In my opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the basis for Opinion
section of my report, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Postgraduate Institute of Science as at 31 December 2024
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance

with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards (SLAuSs). My
responsibilities, under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of this report. I
believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for my opinion.



1.3

1.4

Other Information Included in the Annual Report, 2024 of the Institute

The other information means the information included in the 2024 Annual Report of
the Postgraduate Institute of Science, which is expected be submitted to me after the date
of this report, but not contained in the Financial Statements and my audit report

thereon. Management is responsible for this other information.

My opinion on financial statements does not cover the other information and 1 do not

express any assurance or opinion thereon.

My responsibility in connection with my audit of financial statements is to study the
above identified other information and evaluate whether the other information is
substantially mismatched with the financial statements or my knowledge gained in

auditing or another manner.

In the study of Annual Report of the Institute for the year 2024, if I conclude that there
are substantial misstatements, I should communicate that matters to the governing
body for correction. If there are misstatements further to be corrected, those will be
included in the report which I table in parliament in accordance with Article 154 (6)

of the Constitution in due course.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the

Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards, and
for such internal control as management determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Institute’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intend to liquidate the University or to cease operations, or has no

realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Institute’s financial

reporting process.



1.5

As per Sub-section 16(1) of the National Audit Act No. 19 of 2018, the Institute is
required to maintain proper books and records of all its income, expenditure, assets
and liabilities, to enable annual and periodic financial statements to be prepared of the

Institute.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

My objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Sri Lanka Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards, I exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I

also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Institute’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern

basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material



2.1

2.1.1

2.2

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Institute’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify my opinion. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Institute to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that

I identify during my audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018 includes specific provisions for following

requirements.

Subject to the observations described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph in
my report, | have obtained all the information and explanation that required for the
audit and as far as appears from my examination, proper accounting records have been
kept by the Institute as per the requirement of section 12 (a) of the National Audit
Act, No. 19 of 2018.

The financial statements presented by the Institute are consistent with the preceding
year as per the requirement of section 6 (1) (d) (iii) of the National Audit Act, No. 19
of 2018.

The financial statements presented include all the recommendations made by me in the
previous year as per the requirement of section 6 (1) (d) (iv) of the National Audit

Act, No. 19 of 2018.

Based on the procedures performed and evidence obtained were limited to matters that

are material, nothing has come to my attention;



2.2.1 to state that any member of the governing body has any direct or indirect interest in
any contract entered into by the Institute which are out of the normal cause of business

as per the requirement of section 12 (d) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018.

2.2.2  to state that the Institute has not complied with any applicable written law, general and
special directions issued by the governing body of the Company as per the requirement
of section 12 (f) of the National Audit Act, No. 19, except for the following

observations.

Reference to Laws, Observations

Rules/Directives

(a) Public Enterprises Circular
No.PED/12 dated 02 June 2003.
Paragraph 9.12 Without the approval of the Public Enterprises

Department and the General Treasury, a total of Rs.
441,600 had been paid to the National Insurance Trust
Fund as a contribution towards the Employee Aggrahara
Insurance Scheme from August 2020 to 31 December

2024.

2.2.3 to state that the Institute has not performed according to its powers, functions and
duties as per the requirement of section 12 (g) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of

2018, except for the following observations.

Powers, Functions and Duties Observations

University Grants Commission letter No. Although it had been specified that the board of

UGC/L/2020 dated 18 May 2018. management of all postgraduate institutes should
be limited to a maximum of 11 members, without
taking actions accordingly, a board of
management consisting of 20 members had been
appointed. As a result, an additional cost of Rs.
1,109,920 was incurred for 29 meetings held
during the period from January 2019 to 31
December 2024.
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23

(C))

(b)

(©)

to state that the resources of the Institute had not been procured and utilized
economically, efficiently and effectively within the time frames and in compliance
with the applicable laws as per the requirement of section 12 (h) of the National Audit
Act, No. 19 of 2018, except for the following observations.

Act, No. 19 of 2018, except for the following observations.For the designing, development,
installation, and maintenance of a Management Information System (MIS) for the Institute, an
agreement valued at Rs. 4,440,457 was entered into with a private firm on 12 June 2022 for a
period of one year and extensions were granted up to 12 February 2025. An advance payment
of Rs. 660,070 was made in February 2024; however, as of the audit date, 31 March 2025, the
installation of the Management Information System had not been completed.

Other Matters

The Institute had failed to recover outstanding course fees totaling Rs. 23,497,200 for the
period from 2017 to 2023, even as of 31 December of the year under review.

An overprovision of Rs. 260,459 relating to five Boards of Study that had remained since 31
December 2016, retention money amounting to Rs. 1,345,430 pertaining to three industries
completed in 2018 and 2019, and a sum of Rs. 169,075 recorded under workshops, short-term
courses, and other payables that had remained outstanding for two years had not been settled
even by the end of the year under review.

Even though a period ranging from one month to eleven months had elapsed since the
scheduled completion dates of three research projects related to research grants totaling Rs.
10,332,176, those projects had not been completed.

G.H.D. Dharmapala

Act. Auditor General

THE ORIGINAL DOCUMENT HAS BEEN SIGNED


THE ORIGINAL DOCUMENT HAS BEEN SIGNED


14. REPLIES TO AUDIT REPORT
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No

Subject

Clarification of Reasons for the Audit Report

CPCG/KD/D/PGIS/2025/04

Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements and
Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of the Postgraduate
Institute of Science for the year ended 31 December 2024 in terms of
Section 12 of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018.

Clarifications regarding the Audit Report bearing the above reference number and subject are provided

below.

02 Report of the Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

222

223

(a

In accordance with Internal Audit Circular No. 04/2019 dated 29 July 2009
issued by the University Grants Commission, action has been taken to make the
relevant investment based on the highest interest rates obtained through a
competitive process of inviting interest rates from state banks, with the approval
of the Institute’s Board of Management. Further, steps have already been taken
to obtain the approval of the Ministry of Education, Higher Education, and
Vocational Education for this investment.

This corporate insurance scheme for the employees of the University of
Peradeniya and its affiliated institutions has been initiated based on
contributions from both the institution and the employees, with the approval of
the Finance Committee and the Council of the University of Peradeniya.
Further, action has also been taken to obtain the approval of the Finance
Committee and the Board of Management of the Postgraduate Institute of
Science for this scheme. Similarly, the contributions made by the Institute for
the employees of the Postgraduate Institute of Science who have contributed to
the scheme have been included under "Staff Welfare" in the budget estimates of
the relevant years. These budget estimates have been submitted by the
University Grants Commission to the Department of Public Enterprises and the
General Treasury for approval. In line with the recommendation of the
Committee on Audit and Management, a letter requesting approval for this
matter has also already been forwarded to the Department of Public Enterprises



(b)

(©)

by the University Grants Commission and the Ministry of Higher Education.

Letter No. (UGC/L/2020) dated 18 May 2018 of the University Grants
Commission

According to Section 9 of the original Ordinance No.l of 1996 of the
Postgraduate Institute of Science, published in Extraordinary Gazette No. 909/13
dated 09 February 1996, the number of members in the Board of Management
was 40. Subsequently, as per the revised Ordinance published in Extraordinary
Gazette No. 1175/22 dated 24 September 2012, the number of members was
reduced to 21. However, as pointed out in the audit observation, based on the
decision taken at the 980th meeting of the University Grants Commission and
the letter No. UGC/L/20 dated 18 May 2018, it has been decided that the total
membership of all postgraduate boards of management should be limited to a
maximum of 11 members. Nevertheless, since the revised Ordinance of 2012
specify 21 members to be included in the composition of the Board of
Management of the Postgraduate Institute of Science in order to ensure essential
representation, the Director of the Postgraduate Institute of Science made a
request to the Chairman of the University Grants Commission through a letter
dated 30.07.2018, to draw attention to the need to retain the 21-member
composition. As pointed out in the draft report, a request was made to the
Secretary of the Ministry of Education, Higher Education, and Vocational
Education on 19.03.2025, seeking guidance on how the composition of the
Board of Management should be arranged if the number of members is to be
further reduced. However, as no response has been received to date, the
memorandum titled "Amendment of the Existing Ordinance of the Postgraduate
Institute of Science" was submitted to the 185th meeting of the Board of
Management held on 26.04. 2025.

University Grants Commission Circular No. 15/2015 dated 17 November
2015

The issue of the inability to release the results of internal examinations within
three months at the Postgraduate Institute of Science, as required by University
Grants Commission Circular No. 15/2015 dated 17 November 2015, has already
been identified. The following measures have been taken to rectify this situation:

e Extensive discussions were held at meetings of the Academic Board,
Coordinating Committees, and the Board of Management regarding the
necessary steps to ensure the release of examination results within three
months. Coordinators of the relevant academic programs have been
informed about the progress of this matter.



e As the Postgraduate Institute of Science did not previously have a
separate Examination Unit for conducting internal examinations, the
process of establishing such a unit is currently underway. This includes
arranging the required human resources and basic physical infrastructure.
Furthermore, a draft handbook outlining the procedures for conducting
internal examinations has been prepared and was submitted to the Board
of Management at its meeting held on 28.12. 2024.

Accordingly, it will be possible to resolve this issue within a very short
period of time.

2.2.4 Following the prescribed tender procedure for the establishment of a Management
Information System (MIS) at the Postgraduate Institute of Science, CICRA Solutions
was selected, and an agreement was signed with the company on 12.06.2022. However,
during the course of implementation, the Postgraduate Institute of Science encountered
the following difficulties, which led to delays in the establishment of the MIS.

[. Although Mr. P. Gunathilaka, a lecturer in the Department of Computer Science of
the Faculty of Science, was initially appointed as the coordinator to oversee the
technical aspects of the MIS, he suddenly resigned from university service. Due to
the limited staff available in the Department of Computer Science and their heavy
workload, it was extremely difficult to appoint a new coordinator. However, in
September 2023, it was possible to appoint Mrs. Sathya Wijewardena as the new
coordinator, enabling the acceleration of the implementation process.

The MIS system consists of seven complex modules including Registration, Student,
Academic, Event Management, Administrative, Audit, and Inventory Management.
During the preparation of the Software Requirements Specification (SRS), the Institute
had to face unforeseen complexities and challenges.

Name of the Module Number of Pages in the Relevant
Module
Inventory Management Module 205 Pages
Academic Module 114 Pages
Administrative Module 64 Pages
Event Management Module 53 Pages
Audit Module 08 Pages
Registration Module 275 Pages
Student Module 87 Pages

After individually checking the progress of the above modules and holding numerous
regular meetings with the relevant institution, and after the new coordinator confirmed
in late 2023 that the relevant specifications (SRS) were in the required condition,
CICRA organization commenced the enhancement of the Management Information
System.

However, due to the prolonged strike action that took place in 2024, the regular

3



meetings and progress review process with CICRA were disrupted. After the strike
ended, beginning in July, a series of regular meetings and numerous test trials were
conducted, after which the Registration module was established. Currently, the work on
the associated Academic, Students, and Administration modules is largely complete.
The Registration module is already implemented and is being used for student
enrollment. Furthermore, no payments have been made to this institution for module
development to date.

Other Matters

(b)

Based on the year of student registration, course fees due from students who are
still within the valid study period or have obtained approved extensions are
shown as receivable course fees. The Institute has issued several reminders to
the relevant students, urging them to make payments of these course fees
without delay. Furthermore, the Institute has implemented a policy whereby
students with outstanding course fees are not issued examination applications.
With the introduction of this mechanism, the Institute has been able to recover a
significant portion of the outstanding course fees. The Institute continues to take
further action to recover the outstanding course fees.

Balance of Rs. 260,459 continued to exist since 31 December 2016 related to
five Boards of Study

The unutilized balances from the funds allocated to the respective Boards of
Study for workshops and short-term courses conducted under their purview have
been shown under Payable Balances to Boards of Study in the final accounts.
These balances have been further shown as payable balances due to the
insufficiency of available funds to meet the various requests made on behalf of
those Boards of Study. However, the matter will be reported to the Institute’s
Finance Committee and the Board of Management, and steps will be taken to
settle these balances in the future, based on the guidance provided by these
governing bodies.

Retention money of Rs. 1,345,430 related to three completed projects

The companies involved in these three fully completed projects have been
informed on several occasions to submit the necessary requests and supporting
documentation to claim the retention money. However, to date, no such requests
have been submitted to the Institute by the respective companies. Therefore,
final reminders will be issued to the respective companies, and if no claims are
submitted within the stipulated time period, the matter will be reported to the
Institute’s Finance Committee and the Board of Management. Accordingly,
steps will be taken to settle the retained money based on the recommendations
provided by these governing bodies.



(c)

Short-term courses and other payable expenses amounting to Rs. 169,075.

The final financial statements related to this workshop have already been
prepared and submitted to the Finance Committee and the Board of
Management. The relevant balances will be corrected according to the
instructions received from these bodies.

Below are the explanations for the three research grants that, according to the audit
report, were not completed within the stipulated timeframe.

Research Grant | Name of the Research Grant Explanations
No.
P33148B-6292 Biogeography & Phylogenetics | The period has been
of Genus Piper extended until September
30.09. 2025.
6317 Conservation  of  bogner’s | The period has been
water-trumpt extended until September
01.01. 2026.

PGIS/2020/18- Sri Lanka vein Graphite | The relevant research
6299 Purification and Utilization for | activities  have  been

advance Allocation completed, and the final
report has already been

submitted.
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